
As a courtesy to those persons affected, please attend the meeting smoke and scent free. The County of Santa Cruz does not discriminate on the basis of 
disability, and no person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the benefits of its services, programs, or activities.  If you wish to attend this meeting and you 
will require special assistance in order to participate, please contact Micki Coca Buss at (831) 454-7505 (TDD number 454-2123) at least 72 hours in advance of 
the meeting to make arrangements.  Persons with disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternative format. 

 County of Santa Cruz 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

PH (831) 454-4130ꞏ FAX (831) 454-4642 
1000 Emeline Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

www.hsd.co.santa-cruz.ca.us        www.workforcescc.com 
 

 
AGENDA 

Wednesday, July 20, 2022 
8:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. 

*This is a Virtual Public Meeting* 
 
Pursuant to AB 361 and Cal. Gov. Code section 54953, due to the ongoing COVID 19 state of emergency 
and upon recommendation of the County Health Officer, public meetings of the Human Services 
Commission will be conducted in in hybrid/remote format. Members of the public can attend virtually by 
teleconference (or in-person if hybrid).  
 
There will be no physical location available for this meeting, however access to the meeting and an 
opportunity to comment live and in real time will be provided.  Please follow the meeting instructions listed 
below.  The instructions will also be posted on the Human Services Department webpage at 
https://www.santacruzhumanservices.org/Home/HumanServicesCommission 
 

Virtual Meeting Instructions: 
Join on your computer or mobile app 

Click here to join the meeting 
 

Or call in (audio only) 
+1 831-454-2222,,365872557#   United States, Salinas 

Phone Conference ID: 365 872 557# 
 

To provide written public comments associated with any agenda item, please submit by email to 
micki.cocabuss@santacruzcounty.us  
 
For Questions regarding the virtual meeting process, please contact Micki Coca Buss, Administrative 
Support at 831-454-7505 or micki.cocabuss@santacruzcount.us  
 
 
The meeting starts at 8:30 a.m. with the first item and proceeds through the items in consecutive order unless 
otherwise noted. 
 

I. Roll Call           (2 min) 

II. Agenda Review          (2 min) 

III. Announcements          (5 min) 

IV. Public Comment          (5 min) 
Members of the public may address the Commission on items not on the agenda for  
a maximum of five minutes each.  

 

1



V. Approval of Minutes (Action)        (2 min) 
 March 16, 2022 
 May 18, 2022 

    
VI. Approval of Findings Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 Authorizing Teleconference Meetings 

(Action)           (5 min) 
 

VII. Consideration of General Assistance Program Proposed Changes    (25 min) 
Presenters: Irma Marquez, Employment & Benefit Services Division Director 

 General Assistance Cost of Living Adjustment 
 Restore vs Rescind 
 Remove requirement for homeless applicants to draw a map of where they  

are located to establish residency 
 

VIII. Review current Commission Bylaws and consider next steps (Action)   (10 min) 
 

IX. 2021 Human Services Commission Work Plan (Action)     (30 min) 
 Discussion of priorities and staff recommendations 
 Engagement strategies including with other County Commissions  

and within Supervisory districts  
Related materials: 

 Human Services Commission Draft Work Plan Year 2020 (pages 7-10) 
 Commissions, Committees, and Advisory Bodies (pages 11-12) 
 

X. Director’s Report            (30 min) 
 Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors Agenda Items: Regular and Consent 
 Legislative Items   
 

XI. Next Meeting and Agenda Items        (2 min) 
September 21, 2022 – Location to be determined. 

XII. Adjournment 

A complete agenda packet will be available for review at the Human Services Department webpage 
https://www.santacruzhumanservices.org/Home/HumanServicesCommission 

2



MATERIALS AND CORRESPONDENCE IN PACKET 

From the Board of Supervisors Agenda  
Full agenda items on indicated dates available at https://santacruzcountyca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Calendar.aspx  

BOS Date Item 
Page # in 

packet 
5/24/2022 
Item # 12 

DOC-2022-507 : Consider report on Thrive by Three Initiative and Nurse-Family 
Partnership and direct staff to report back on or before December 13, 2022 with the Fiscal 
Year 2021-22 program evaluation, as outlined in the memorandum of the Directors of 
Health and Human Services 

5 

5/24/2022 
Item # 13 

DOC-2022-508 : Consider report on planned collaboration with the City of Santa Cruz on 
its proposed use of $14 million of one-time State funding to help people experiencing 
homelessness in the City of Santa Cruz secure stable housing, as outlined in the 
memorandum of the Director of Human Services

10 

5/24/2022 
Item # 45 

DOC-2022-481 : Approve amendment to agreement with Wayfinder Family Services for 
psychosocial assessment and adoption support services, to modify the budget at an 
unchanged total amount of $206,700; and take related actions, as recommended by the 
Director of Human Services  

14 

5/24/2022 
Item # 46 

DOC-2022-482 : Approve agreements with Goodwill Central Coast in the amount of 
$750,000 for provision of Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Adult Dislocated 
Worker program services and Santa Cruz County Office of Education in the amount of 
$800,000 for provision of Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Youth program 
services, and take related actions, as recommended by the Director of Human Services 

16 

6/07/2022 
Item # 11 

DOC-2022-558 : Consider approval of recommended awards from the Collective of 
Results and Evidence-based (CORE) Investments Request for Proposals (RFP) process; 
approve agreement between City of Santa Cruz and County related to CORE funding and 
contract administration; direct the Human Services Department to return on June 28, 2022, 
with final CORE contract awards; direct the Human Services Department to return on or 
before February 28, 2023, with an update on the evaluation of the CORE RFP process and 
community stakeholder process, and take related actions, as outlined in the memorandum 
of the Director of Human Services

19 

6/07/2022 
Item # 46 

DOC-2022-535 : Authorize the Human Services Department to submit an application for 
State Homeless Housing Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Round 3 grant funds totaling 
$3,243,330 on behalf of the Continuum of Care and $3,027,108 on behalf of the County of 
Santa Cruz; direct the department to return on or before September 20, 2022, and take 
related actions, as recommended by the Director of Human Services

27 

6/07/2022 
Item #47 

DOC-2022-536 : Approve amendments to agreements with Abode Services and Housing 
Matters to extend the terms of the agreements to September 30, 2022, and take related 
actions, as recommended by the Director of Human Services

32 

6/21/2022 
Item # 7 

BUD-2022-17 : Consider approval of the 2022-23 Proposed Budget for the Human 
Services Department, including any supplemental materials, and take related actions, as 
outlined in the referenced budget documents, and as recommended by the County 
Administrative Officer 

35 

6/28/2022 
Item # 9 

DOC-2022-642 : Consider approval of final recommended awards from the Collective of 
Results and Evidence-based (CORE) Investments Request for Proposals process; consider 
approval of three months of transition funding for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 CORE 
programs not recommended for funding in FY 2022-23; direct the Human Services 
Department to return to the Board on or before December 13, 2022 with an update, and 
take related actions, as outlined in the memorandum of the Director of Human Services

38 

6/28/2022 
Item # 54 

DOC-2022-603 : Approve amendment to the Health Services Agency's Participation 
Agreement with Santa Cruz Health Information Organization to include exchange of 
additional types of patient data and add the Human Services Department as a party to the 
agreement, and take related actions, as recommended by the Directors of Health and 
Human Services 

45 

3



BOS Date Item 
Page # in 

packet 
6/28/2022 
Item # 66 

DOC-2022-614 : Authorize the Human Services Department and Veterans Village Project 
Homekey application partners to sign partnership and contractual agreements for the 
acceptance of up to $6,425,000 in California Housing and Community Development 
Homekey funds to create a 20 rental unit permanent supportive housing project for 
veterans at-risk of or currently experiencing homelessness at 8705 Highway 9, Ben 
Lomond, direct the department to return back to the Board on or before August 9, 2022 
with executed agreements, and take related actions, as recommended by the Director of 
Human Services 

48 

COMMISSION COMMITTEE AGENDAS AND MINUTES 

 Child Care Planning Council http://www.childcareplanning.org/ 

 IHSS Advisory Commission 
http://www.santacruzhumanservices.org/AdultLongTermCare/InHomeSupportiveServices
/AdvisoryCommission.aspx 

 Santa Cruz County Women’s Commission http://www.sccwc.org/Home/Meetings.aspx 

 Santa Cruz County Seniors Commission http://www.sccseniors.org/Home/Meetings.aspx 

 Santa Cruz County Commission on Disabilities http://scccod.net/ 

 Santa Cruz County Latino Affairs Commission http://scclatinoaffairs.org  
 

OTHER MATERIALS   

 Meeting Minutes – March 2022 (page 52 of packet) 

 Meeting Minutes – May 2022 (page 54 of packet) 

 AB361 (page 55 of packet) 

 General Assistance Program Proposed Changes (page 57 of packet) 

 Commission Bylaws (page 105 of packet) 

 Draft 2022 Workplan (page 109 of packet) 

 Legislative Analyst’s Office link: https://lao.ca.gov/  

4



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���,&&")*�:").#*�;<#%$"�=>�;<#""�? %*%�*%$"�� -�@�#'"6A��%B>�C�#* "#'<%)�D�������E
����F�>�G4H�G7GG��I�9����������9����J�K��,&&")*�#").#*�. �;<#%$"�=>�;<#""�� -�-%#"&*�*.�'*�LL�*.�)#.$%-"���#").#*�=�&M�. �*<"�A%'&�B�N"�#�G7G26GG�;<#%$"�=>�;<#""�"$�B��*%. � .�B�*"#�*<� �("&"�="#�21H�G7GGH��'�#"&.��" -"-�=>�*<"�(%#"&*.#'�.L����� �'"#$%&"'�� -�*<"��"�B*<�!"#$%&"'�,O" &>P��QR�9������	���
���ST�UVTWVXY�Z[\]̂�_̀a�b̀Xcda�eY�b̀Xaa�f̀ cghXaTij�kWTh�lVj�mXaV_ah�_n�copXnda�nW_mnoaj�L.#�&<%B-#" �� -"#�*<#""P��!�='"q�" *B>�*<"�;<#%$"�=>�;<#""�% %*%�*%$"�%�)B"�" *"-�'*#�*"O%"'�� -��&*%$%*%"'�*<�*�L.&�'"-�. �*<"�*<#""�O.�B��#"�'+�r <� &"�!>'*"��s�)�&%*>H�r <� &"�!>'*"��s..#-% �*%. �� -�!*#" O*<" �!>'*"��A.� -�*%. P��r�&<�L%'&�B�>"�#�*<"#"�%'�� �"$�B��*%. �.L�;<#%$"�=>�;<#""P�;<%'�#").#*�� -�)#"'" *�*%. �)#.$%-"�� ��)-�*"�. �*<"�)#.O#"''�.L�;<#%$"�=>�;<#""�.$"#�*<"�)#%.#�*t.�L%'&�B�>"�#'�� -�L�*�#"�.)).#*� %*%"'P��
9u�������v �w� ��#>�G4H�G72xH�>.�#�y.�#-�$.*"-�*.�-"-%&�*"�z157H777�*.�*<"�;<#%$"�=>�;<#""�{beb|�f̀ cghXaTij�}WTh�l̀ cm̀�cj�hajc~Tah�_n�copXnda�nW_mnoaj�knX��VT_V�fXW��fnWT_Yij�>.� O"'*�� -��.'*�$�B "#�=B"�&<%B-#" H�)#" �*�B�*<#.�O<��O"�1H�� -�*<"%#�L��%B%"'P�;<"� ""-�� -�% %*%�*%$"�t"#"�=�'"-�. �#"'"�#&<�*<�*�-"�. '*#�*"-�*<�*�*<"�"�#B%"#�cTdaj_oaT_j�VXa�oVha�cT�V�m̀cghij�gcka�_̀a�~XaV_aX�_̀a�copVm_�nT�_̀acX�kW_WXa�lagg6="% OH�� -�*<"�% %*%�*%$"��B%O "-�t%*<�"�"#O% O�'*�*"�).B%&>�)#%.#%*%"'�L.#�&<%B-#" �761�>"�#'�.L��O"H�&#"�*% O�.)).#*� %*%"'�*.�B"$"#�O"�*<"�% $"'*�" *P�;<"�-"'%#"-�.�*&.�"'�="<% -�*<"�;=;�% %*%�*%$"�t"#"+�� ��y�=%"'��#"�=.# �<"�B*<>����A��%B%"'�<�$"�*<"�#"'.�#&"'�*<">� ""-�*.�'�)).#*�&<%B-XaTij�np_coVg�hadagnpoaT_���N.� O�&<%B-#" �B%$"�% �'�L"H� �#*�#% O�L��%B%"'���s<%B-#" ��#"�<�))>H�<"�B*<>H�� -�*<#%$% O�=>��O"�*<#""���r�&<�.�*&.�"�<�-�')"&%L%&��"�'�#"�" *'�*<�*�t"#"�*.�="�*#�&M"-��  ��BB>�.$"#�*%�"P���aX�YnWX��nVXhij�hcXam_cnT̂�_̀a�mnWT_>����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3�� -��"�B*<�!"#$%&"'�,O" &>�/�!,3�t.#M"-�&B.'"B>�t%*<�A%#'*�A%$"�� -�.*<"#�M">�'*�M"<.B-"#'�L#.��*<"��#"�'�.L�<"�B*<H� �*#%*%. H�"�#B>�&�#"�� -�"-�&�*%. H�<.�"�$%'%*% OH�� -�&.��� %*>�=�%B-% O�)#.O#��'H�*.�-"*"#�% "�*<"�="'*�'*#�*"O%"'�� -�O.�B'�*.�% LB�" &"�*<"�-"'%#"-�

5



���������	
��	����	�����������
������
�����	��
��	������������	���	����	������������
��
���	��	����	����	�������������	��	��	����� ����
	
�����������	�	������� ���
	
����������������
	���
���!������
���
�����������"��
�	���
����#	$��������
�
�������������	�����������
�������%����&�����
��'����	����������������(�	����������	����	
��������
	���
��������������	
���������������	
�����������
���������	���������
�������	�����	���	�������	�����������������	
���������
�	���
���������������������	���	��������	��	���	�����	����	�����������
���
�����������	����	
�����	�����������
��������������	���	������
	����
��
����)*+,-./.��������������������	���������0�	�����
����������������	
�����������1&234�5��	
��������������������������������
��������
�����
�����
��������������	����������������	
�����������������������������������������6��������������
���	
����	������������
����������������
�����������
���	�������������
��������������������	����
����	
���	����������	
��������	����������������	�
�	�
������
�������	����(����
�������������%����������
���������	�����	�$�����	�����������	����	���������	
���
������	����������������������
����	��������������7��������	
����������������������������������
�����
�������	��	��������������	�������������	
��������
�����������
���	�������������	
��	�������
������������������������	���	
���	��
��������	��	�������
�����������������	���	�����
�������89:;<=>9?8@�:?ABCD?�E<E�>FGABH8@�:?8�9I9:8FJ9�;<>=>:I�������
�����	
�������
����������
�������
����
������������������	
��������K:�>9�LB:8MBA:?I�:?;:�IBCA�NB;A@J9�>L>:>;=�>LH89:F8L:�BO�PQRSTSSS�;L@�:?8�89:;<=>9?F8L:�BO����������������������
��������
�����������	�����������������
�	����U�4�!���	������	��������	���������	������
	���
������
����
�%����&�����
��	
����������4���	����	������������V�W������	����	������	����
�����������
�����������	���
��	���	
�����	����������	�������X��!�������
���0�����	���������������	$���	����������
������������	�����������	����	����������������	��������������
�	��	���
�����	
�� ��������������#	
�������������	����������������
������
��������	
�����������
��������������������������������	����������
���	�����
�������	
�����4���	����	�������	���
������	����������
���	������	
�Y������������	��	��	����Z[\][̂_�̀abc_d�e]f]̂gca�� h�%����&�����
��'����	�����������	
��������
	���
������������
��
����	
�����������Uii��
��������	�����������
���	��
�	����	��� U�5�	
�� U U��2
�	�	���
���������	
������������	���������������
������	�����
���%����&�����
�������������	��
������	�����	
���	��������������	�������	
����������������	������	�����

6



�����������	
���������
	
����������	����������
��������	������� ������� ���	��������!	����	
���!	�	
��"���	 ������ ����#	�	�������"���	��� ��� � ������	�	��$�%�	
�� �����
��#	������	 	�
�����
��������	�� ��� ������	
�&'��()��� ������� ���!	�����	 �� ����* ���	
������ �������!	�	
��������	
�� �����
��#	�$��+,-.,/0�123405�67789:,.4:7,�� ��%�!����#�
 �����
����� �
	���� �����	
���
����������	
� 	�
���� �#��;��� ������<��������� � ��� �������������#	�	���	
 ��� ���	
���#��!	�	 	
������#�� ����!���������#	
�������	
� ����*��	�
��� �� ������� ��#���

�� � �� �������#� �� ���� ��	 �� ��	��	 �� 	�
$������=
	 ��=������	#���#�
 ��� ��� ��#�	
��>����� �
	������#�?���
�� ��?��������������#�
��;�;���� �#����������!	������� �� ���!	������
��������	
� �����
����!	������
��
������#	�	�����

�� ����	 �����	 	�
�����!	���$������@��� ���� ������
�	
 ��	��	��	
������	� 	���	#�������#����� �� ���#� ������� �����!����#�
 ����?	���(AB��
����!	��������	��	C�������� ������#	�	������	
����#���*�������
��������	#���#�
 ���� � �����##�
	 ������ ����
 ��������� ������
 ����������������D�
 ���
����
 ��<�C�<�##�
	 ��@��� �$����<����� 	!������� � �������B�BE���	������
�����B�����?���������	�����	���������	� 	�� ��� ����#	�	��$������	
� �����
��#	���F��A%����(�(���@�G�������������H(((���#� ���<�
 ���<��	��
	��G��	�
������@��� ���
���� 
�����	 �� ���<��	��
	��I��� ����	
��<���	 	�
��
��;	
��;� ��%	������!	��� ���	����
����	 	�
����BE((�	
����� ���	� 	�� ���	������
���	���� �� ���;�;�
� ��?���������
��� ���<�##�
	 ��I�����J��
	C� 	�
���<IJ����!	
�� ���#� �
�����	��������� 	�
$���1480,K4-0,�4-0�123405�L7M,9.4:7,����;�;�G�!	����>��������	��<�##	  ���F�� 	
�����
 	
�������!	�	
���
����� �
	 �������
 	
�������
	
�� ������G<���G�����
��	
��#� 	�
��
��NOOPQRSTUROS�UO�STVRWTUX�NYTSWRSW�NRPNZ[\UTSNX\�TSQ�\Z]]OPU�̂T[R_RX\̀�SXXQ\��!�� ������������ �����
��#	�$����G<���G����a
	 	� 	!��A�G�!����<�	��������*��	�
�����G<������	
��������	�����!����#�
 ��
�� �*	��� ������!�����
�	��
 	�	��� �������
 �������	������ ���	�	�$��;���@��� ����!	����G��
����	
��� 
���	���	 ��&	� �&	!���
�� ���@��� ��a#��!�#�
 �b� 
���	������	!�������
 � ����!	���G<���G���A��� ��� �	
	
��� ����� �#���!	������� ����������	
����� ��G<�������
	
����
�������  ���"�	����� ������
���	 ��������	�	����
���
���	����"�	 �$���G<���G�������
	
������	�
������	
����� ���	
 �� ���;�;�G�!	����#�� 	
�����
�� ����������� 	�
���� ���G<���G������?����� �� ���	
��#������� 	�
���� ���b�	����G<�����#���?�	
 ��;�;$������� �	
������ �#�&�
�	
��c�;���<	 �������
 ��<�C��#�
���� ���<	 ��<�� �� ��

7



���������	
������������������������������������������������������������ ��!"#���$�%"&&$'��($'��)��)��*�)+���,�*$&-�#��$(�+$"�).�/��)���($�"%�$#��)$%���-&������0+�&$,�'�+��#���'�"-�1�2)���#('�%�'"��"'���*'���+��#��3�%��#����$���%�'�0"���202�456�("#�%��#�0*���!�'%��7��$�/$'8�/��)��)��9��+��$�:"��8*+������;������������������������������� ��<��������=����=�������>������?����������9��+�@"'�%�����$#�/)$�&'$,�������'���"'�#A��)��&�#��-��1���B�C$-��D�%���#A�9$$'��#���$#�E'�#��F�!�'%��7�6�#���9'"G�'����,�����HF+��'.�IHJJ.JJJ�C$-��D�%���#A�9$$'��#���$#�KCD9L�A'�#�1�E'�#������,����%��'����#��'���$#�%�'�#A�)�#�#A��)��202�%+%��-�$(���'��($�"%�$#�%"&&$'��#A�(�-�*��%�'��$,�'�('$-��)��&"0*���)��*�)��'�%�%.�/��)�C$-��D�%���#A�&'$A'�-%��%�����#�'�*�&$�#��$(��#�'+��#��*�#8�A���$�$�)�'���'*+��)�*�)$$���#��(�-�*+�%"&&$'��%�',���%1�2)��202�5����'%)�&�2��-�-����#A%�)�,��%�',����%��)��CD9�&*�##�#A�-����#A%.�/)��)�)�%�)�*&����#%"'���)��A'�#������,����%��#����*�,�'�0*�%�'�(*�����)���#&"���#���$--��-�#�%�$(��)��202�&�'�#�'%1��MNOP�QPNRS�T�URRVWPXYZPZNS���[��)�%�0��#�@"%��$,�'�(�,��+��'%�%�#����)��%��'��$(�2021�\)�*��-"�)�&'$A'�%%�)�%�0��#�-�����%���%�'�0����)'$"A)$"���)�%�-�-$��#�������)-�#�%.��)�'���'��$&&$'�"#����%�($'��-&'$,�-�#���#��A'$/�).�/��)��)'����#��'�$##�������'��%�0��#A���($�"%�($'��)���$-�#A�+��'1����]̂ _̂�̂̀abcdec_���[-&'$,�#A�)$/�/���$**���.�%)�'�.��#��"%���������'$%%��)��%+%��-�$(���'���#��/��)��)���$--"#��+��%��#��'���($'�A'$/�)1�9$#��#"�#A��#���3&�#��#A��"''�#���(($'�%�'�*������$��������#�)�*&�%�'��-*�#��)$/�(�-�*��%��'��%�',���-�8�#A������%��'�($'��)�-��$�����%%��)��%"&&$'�%��)�+�#���.��#�������#��*%$��-&'$,��$"'��0�*��+��$�-��%"'��$#A$�#A�%"���%%.��'��%�($'��-&'$,�-�#���#���$--"#�����$#1���fgddhca_i�jcb̂bedec_��[#��)���$#��3��$(��)��&�#��-��.��)����$#$-+.��#��$�)�'��)�**�#A�%.��)����'�"-%��#��%��)����)�*�'�#��#��(�-�*��%�(�����$��+.��'����((�'�#���)�#��)�+�/�'��(�,��+��'%��A$1�[#��$#%���'�#A�/)�'��/���'��k�/)�'��/���'��A$�#A.���($�"%����(($'���$��#A�A��&�'�#�%�$(�+$"#A��)�*�'�#��#���#�*"����)��'�,$�����%��#��#��A'�*��$-&$#�#��/�**�)�*&�&'$,�����#%�A)���#�$��)���3&�'��#���$(��)��(�-�*��%�/���'���'+�#A��$�%�',���#���'�����-$'��'$0"%��&'$A'�--�#A��#��%�'$#A�'�%+%��-�$(���'��#��/$'8%1����lmnaoe�pi�qaoe��43&�#��#A��)��%�$&���#��&"'&$%��$(�202��$�2)'�,��0+�!�,���%��#$�)�'�$&&$'�"#��+1�2)��=��=�����������������r�s����>���t�uv�w��ux��������=����t?��������=���������=������������/�**F0��#A�$(��**��)�*�'�#�&'�#���*F7��#���)��'�(�-�*��%�%��**�#���%������*%��$�0��-�&&���$"�.��)$"A)��)��������%�%"&&$'����0+��)���"''�#��202�A$,�'#�#���%�'"��"'�%.��#��-�#+�8�+�%��8�)$*��'%��#,$*,����#��)���'����$#�$(�2021���[#�$'&$'���#A�/)����)��202�#��/$'8��#��*����'%)�&����-%�)�,��*��'#���$,�'��)��&�%��

8



���������	
���������������������������
�����������������
������������������	������������	������	���������������������	�������������������������������	��������������
�����
�����	������������������������	����������	�����	�������������	��
���������������������������
��	���������������	�	��
� ���������!"#$#%"$&�'()$%*����
������������
	����������	���
���������
	�������
�+����	�����	�������	��������	��������������
���
������,-�.������������/0�1�11�1.��������������������	��
����	����,23���������4����5������6
��
	���������
���4�7�	���4�8��,1-����������	�9�
:�����������	���	����������;���
	��/����������������,.���������
������
���������
����
��
	�����<*=$*>?"%�@&$#�A&>(>#*BCD�-�8��E����
���������4�	���F��	���G�4�	���H+���I�������
���������
�������	�����	����	������
�����	������	���������
�������
�������������
	�����	����������������
����
�����
��		�����
�����	
�����	�������������	������
��������
������������
�����
�����	��	���	�����	��������������	���
�
��������	��������	�
����	���	����	�������	���������������<JK("**>L�KMN�O	����P�

����4��	����
������7�
���
��P����	�P�
	�����7�
���
��4�	�����
������8�������Q>%R((>#L>L�KMN��	
����S��6	�	������������8������
	����T�����
��U**$%V(>#*CN�$� ����H�	��	����1�-W�X�1�1���� ����H	
�������������/����/0�1�1��X�1�1-�Y�������	����F�H�	��	����O���
�

9



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���: &��)�" *�;"'). '"�<..#-% �*%. �=%*>�<%*?�.@�!� *��<#�A�B�������C
����D�?�E4F�E7EE��G�9����������9����H�I��,&&")*�� -�@%J"���#").#*�. �)J�  "-�&.JJ�K.#�*%. �=%*>�*>"�<%*?�.@�!� *��<#�A�. �%*'�)#.).'"-��'"�.@�L24��%JJ%. �.@�. "6*%�"�!*�*"�@� -% M�*.�>"J)�)".)J"�"N)"#%" &% M�>.�"J"'' "''�% �*>"�<%*?�.@�!� *��<#�A�'"&�#"�'*�KJ"�>.�'% MF��'�#"&.��" -"-�K?�*>"�(%#"&*.#�.@����� �!"#$%&"'O��PQ�9������	���
���R>"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3��.�'% M�@.#��"�J*>�(%$%'%. �>�'�)�#* "#"-�=%*>�<%*?�.@�!� *��<#�A�'*�@@�� -�"J"&*"-�J"�-"#'>%)�*.�-"$"J.)�&.JJ�K.#�*%$"�)J� '�@.#�'*#�*"M%&�JJ?�% $"'*% M�%*'�. "6*%�"�!*�*"�@� -% M�.@�L24��%JJ%. �% *.�J�'*% M�% @#�'*#�&*�#"�%�)#.$"�" *'�@.&�'"-�. �>"J)% M�)".)J"�"N)"#%" &% M�>.�"J"'' "''�*.�'"&�#"�>.�'% M�� -�*.�S"")�&.��� %*?�')�&"'�'�@"�� -�>"�J*>?�@.#��JJ�<%*?�#"'%-" *'O��
9T�������U �V� ��#?�E1F�E720F�*>"�<.� *?�W.�#-�.@�!�)"#$%'.#'��))#.$"-�.@�@.#��J%A"-�&..#-% �*%. �� -�&.��� %&�*%. �=%*>�<%*?�"J"&*"-�J"�-"#'�� -�'*�@@�. �*>"�%''�"�.@�>.�"J"'' "''�*>#.�M>���ENE�<.��%**""�.#�<.� *?X<%*?�<..#-% �*%. �<.��%**""O�R>"�<.��%**""�% &J�-"'�*=.��"�K"#'�.@�*>"�!� *��<#�A�W.�#-�.@�!�)"#$%'.#'F�*>"�D�?.#�� -�Y%&"6D�?.#�.@�*>"�<%*?�.@�!� *��<#�AF�� -�'*�@@�@#.��K.*>�Z�#%'-%&*%. 'O��[ �\.$"�K"#�E7E7F�*>"�<.� *?�"'*�KJ%'>"-�*>"��.�'% M�@.#��"�J*>�(%$%'%. �*.�K#% M�*.M"*>"#���&.�J%*%. �.@�)�#* "#'�� -�#"'.�#&"'�@.&�'"-�. �)#"$" *% M�� -�" -% M�>.�"J"'' "''�=%*>% �*>"�<.� *?O�!*�@@�@#.��*>"��.�'% M�@.#��"�J*>�(%$%'%. �K"M� ��**" -% M�� -�'�)).#*% M�*>"�<.� *?X<%*?�<..#-% �*%. �<.��%**""�% �("&"�K"#�E7E7O��R>"�<�J%@.# %��!*�*"�K�-M"*�@.#�@%'&�J�?"�#�/]̂ 3�E26EE�% &J�-"-�L24��%JJ%. �.@�. "6*%�"�@� -% M�@.#�*>"�<%*?�.@�!� *��<#�A�*.�>"J)�)".)J"�"N)"#%" &% M�>.�"J"'' "''�=%*>% �*>"�<%*?F�� -�% $"'*�% �=�?'�*>�*�&#"�*"�J�'*% M�% @#�'*#�&*�#"�%�)#.$"�" *'�� -�%�)#.$"-�.�*&.�"6@.&�'"-�&.JJ�K.#�*%. 'O�!*�*"�J"M%'J�*%$"�"N)"&*�*%. '��''.&%�*"-�=%*>�*>%'�@� -% M��J'.�% &J�-"-���'*�*"-�-"'%#"�@.#�% &#"�'"-�� -�-.&��" *"-�&.JJ�K.#�*%. �K"*="" �<%*?�.@�!� *��<#�A�� -�<.� *?�.@�!� *��<#�A�'*�@@�� -�"J"&*"-�J"�-"#'�. �*>"�%''�"�.@�>.�"J"'' "''O���,@*"#�#"&"%$% M�-"*�%J"-�% @.#��*%. ��K.�*�*>"��$�%J�KJ"�@� -% M�� -�% *" -"-�)�#).'"'�.@�*>"�#"'.�#&"'�% �*>"�@�JJ�.@�E7E2F�<%*?�'*�@@�&.JJ"&*"-�&.��� %*?F�'*�S">.J-"#F�� -�"J"&*"-�J"�-"#�% )�*�. �*>"�).*" *%�J��'"'�.@�*>"�@� -% MO�[ ��--%*%. �*.�*>%'�% )�*�M�*>"#% MF�<%*?�'*�@@�� -�"J"&*"-�.@@%&%�J'�-%'&�''"-�).*" *%�J�% $"'*�" *�'*#�*"M%"'�=%*>�<.� *?�"J"&*"-�.@@%&%�J'�� -�'*�@@�*>#.�M>�*>"�<.� *?X<%*?�<..#-% �*%. �<.��%**""O�

10



����������	���
�������	�����
�����
������������������
	�����
���������
��������������������
	��������������������������
��������	��
��
�����������������������������������������
	�������������
����������
���������	 �������
	����������!�����������
������"
�����������#���
��������
��$�������������	������
�
����	����
�����%&'������
���
������������������������	�
�����������	���������������������	��	����������������	������
����������
������!
�(��
�)	���������
!*�����������������
	��������������������	��
�������
	����������+�����
��
�
������
�������������������������
�
��������������������	��,-&.��+�����
��
������
���������������	������������������
!*����������
	����*
	��
���
�	���������������������������������������
�����������������/�-�.����	��	�����������������
��+�����
������
��������������
�������
����
���������������
�����������
�����
������������	������������
����������������������������	������������������0
!�1�������2�������
��������-�.�-012�./�����-3.���	�������

���
��	��
������*�����
������
���
!*�����������������
	��������������������	��
�������
	�������
)���������4	�����
��
���
������
���
�����������!���������(���
�	��
�����	���������������
���������!���������������+�����
��
����������������������������������
�������	�������������������������
������������
���
��������
���������	��������	������
���
������
����
����
	����������
�����
������������!�������
������	������
���������������������������������!�������	������������
������������������
����������	�������!������������������
�����������
	����������
	����1
����
��	������
����5	�	��������	����������������������������!���������������������������������������
����������������/��
!���������������!�����������
������������
��	��
�������������������	�)�����
���
���	�	��������	���������
����������������������������#�4	����
��$�
�
�����-#5$.�
�����������������������!
�(�������������������������!�����������
	����������������������
�������������������������������(�����������������!����
�������	�����������#5$��!���������+��������
�
��	�����������������������
��������
�
�	���������������!�����������������
��
���%6����������*�����
������	�������

���
��	��
����������*�����
������!
�(�
���
!*�����������������
	��������������������	��
�������
	�������
)�����!��������������	 ��
	����������������
�	��������
�������
����	��	�����������������
��+�����
������
�������������
�������������������������������������
���������	��������������������������	���,�������
�������������������	��	�����
�	��������	������������������
������
����������2���
����7	�������
����	�����������*����������������*���(������
��������+�����
������������� ���
��
�������������������
������
����������������������
��
���������������
����������+�������������������������������������
	������������������
����������
��	������
����������	��	�������
���
��
�����%&'������
�����
����
���
������������!�������	�����
��
�����
���
�����
������
�����
�������������
���
����
��*���������
������������!
	���������
�	����	���4	�������������
	�������!������	������	����
��
������
	�����!
	���������
����������������
������+��������
	�������������������������
	����!����!
�(�!��������������
�������������
�����	��
����������������
��������
����
����
������������������������
������!�����
������������
	�������89:;<=>=�

11



���������	
�	�����	
�����
�������	
�	�������	���	
����������������	����	��
����������������	�����	���	�������	������������
�����
������������
�����
���������	�����
��
������������������������
��
����������
����������������
��	
���������������
������	���� !"#�!$%�&#!'(&)�"*+�!''�,-()�+# -%#$( .�/&#�,-()0 �1+*1* #%�-$2# (3#$( � (+-2#�(*�4+#!(#����	
�����������5�678�5�	
������	
�
������������������
���	�	����������
����������	
�����
��9�:��������	����������������	��
���	���������
��	
���	���
�������	���������	����������	�������	
���������
����������������
���������������

�����
��	
���	���	����������	
�
�������
��������������������
��
����������
���9��:���������������
������
���	�����
�����
���������	��������
����
�����;����
������	�;�	������	
�	��������	������<�	������������������������������	
�����
�������������	����9�=���	������������	

�
�����������
��	�����	�����������������������
������
�����	�����������������������
5����
���	
���������	������	�����������
������������������	�������
��
���
���������	����������
������������
��
���	������	����������������	���	
�����������9���<�����	����5����
���	
����
��
��������	����
�������	�������	����������
����������������
��	
��������
����
��
�������������678������	���
��	������
����
��	�����
�	�;�	����	
���	����������������
�>?@�A���B!�C*D -$E�F-+ (G�'*H��	�����5����������
������������������������
�����
������������
������	����
�������	
�
�������
����	�����������������	�������
���	����������������	����	
	�������

�����
������	����������
��
��&*3#'#  $#  �(*�-$4*3#G�1DI'-4�I#$#"-( G�&#!'(&� #+2-4# G� &#'(#+G�!$%�&*D -$E.J��678���������������������
������������	������
�������	����	���
�������������������������������������������	���	�����������	������	���
�9��	�����
�	�;�	����	
���	���������� #4(-*$�KLMLNOPQ�%#"-$# �#3#+E#$4)� &#'(#+�! G�B&*D -$E�H-(&�3-$-3!'� D11*+(-2#����������������������������
����	���������������������	
������������
���������������	�����'#  �1#+ *$.J�������	
�����
�������	���	���
������R������������	���������	���
������	
�����������������%#2#'*13#$(�*"�STU, .�/&#�1+#%#2#'*13#$(� D11*+(�1+*1* #%�-$�(&#�,-()0 �1'!$�H-''������������������	�������
�5����	
���
5�������������
�����678���	
������	
�
������������������
���
��������
��9����
�����	����������	
�����	
�����������������	
�������
�����	��
����������	�������
���
������	���
	����
��
������
��������	�����������	���
�9�����:���������
������
����	
��
���������
��
���������������������	�����	
����	��������������	����	���	�������������	�����	
���������������
�����
�����������������
�����@��V���
���������9�:������
���	�����������������������������������������	���	����5����	�����5�������������	�����	��������
�������

������������������
��
����������
����������
����5����������
�����5���	������������5��������5�	
������	
�
�������
�9����
�����	����������
��
����������������������	��
����	���
������������������
������
���������	�����	�����	������	
�������	���	�	��	���������	��	
����	�����
��
��	
�������������
�	�����
������������������	������	��������
����
�����;����
������	�;�	������	
�	�����<�	������9��WXYZY[XZ\�]̂_Z[̀�:��������
�����������
	
��	�����	���	�����	���������	������
��	
������
�������������9�����	�	���7�	����������	����������
����	��������������
����
�������������������������	
�	���������������
������
���	
��;����
������	�;�	������	
�	�����<�	�������

12



����������	
�	���������������	���������������������� �!�����"���##�$%�������������&�'�$���$����%�(���)��##�$%�����*������ ���+�$���$$��$�����*���������������� ���%��,,������+�#��%�������$,�����-*��.��/��#�0�����.$�1���(���2������$����/�+����*��)���))�$���*��%�(���)2�����#��%%���������##�$%�������%���+���$$��$�*������������������������������������� �!����3"���2����������&�45)��%���$(�,������$�%�,��*�2������������%���,$�����*���������������/���-*����������)�$���$�*�)����+�����*��.��/���%�.����/�+��������+�#�$�����5)��������#���$(�,������$�%�,��*�2������������%���,$�����*���������������/������67��		�8�79:�;��%/�<�$$�� ���2���0�$(�,���3�$�,��$��=��>����8�8�79:�.�$����?��'���,��� �.����/��%2�����$���(��@##�,�$�
13



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,��%-.�� /�01%-/#" 2'�!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%3 �45678�9:9;976<��	��=�>���?))#3$"�?�" /�" *�*3�@�.A% /"#�,��%-.�!"#$%&"'�?B#""�" *�C�������D
����E�.�F9G�F<FF��H�>����������>����I�J��?))#3$"�� ���" /�" *�*3�*1"��B#""�" *�K%*1�@�.A% /"#�,��%-.�!"#$%&"'G�03 *#�&*�L3M�FF@6NN5G��*�� �� &1� B"/���3� *�3A�OF<PGQ<<G�*3�)#3$%/"�)'.&13'3&%�-��''"''�" *�� /��/3)*%3 �'�))3#*�'"#$%&"'G�� /���*13#%R"�*1"�(%#"&*3#�3A����� �!"#$%&"'�*3�"S"&�*"�*1"��B#""�" *M��TU�>������	���
���V1"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�4�!(8�#"&3��" /'�*1"�W3�#/��))#3$"�� ���" /�" *�*3�� ��B#""�" *�K%*1�@�.A% /"#�,��%-.�!"#$%&"'�4@�.A% /"#8�*3�)#3$%/"�A3#�)'.&13'3&%�-��''"''�" *�� /��/3)*%3 �'�))3#*�'"#$%&"'M�V1"��B#""�" *�%'�&3 '%'*" *�K%*1�*1"�0�-%A3# %��(")�#*�" *�3A�!3&%�-�!"#$%&"'�40(!!8��� /�*"�A3#�&3� *%"'�*3��� �B"�*1"�X#%$�*"�?/3)*%3 �?B" &.�Y"%�Z�#'"�" *�X#3B#���4X??YX8M�@�.A% /"#�1�'�#"&"%$"/�% &#"�'"/�#"A"##�-'�A#3���!(�*3�)#3$%/"�#"-�*"/�)'.&13'3&%�-��''"''�" *'�'"#$%&"'�K1%&1�K%--�"S&""/�*1"��$�%-�Z-"�Z�/B"*�A3#�*1"�&�##" *�*"#�G�� /�%'� 3*�"S)"&*"/�*3�A% �-%R"��'��� .��/3)*%3 �'"#$%&"'��'�Z�/B"*"/�A3#M�?'���#"'�-*G���Z�/B"*��3/%A%&�*%3 �%'�#"&3��" /"/M��
>[�������\]̂�_̀abcd�̀ef�g]bcfĥeij�k"#$%&"'�4,0!8�(%$%'%3 �3A��!(��� �B"'�*1"�#"'3�#&"�A��%-.��))#3$�-�)#3&"''�*3�/"*"#�% "�K1"*1"#���A��%-.�%'��))#3$"/�*3�Z"B% ��/3)*%3 �)#3&""/% B'M�@�.A% /"#�)#3$%/"'��!(�K%*1�&3 *#�&*"/�)'.&13'3&%�-��''"''�" *�'"#$%&"'��'���l".�&3�)3 " *�3A�*1"�,0!�#"'3�#&"�A��%-.��))#3$�-�)#3&"''M���m �m&*3Z"#�7NG�F<F7G�*1"�W3�#/��))#3$"/���#" "K% B��B#""�" *�K%*1�@�.A% /"#G��'% B�X??YX�A� /% B��--3&�*"/�Z.�0(!!�*3�&3� *.�&1%-/�K"-A�#"��B" &%"'G�A3#�)#";� /�)3'*;�/3)*%3 �'"#$%&"'� ""/"/�A3#�#"'3�#&"�A��%-%"'��))#3$"/�A3#��/3)*%3 �3A���&1%-/�% �*1"�&1%-/�K"-A�#"�'.'*"�M����
������(�#% B�,n�F<F7;FF�*3�/�*"G�@�.A% /"#�1�'�)#3$%/"/�6F�)'.&13'3&%�-��''"''�" *'G�� /��!(�1�'�#"A"##"/�Q��//%*%3 �-�#"'3�#&"�)�#" *'�A3#�*1"'"�'"#$%&"'M�?-'3�/�#% B�*1%'�)"#%3/G�@�.A% /"#�1�'�A�&%-%*�*"/�*1"�&3�)-"*%3 �3A�9��/3)*%3 '�� /�% %*%�*"/�)#3&""/% B'�A3#�� 3*1"#M��o �3#/"#�*3�&3 *% �"��/"p��*"�)'.&13'3&%�-��''"''�" *�'"#$%&"'�*3�A�&%-%*�*"�#"'3�#&"�A��%-.��))#3$�-'G�� /�% �-%B1*�3A���#"-"$� *�/"&#"�'"�% �*1"� ��Z"#�3A�A% �-%R"/�X??YX�

14



���������	
��
��
�	���	������	�
���	���	�

��	��	������	�
	����
�	��	�
	���

�
���	�
	��
���
��	����	������
	���	�
	����
�	��	�����������	���
���
���	��
���
�	��	�
	�����
�
�	�
���
	 ��
	!"�	#"##�	��	����
�����	�
	����
��	$�	�
��
�����	�
	%&&'%	����
�	���������	��	
��
��
�	���������	������(�������	�
�
	��	��	����
	��	�
	��
����	�����	����
��		)*+,+-*,.	/01,-2	�
	���

�
��	����	���	�
3���
	�	�
�	����������	��	4�����	5
�
���	6�����	�
	4���	'
�����
	6�����	&�������	7'6&8	�����	���	%&&'%	������������	��	�
�
	������
�	��	�
	$����	������
�	69	#"#:;##	���	����
��	����	����	�
	�����
�	<������
�	6�����	�
����
�	���

�
���		4�������	=��	##<!>>?�	&�
���
��	@�
	;	<������
�	6�����	�
����
�	A	%����������	&��
���
���	;	!>#:""	;	B#??C	;	<4D4!	;	"???""!:	A	%&&'%	;	!>#:""	;	B#??C	;	<4D4!	;	"::E""B?			F2G,2HI*-	J.,+	K.H0H+2LMN	:�$	74����

����
	�
���	O	���
��P	4��������	�������8	&�������	�������	�
����
�	��
���
	������
�	���	��������	�����	��
	�������	���������
	��	���
����	�
	�
3���
�	�����
����	���	����
�����	��	�
����
��	���	���������
�	�
	��������	����
��	��	�����
�����			FQR0*22HS	RTU	'����	V������	�����	�
����
�	���
����		WH-X00H+SHS	RTU	4�����	 �	%��������	4�����	&������������
	@����
�		Y22,-Z0H+2MU	,	 4�������	=��	##<!>>?	&�
���
��	@�
	<������
�	6�����	�
����
�	�	 &�V;#>	##<!>>?	&�
���
��	<������
�	

15



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-#./-#&"�("$"0-)�" *�1-�#2�34567�898:865;��	��<�=���>?�#2�,-#./-#&"�@  -$�*%- �� 2�A))-#*� %*B�>&*�C-�*D�E#-F#���!"#$%&"'�>F#""�" *'�G�������H
����I�B�J8K�J;JJ��L�=����������=����M�N��6O�>))#-$"��F#""�" *�J5,5P5J�?%*D�Q--2?%00�R" *#�0�R-�'*�% �*D"���-� *�-/�ST9;K;;;�/-#�)#-$%'%- �-/�*D"�,-#./-#&"�@  -$�*%- �� 2�A))-#*� %*B�>&*�>2�0*K�(%'0-&�*"2�,-#."#�)#-F#���'"#$%&"'K�� 2���*D-#%U"�*D"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�(%#"&*-#�*-�"V"&�*"�*D"��F#""�" *'�� 2�*�."�#"0�*"2��&*%- 'K��'�#"&-��" 2"2�WB�*D"����� �!"#$%&"�(")�#*�" *�(%#"&*-#X�� 2����JO�>))#-$"��F#""�" *�J5,55TY�?%*D�!� *��R#�U�R-� *B�A//%&"�-/�Z2�&�*%- �% �*D"���-� *�-/�S4;;K;;;�/-#�)#-$%'%- �-/�,-#./-#&"�@  -$�*%- �� 2�A))-#*� %*B�>&*�B-�*D�)#-F#���'"#$%&"'K�� 2���*D-#%U"�*D"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�(%#"&*-#�*-�"V"&�*"�*D"��F#""�" *'�� 2�*�."�#"0�*"2��&*%- 'K��'�#"&-��" 2"2�WB�*D"����� �!"#$%&"�(")�#*�" *�(%#"&*-#O��[\�=������	���
���]D"�,-#./-#&"�("$"0-)�" *�1-�#2�3,(17�-$"#'""'�*D"�>2�0*K�(%'0-&�*"2�,-#."#K�� 2�C-�*D�)#-F#���'"#$%&"'�/� 2"2�*D#-�FD�*D"�,-#./-#&"�@  -$�*%- �� 2�A))-#*� %*B�>&*�3,@A>7O�]D"�,(1�%'�#"̂�%#"2�*-�&- 2�&*���&-�)"*%*%$"�)#-&�#"�" *�)#-&"''�/-#�)#-F#���'"#$%&"'��*�0"�'*�- &"�"$"#B�8�B"�#'O�,(1�%'�#"̂�"'*% F�!� *��R#�U�R-� *B�1-�#2�-/�!�)"#$%'-#'�31-�#27��))#-$�0�-/�*D"��F#""�" *'�#"0�*"2�*-�0-&�0�?-#./-#&"�'"#$%&"'��2�% %'*"#"2�WB�*D"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�3�!(7�,(1K�% &0�2% F�*D"��F#""�" *�?%*D�!RRAZ���" 2% F�*D"�&- _̀ab_cd�efdg̀afbh�biagdhdj���
=k�������A �>�F�'*�J8K�J;J6l�*D"�1-�#2�%''�"2���m"̂�"'*�/-#�E#-)-'�0�3mnE7�*-�)#-&�#"�,@A>�)#-F#���'"#$%&"'�� 2���*D-#%U"2�*D"��!(�,(1�'*�//�*-� "F-*%�*"��F#""�" *'�?%*D�*D"�'"0"&*"2�'"#$%&"�)#-$%2"#'O����R-� *B�'*�//�*-F"*D"#�?%*D���6J:�"�W"#�"$�0��*%- �&-��%**""�"$�0��*"2�� 2�'&-#"2�66�)#-)-'�0'O�R-� *B�'*�//�&"#*%/%"2�*D"�'&-#% F�)#-&"''�� 2�#"&-��" 2"2��?�#2'�W"���2"�?%*D�'"#$%&"�)#-$%2"#'��'�/-00-?'+�����!"#$%&"�>#"��6��A ":!*-)�A)"#�*-#�!"#$%&"�>#"��J��>2�0*�o�(%'0-&�*"2�,-#."#�E#-F#���!"#$%&"'� !"#$%&"�>#"��5�C-�*D�E#-F#���!"#$%&"'� !"#$%&"�>#"��8��p�B-//�>$"#'%- �!"#$%&"'�

16



����������	
������������� ������������������
����������� ������������� ��������������������������
��� �!�������"�"#��������!�����$���%�������  �&���������'�%���(����%���������� �!!��������
��������� ����
��))������$��������%���$���!���
���� �!!�� ��*'�+�#��"�""��)��������,+�������!����%��%������������������,+�����&����
�������������&����������
'  �

)'�����'����'� �!�
-�.�$��������
��)��%�
���$���!���
�%�/������� �!&�����-��01234565�7%��
��� ����
��/� ��&��/����
�%�/��%�����%�
���+��)��$���!���
����%��%������)���
�!����!�����������%�����  �'����������)�������+�!�������� �!!���&��)��!�� ��!��
'��
��� �'���$��!&��+!��������
����"���������%�8'�����
��)����&��$��!��9����!������������$
����"���8'�������)����&��$��!��9���� ����������������!�������%���)�'��8'�����
��)����&��$��!��9����!��
'������
	���
�$���������))� ��/���

��)�
��/� ������!&��+��
-�����%�����%���$���!�������%�����%�
���������$
������$����������%���$�� ��
��:���;<�=>?@><A;BC�DEF=G�FHH=EIFJ�F<�AK>�LE@BAMN<�<AFBGF=G�;BG>OB;P;QFA;EB�FBG�;B<@=FBQ>� ��'
�
����������� �'���-�R���%��&�
���!'�'�������!��)� ������%�
������ ��
�������
��������)����$���!���
����%���%���&'��� ��$�� ��
�����%�'$%�������
�����)�������%����%�����!
����� ��������
��)��$���!���
�'����(��$��%���'��+�R���&������������ �����$���!������!&����
-��� �'
���%�
��$���!�����
�!'�'���+�����)� �����:����� �!!���
��%�
��$���!��������&&��/���'������%�����!
��
����)����
���%��&��$��!� ��� �����'�-��'��+��'�
�������S�
	�T���$�!����
��))�%�/������� ��
'��������������FHH=EI>�AK>�FO>BG>G�GEQ@O>BA�@HEB�ME@=�DEF=G<N�G;=>QA;EBU����)��%��)�'��V�W������
������V"W���8'�����������&&��/��������%����%�������V"W���������&�� �

���/���X'� %�
�������
-��Y6121Z623�[\]2Ẑ�7%�����	)�� ��R���/�����������&&���'���+�� ��)��!'������� ������)'��
��%�����	)�� ����/���&!����������&��$��!�
��/� �
-�7%�
���$���!���
����������
'����������������������������_'��� ������'����-������� ��.�-�"̀� à̀"�������������������
�������R���9b���c�+,��d� �e�̀f#a��,��"��������� ��.�-�"̀�`̀�f��������'(��'��+��))� ���)���' �����������R���9b���c�+,��d� �e�̀f#a��,��"�����ĝh2̂ij6Z�k321�l3i\i1̂m5n��-���V�+��!� �� ���!+e�S�$���������	)�� �W�7%���� �!!�������$���!���
�&��/����)'����$������/�� ��� ���!� ��&&���'���+��+�&��/����$����� ���R���&���� �&����&��$��!�
��/� �
�����'�� �!!'���+�)�����' �����������������$������ �����!�����  '&�����
-����gop\6̂̂iq�p4r�S���+�T����
��:'!������/� �
����� ����

17



�������������	
�������������������������������������� �!""�� ���#$$%�&���$'��%� �������()**+,(�-../.*()0!�(1��!2�34!1�5/.6��71�889.+:�;� ��������.*)*<*.�=���>����� ����������3 1�?�:��� �@7/.,�.*)*<*.�=���>����� ������������ �@7/.,�.*)**+,�1��!2�
18



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-��� %*.�/#-0#��'�12345�67686439��	��:�;���<=><<?"&-��" @�AB�#@�C#-��,D?E�?F/�G�������H
����I� "�=J�<9<<��K�;����������;������� 45�A))#-$"�?"&-��" @"@�AB�#@'�C#-��*L"�,-MM"&*%$"�-C�?"'�M*'�� @�E$%@" &"8N�'"@�1,D?E5�O $"'*�" *'�?"P�"'*�C-#�/#-)-'�M'�1?F/5�)#-&"''Q���<5�A))#-$"�A0#""�" *�N"*B"" �,%*.�-C�!� *��,#�R�� @�,-� *.�-C�!� *��,#�R�#"M�*"@�*-�,D?E�C� @% 0�� @�&- *#�&*��@�% %'*#�*%- Q��35�(%#"&*�*L"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*-�#"*�# �*-�*L"�S-�#@�- �I� "�<2J�<9<<�B%*L�C% �M�,D?E�&- *#�&*��B�#@'Q�� @��65�(%#"&*�*L"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*-�#"*�# �- �-#�N"C-#"�F"N#��#.�<2J�<9<3�B%*L�� ��)@�*"�- �*L"�"$�M��*%- �-C�*L"�,D?E�?F/�)#-&"''�� @�&-��� %*.�'*�T"L-M@"#�)#-&"''U���VW�;������	���
���XL"�,-MM"&*%$"�-C�?"'�M*'�� @�E$%@" &"8N�'"@�1,D?E5�O $"'*�" *'�%'�N-*L���C� @% 0��-@"M�� @����-$"�" *�@"'%0 "@�*-�%�)#-$"�*L"�B"MM8N"% 0�-C�&-� *.�#"'%@" *'U��XL"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�1�!(5J�% �)�#* "#'L%)�B%*L�*L"�,%*.�-C�!� *��,#�R�BL-�'L�#"'�% �*L"�C� @% 0�-C�,D?E�)#-0#��'J�#"P�"'*'�*L"�S-�#@�-C�!�)"#$%'-#'��))#-$"�*L"�#"&-��" @"@��B�#@'�C#-��*L"�,D?E�?F/J��'�B"MM��'�� �A0#""�" *�N"*B"" �*L"�,%*.�� @�,-� *.�-C�!� *��,#�R�@"C% % 0�#-M"'��''-&%�*"@�B%*L�*L"�Y-% *�C� @% 0�-C�*L"�,D?E�)#-0#��'U�����XL%'��"�-��M'-�-�*M% "'�*L"�'&-#% 0�)� "M�)#-&"''�� @�'*�CC���*L-#%R"@�C� @% 0��@Y�'*�" *'�M"�@% 0�*-�*L"�#"&-��" @"@��B�#@'U�F% �MM.J�*L"��"�-�% &M�@"'�@"*�%M"@�� �M.'%'�-C�*L"��))M%&�*%- '�#"&"%$"@�� @�*L-'"�#"&-��" @"@�C-#�C� @% 0U����
;Z���������O �<947J�*L"�S-�#@�-C�!�)"#$%'-#'��))#-$"@���)L�'"@8% ��))#-�&L�*-�*#� '%*%- �C#-��*L"�L%'*-#%&�M�,-��� %*.�/#-0#��'�C� @% 0��-@"M�*-���#"'�M*'8N�'"@�&-MM"&*%$"�%�)�&*��-@"MU��AC*"#�"[*" '%$"�#"'"�#&LJ�� @�% �&-MM�N-#�*%- �B%*L���B%@"�$�#%"*.�-C�'*�T"L-M@"#'�C#-����M*%)M"�'"&*-#'J�*L"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�1�!(5�,-��� %*.�/#-0#��'�C� @% 0�)#-&"''�B�'�*#� 'C-#�"@�% *-��� "B��-@"M� ��"@�*L"�,-MM"&*%$"�-C�?"'�M*'�� @�E$%@" &"8N�'"@�1,D?E5�O $"'*�" *'U�F#-��*L"�N"0%  % 0J�*L"#"�B�'�� �

19



��������	
����������������������������	������	���������������������������������������
���������	��
���	����������������������� �����������!�������	�"���	��	���!��������������	���	���������������	���������!�������	#���������������!���������������������������	 �!��	$�������	��
��	�������� ������������������������%���� ����������	����& ���
��'�������(�����!���������������� �������������	 !�������������������)�����*���
�����������'�����������������
��	)�����+�(���������������������������	��� ���	����� !���������	 ������	�	��������������������������������
������������� ����
�������
���������
���������	������	��������!���	����������������
�
����������������	 !���� ������
��������������
�����������	���	��
��������!�����������������������	���������������������������������������	����������������������������	������������������������,'-��	���������������������	����������������!��������	��������
� �����������������	����������	��������	�������������	��
��������������� �����	������������������	����
�������
��
���	��������������!����������������������	��
�����������������	�����'���������	�	��	���������"���	��'������������	���!�������������
���������	 �	����������	���������������!��
�
��������������	������	��������!��������	����������� ���������������	������������������ ���
	�������	�"���	��	���!��������������	#����������������������������������	 !���"���	��'�������������������&!�����������"���	�����������	����&!����.������������
�������������!������&!��� �	
���!����'� ��%�����!���	���������������������������	 !������	��������"���	�������	���������&!����.����������	��
��������������������������	�������&!��������������������������-����
�������������!�������������������	��������������������������������	����	������������ ���	��������	��	�������	 !���"���	������
������������� �����	 !,'-��	�������'�����������������
������������������	�	����������������
���
����� ���������	�������������������������!��������������
�����,'-��	�������������������	������!�������!��'�������(������������������ ���������	����	������� ������$����	�������������������������������������
���������������������"���	���� ����!��	'����� ��/0/1����	��
�����"���	��'������������	'�������(���!���������������������������������������)���� ��2�/0/1�������
������������������������������!������������	�����%���������	����
�����3�-����������
��������������	�����"���	��4�����!/5�/0//�������
����������	���!��������������	��	���� !��������������������%����	�		�������"���	������������	��!�.�����
������������������������������������������������������������

20



���������	
���������������
�������������������������
������	
�����	��������� �����������������������������������
�
����������
������	� !�	�����	� �����	� �	������"����
	����������	��!���
���	� �	��#$!%&&!'''�	����
��(����������	� ��)�	�����������*���
���(	������"�����(��+����	�	���������	� ����#,!'-'!'''����������������
�����	���������	� �����������
����!����	��!�������� ���*���
!�*	���������	�	����!���� ������ �������������*������./�	����
������������(0�.���)�
�����
��
��������

�������
	����	��������1����
��������
	+�
�*����������	)������������	�������
!��
����	���!��������	�������������������	����
���"������	
����	�����������������*���
��������������������,'2�)��	��������������	����
������
������ �����3���	����������������	
���	���	��������!�*	������
���	�	����	��	�	+��	��������(0�.�(���	�	��!��������	��!��� 	��!������ ����4�*	����*���5����	��
��6�#,7,!'''�*�
����������)����������������������	�	)����������	�
�����898:;<=98�<>�<�;?@=A<;=�B:=C�D9@:?A>�E?F@;:G�<@8�<8H:@:>=9A98�IJ�KDLM>������
�����N�� ������(����O	)	
	��!��
�����	� ������������	�	
����	)����������������/�	��������������������������� ��������� 	� �P���Q���6�R������������#S&S!'''�*�
����������)�������������������������	�	)�������������	������������������ ���������� ������
�*�������	)�
�
��	���@F=A:=:?@�TF@8:@U�TA?H�=C9�VVVM>�WXY�ZA?;9>>[��"��������	�	
�������3"O�����(	������"�����(��+�
��������	�	
��������������������
������������*�
����	�	
������*	���	��� �	��!�����
�������!����������������/�	��������������	���������������	����
!�
	 �	�	������	���������
�����
�*����
��������������	�����*	����������
�����������������	�������	����
���
����)	��
���
������*	�������\����!������	�����

	
�������������	�	� �
�

	��
�*�������)	����	���������
�	��*	�������(0�.����
���	� �����!�*	���]$����	�	� ����������	�����

	
��������������	�	�
������
�*��)���̂&-�����	�	����
����������!���
���	� ������������

���
��	����	�� �����������	������*�������������!�*�
���)�������*�	���	�������������	���������������
�!��	)��
�!�����������	������������� �������������	
�
������������������
�*�������)	����*	��������� ���������
	
��������	�	� ������
��������
���	� �����	��*�
�����	������
	
������������_̀ abcded���"���������������
��
f�����	���������	���������������,̂-�����	���	��
������
���	� �%-��� ��	+��	��
�*��������	)�������

��������������	� ��	��
!������
���	� �����(0�.�����	�	��
!�*	��������������#,S!,%&!7-̂�*����������/��
�
����

21



������������	
������������	����������	��������
���������������	��	
������������	���������������������������������� ���������������������������������������	����������������������������������������������	���	���������� �	
���������������
�	������	�����!���	������������������ �	
��	�����������	�������"���������#$%&��	�����	��������������������������'	���(�	
������		�����������������������	
������������"��������)�*+�����,��������

	��������	������-�,�������)��+������	��������	��������	
��.������/�����������������	����		������*� ������!����.������/�������	�������
	��	�����(��� ������!��������

����.�������������,�	�����0�������	�������,1������������������������#��(�	
�,�����#��!������.����	����������.�����������������.��������������������������	����	
�����%20��3����������	
������������������

	��������������	�����������
	������(������	������(����4��	���������.��������
	�������%20���������������%������������

	��������������	������(�����������	���(��������������	������������������	��������	�����������������	������(���	����������������
	������	������(�������������������������
�	�����	��������	���(���������	������	����������������������	��������������������������	����.�����	�
�����	
��������������������������	������(���.������������������������������������	
������������	��	����������������.��������������	�������	����������������	���������������	
�����%�.����0�������������	������ ��3�����.�����������	����������������(�����%20��%�.���������������	�����!����(�
����������������#$%&�#	�����	����56�����.��������������������������������0������������������������	�������������	���������	������	���	�����#$%&��	�����	���	
������		�������������	������������.����
	���	����(������������.�����.���������������* �	
�������������������.����7���������������	���	
�����#$%&��	�����	�����8� �	
������������������	
����	�����7�������������	���	���	���	
�����#$%&��	�����	�����6* �	
����������������.�����,�����#��!�#	���(����� �	
�������������������9����7����������	����	
��� �:���4��;������	��������0�	���	
�#	�	������������������	������������.�(�������	�
�����	
���������������	�
����������(�������������0�����%�.��������,�	�����0�	������������
�����������������.����.�����	���������
	��	�����	������������������	�������������
���(���������������7�������������	�'����.�����
	����������
�������������������������������������	��������.��������(�	
�����#$%&�;�.����������		������.����

22



���������	
���	����
����
���������������������	�������������������������������	������������ ���������
����������	�����������������	��������	
��������	����������������	�����
����������	���������������������������	
��	��
�	�����������	�
�
���
����� !"�!#$�	
�������
���	�����	�������������	����	
��������%�
���
���������	
������������	���	������
����� !"���
����
��������	��������	
����������������	���	�����	��
�	������
������������
���	������$	
�������������
��
��������������������	
������
�������������	�����&������
��
�
������
������'(&��������	�������������	������	����	
��������	��	�����	�������	��)�*&������(�����������������
���������	���	����	
����������������	���������	���	����������	
+�	�����	��
������
��	�����������#�
��
��!������
�	��
������������������
�����	��
����� !"�	��	
�!#$��,��	��	����)��������������������	
�����	�����	��
���������
���	����	��	��	)���������
��	
��
��������	���	���	�����������	�����
������
�)��
������)����-	
	������	
�����
)��	���	���������
�	����������
��
��������	������	������)���
��
��������
�)�����������	������	��������	
��	����������
����	�	�����	�������������������)�������
������
)���
��
�������������	������
��	���	�	������	����
������������	
�	
	�)����������������	����������
����������
��
����	����
�.����������	������������������
����������	���	
���������
����	�	���	���
���������������������������
����	�	����	���������������� ��#�
��
���������
�	��
��	����	�����
����������	
���	
+����������	�������
��	�������	
���������	��	���
��	�	��	��������������������������	�	��������������
��������������
��������� !"��������
�/������������������	��������������
�	
�������	��
���������	�������	�	��������	���������
�)���
������������������
����	�	����	������	���� !"���
����
����������������	�����������	����	���������������	���������� !"���
����
��������	�������������
�����
������	���	
��0���
����1&'23�	
��������
��#	�������1&423������������	��������������
�����������
����	�	����������)�����������������	��������������
����	���������	�������������	
����������	��������������
���������
�� !"���
��
�������������
	��������
��
��	����
����
�����14523��������	�	��������������
	�����������
�� !"���
��
���������
����
������	
��	������������������
)������	��
������
������
����4552�������#����	��$����)�6��������������������
�����������
����	�	�����)��	��7��
���)�������)��	�����������������
���������������
��������4552�������#����	��$����)�6����������.52���������
��
�����
����	���������������	���6	�
�����8��������
�����������
����	�	����	������������������
��	���������������)�����������������������
��(�	������	����������
���������������������
��
�������	��������������������	
�������
��(�	������	�������
������
�
�������!������	
��"����
������
�����������)��������
����	�	����������

23



����������	�
����
���������������������
��������������
���������������
�������������������
�������	�
����
�������������������������
�������������������������������
��������
������������ �������������
��������������������
������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������������������������
�����������
��
�������������������
�������������������������
��
��
��������������������������������
������
�����!"��������������������
���������������#���������������������������!"���
�����$%������
������������
�����������&'('�)"$������������������*�����������
������������+���������,�������
���������������
���������������-�
�
��������������������������������������������
���
�������������������������
�����������������������������
�����������.��*������'"��'%'$�����/����������������
�������������&()�%%%�������������0.12�����������
������������
�������������������������������������')3��������������
�������4������������&()�%%%�����������
������������+���������,�������
��������������������������
�������������
��
��������+���������,�������
��������������������������������������
��������
����&55"�$")����
������������������/�������������67��������������������������������������+������,����������������8�����������
�������������������
���������
������������������������������+������������������������,���������
��� 9:;<=�>?@�A>;�B=CD>;�E=:FG�������HIJKL�IM�NOPQKRSTIKT�LSKQUVQL�TVJMM�VI�UJKRQ�IOV�WOP�VI�XYZY[\\\]�MKÎ �_̀ ab�������������������������������������������c���d�*�����+��
���������
�������������1�e�����&)f)�%%%����������
���
����������������������������
�����������/�������������������������������
�������������*�������������������������������0.12�����������*�����+��
������������0���������/����
���
�&)%%�%%%�����������������
�&5$)�%%%����������������&f)�%%%���
���������������
������
�
����������������*�����+��
��������������������g���/��
�����������
����������������������������������������������������������
�������������HJTQL�OPIh�ViQ�jjjkT�JlJKL�VI�_Î ÔhSVm�HKSLnQT[�TVJMM�JKQ�KQUÎ Q̂hLShn�������������0���������/����
�����������������*�����+��
�������������������������&5)%�%%%�����67������������������������,����������������8�������
�������������������
������������������������������*�����+��
����������0���������/����
����&56!�)%%��������������0�������*�����0��o��
����������������������������������
�����

�����������0��������
�����������������
���0�����
����
�������������������������
�1�e�����
���������������������������������������
����������������������������
�����
�����������������
�����������

�������������
����������
��p*q��������0�������*�����0��o������������������0������p�����*����
�q�������������������
������0.12�

24



���������	
��
������
���������
��
������
������
����
��������
��������������
����
��
����
���
������
��
�������
��
���������
�	


����
 ��!"

 
#�����
#����

��
���
��
��$�������
����������
���
�%������&
����
����
�������
��
%��%
�%�
���	
'
��
�������
��
��
��
�����
��������
�(
����
��
�
(������
(������$&
���
����
��
����
�
���������
��
�������
��
%��������
�(
����
��������
��
����������
(��
��
�)�	

*������
��
����
���
���
(��������
��
����
�+,
���������&
-*.
��
��������
�
���������%
%��������
�(
����
�+,
������	
/�
%��������
����
������
(����$
���
������
�����
��
��
���������
�������
������
��
��
��
�+,&
��
�+,
�������
���
������
����(&
��������
���
��������
���������&
���
��
�������������
���%���
������
��
�+,&
���
������&
��
����
�(
���$
���
�����������
������	

������������
(��
�����
��
����
(��
��
�)�
�����
����
����
�
��������	

+����$
����
�
�0����
(���
���$������&
��������&
���((&
��
1����
���
��
����
�(
*����
���2
����
�������	

+����
������


,�
��
�+,&
����������
��%
���
345
���$���
����
��
�����
��
�������������&
���
(����
����
(������
��������
����
�
���
��
6��
78&
7977	
+��������
(����
(������
��������&
���((
����
���$
����
������
��
����
�����
�(
���$
��
������
������
�(
��
%����
���
(����	
���
�����%�
��
��
1����
���
��
����
�������&
���((
����
�������
���:���
��������
�������
����
��������
������	



;<=>=?<>@
AB!>?�
����
C�%������
������
��
(����
�������
������
D����
+����	
�����
�(
(����
EFG
HIJ
KJLH
MFKHGNMHOKP
MQMRJ
SORR
TJ
MFKHOKPJKH
UVFK
HIJ
WFNGXYZ
NVVGF[NR
FE
HIJZJ
(����
��
��
+\
7977:74
�����	
/�
+�����
\��
7977:74
����
,������
1����
��
]̂&8_4&̀99&
�(
�����
]_̂&̀99
��
������%�
(������
����
��
1����
��%������
�����%�
��
�
����������
��
���
345
0���
�������
��
���	

/�
����
�(
*����
���2
�����
������
�(
]a&989&999
(��
��
��������������
���
������
�(
��
����
C�%�����
���������
����
�
������
��
6��
78&
7977&
��������
��
�����
��������
�����
������
��
]b&̀b4&̀99	


 �c>��d<?
e@>=
f@�B�=�g"h
a	9
���������%
-����
i
*�(��
7	9
���������
-������
	̂9
*���������
��%�������
b	9
.������
�������



25



���������	
	���
����	����������	��	��	�������������������	��������	�������� !""#$��%&��	����'����(�)�*	����������+���������,#-.  #/$#$��%&��	����0���	�	���(��������1�*�����	��������������2""3-4 #/"5&�3� ��**	���������6�	��7�1��	��*����8�9� ����������
��	������7�1��	��*����:��� ���������	����������7�1��	��*����;��� ��**	������<�����������**���	�����7�1��	��*����=��� ����**���������6�	��1�6�	9����	��9��1������7�1��	��*����>��� ����7�������1����*����?�7�����@�7�1��	��*����A�
26



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���,�*:.#%;�*%. �*.�!�<�%*�=�>�?=��@#� *�,))>%&�*%. �A.#���,B61�C� -% D�E�������F
����G� "�HI�J7JJ��K�9����������9����L�M��2N�,�*:.#%;"�*:"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3�*.�'�<�%*�� ��))>%&�*%. �A.#�=�>%A.# %��? *"#�D" &O�=.� &%>�. �:.�">"'' "''�/=�>�?=�3��.�">"''��.�'% D�,''%'*� &"�� -�B#"$" *%. �/��,B3���,B61�D#� *�A� -'�*.*�>% D�P1IJ41I117�. �<":�>A�.A�*:"�=. *% ����.A�=�#"�/=.=3�Q.�#-�� -�P1I7JHI270�. �<":�>A�.A�*:"�=.� *O�.A�!� *��=#�;R��JN�,�*:.#%;"��!(�*.�"S"&�*"�=�>�?=��'*� -�#-�&. *#�&*��D#""�" *'�A.#���,B61�A� -'�. �<":�>A�.A�*:"�=.=�� -�=.� *O�)" -% D�=.� *O�=.� '">�#"$%"T�� -��))#.$�>�.A�=�>�?=��'*� -�#-�A� -% D�&. *#�&*��D#""�" *'R���1N�,�*:.#%;"�*:"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*.�-"$">.)���U"�.#� -���.A�V -"#'*� -% D�/UWV3�T%*:�*:"�X�*'. $%>>"Y!� *��=#�;�=%*O�Z�=.� *O�=. *% ����.A�=�#"�/=.=3�Q.�#-�%-" *%AO% D��!(��'�*:"��-�% %'*#�*%$"�" *%*O�.A�*:"�=.=�A.#���,B61�D#� *�A� -'R�� -�� 4N�(%#"&*�*:"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*.�#"*�# �*.�*:"�Q.�#-�. �.#�<"A.#"�!")*"�<"#�J7I�J7JJ�T%*:�� �UWV�� -�� O�A% � &%�>�-.&��" *'�#">�*"-�*.�*:"��&&")*� &"�.A�*:"���,B61�D#� *�A� -'N���[\�9������	���
���W �("&"�<"#�2HI�J7J2I�*:"�=�>%A.# %���.�">"''�=..#-% �*% D�� -�C% � &% D�=.� &%>I� .T�] .T ��'�*:"�=�>%A.# %��? *"#�D" &O�=.� &%>�. ��.�">"'' "''�/=�>�?=�3I�#">"�'"-���̂.*%&"�.A�C� -% D�,$�%>�<%>%*O�/̂WC,3�A.#��.�">"''��.�'% DI�,''%'*� &"�� -�B#"$" *%. �B#.D#���_.� -�1�A� -% D�T%*:�')"&%A%&�A� -% D��>>.&�*%. '�A.#�-"'%D �*"-�&%*%"'I�&.� *%"'I�� -�=. *% ����.A�=�#"�/=.=3�" *%*%"'�*:#.�D:.�*�*:"�'*�*"N�̀:"�=.� *O�.A�!� *��=#�;�#"&"%$"-�� ��>>.&�*%. �.A�P1I7JHI270�� -�*:"�X�*'. $%>>"Y!� *��=#�;�=%*O�Z�=.� *O�=.=I�>.&�>>O�] .T ��'�*:"��.�'% D�A.#��"�>*:�B�#* "#':%)I�#"&"%$"-�� ��>>.&�*%. �.A�P1IJ41I117N�̀:"�=.=�Q.�#-��))#.$"-�.A���'% D>"�a.% *��))>%&�*%. �A.#���,B61�A� -% D�% �)�#* "#':%)�T%*:�*:"�=.� *ON�=�>�?=��%''�"-���'"#%"'�.A�#"b�%#"-�'*")'�A.#�'"&�#% D�A� -% D�% &>�-% D�)�#*%&%)�*%. �% �&.>>�<.#�*%$"�)>�  % D��""*% D'I�*:"�"S"&�*%. �.A���)�#* "#':%)��D#""�" *�<"*T"" �*:"�=.� *O�� -�=.=I�*:"�&.�)>"*%. �.A�����,B61�'*� -�#-��))>%&�*%. �*:�*�% &>�-"'���>.&�>�:.�">"'' "''��&*%. �)>� I�� -�"S"&�*%. �.A�'*� -�#-�A� -% D��D#""�" *'�<"*T"" �=�>�?=��� -�A� -% D�#"&%)%" *'N�,))#.$�>�.A�*:"�)#.).'"-�Q.�#-��&*%. '�T%>>��>>.T�*:"�=.� *O�*.�'"&�#"�<.*:�=.� *O�� -�

27



�����������	

��	���������
��	
������	��������������������������	�������������
���������������� !"#$�����
����������%������	����	�������������&����������������	���	��'���()�*

���*
��+���	��������	��	�����,���*-��.�)/0�1��	
���2�3	���-������4�506)7�8������9�:�	�������������
	'�*-�;��������;	���<�'�������=�
-�)>%�606)��?��������	�����
�����	�������	�����������������	���*
��+���	��������	����	�	����*-������	
����	�.������%����������3�������	���������������-�����
����������	����	���@�	����������
�1��@�:%���'�+��'��	�������	
����	�A����	����-������
��������
��������1�	
�A��:����@���������	���	�	
	*
��	����������������	

��	���������
�*
����	�����%���
����B�//���������������	���1����:%�)��
	���������������*�	������-C�����-�D����������'�������
	�����������00%000�	���57����������@������	

��	�����	�������������*-��EF�GHIGIHJKILMJF�NEMHF�IO�JEF�NJMJFPN�EIQFRFNN�GIGSRMJKIL�MN�HFGIHJFT�KL�JEF�UISNKLV�	���W�*	��X���
�������1�WX:�60)>������A��?���1�A?:�������������������Y�������������
���������?��������-����3	��	����,���������	��	

��	�������(�%06Z%)07�	�������[	�����

�C3	��	����,���-�2������-�������������	��	

��	�������(�%6/�%��0����

�������������������*���Y�������*-�=�����0%�6068��A��	����������������������	

��	����%��	
�A�������	����()70��

�����*���������������������������	�����������������*
�	�����	�������������	
���9���������*-�=�����0%�606/��������&��������������������*�
����������	
�������	��������
���������������������������������@������
����\�������-���������	��1�\��:%�����%�	����]̂ AX�)>���������&�������������	������*���������������������*�
�������	
�������	����	���	������������	
��������������������	�����������
����������������*-�	�*������	��������	��'��+����������������������
���������	
��	����	�
�����������	������������	���������������������������������������	
��	����	�
�������	��	�����������	��������������_�-����������9�����������
���B��̀3��	����	

-��	�������������������'���������
��	
%���	��%�	��������	
�����������������	�����������
�������a���̀���������������	��������	�	
������������	
�-�������
��������
	�����	���	�������9��	*
���������������������	�������������������������������������	��
-���	�����*-�����
��������	����]̂ AX�)>a���̀\��	*
�����	�����	������������
��'���
�����Y���������������
������������	�����	�����
�	������������
����������������*�������	������������
����a���̀@�������D�������	����������������	�������������	��	����������@��������
	��%�������	
���	���3	���-������3������50660�51�:%�	�����
��������	�
�'�*	����%���	��	��������%�	�����
���	

-������������	����a�	����̀����������������
��*�������������������������������������	�����������������������������
-���%���������������
�������������������	��%��	����
�	���	��'	-�����������������
���������	��������������������?���
��	
�����.�	���	�����������	�D�����������	��
�	������*���	
�'������������-%�'������	

�'	*
��*-��	
�A����=����	��
�	������*���������9���������������	�����	
�'������	���������*��'�������������	��
�	����	����
	������'������	�����'

�

28



����������	������
�������	���
������������������������������������
�����	���������������������	���������������������������������	��������������
����
������������������� ��������������	�������
��������������������������������	������������������������������
�������������!	�����
��������������������
���"������
�����������������	������������������	��������	�����������������������������
��������������#����������	���
�����������������	����$
����������������%����%������������������	��	����	���������
������������	���������	���������������
��������$
�����������#����
�������������	���������	����$
��������������������
����������������������������
��������&��
������#����
�������������	�����������������	����������������$
����������%����%���������������	��������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������"��	����������	���������������������
��������������'()*+,-,�.������
����������������%�%��	���������������������	�������������"��������������������
������������������������������	������������������������/012����	��	���3�������������������"��
���$
������
�������������
������������������	�������������"�����	���������������������������%45�6�17��������������������������������
�������	��%�
��"����8�����%�
�	������������
�����������������������"�����
���������
������"������
�����������"��	��������������������	�������������	�
������&������
��������	����������	�
����������
��������������������������������������������
������"��&�����������	������������������� ��
�������������
����������������	�
�����������������
��������������������"���������������	�
��������������
�����	��������������������������"�������
��������������"��������������	�
��������������������	�
��������
�����������������������	��������������������������	�������������������������������&���������������"��	�������������������������������������������"������������109�����	���
�����
���������������������������������	��������"�
�	����
���������������������	���:9�����	���
�������������
�����������������������������������
������"��	��%�
��"����!	��%�
��"����8�����%�
�����������%�%����������	����
����������������	"�8�����%�
�8���������#���������������
�������������������������������
��������������������	����	��%�
��"�	����������������������	����	"�����������������!	��#�����������������	�������
��"���������������;00�"������
����	�����������������������	�
�������������
�������	���������������&����������������	�
��������$
����"��������������!	�����������������������������������	�����������������������	�
�����������������
����������������	�
�����������	����
����������������������������/017��%����������������������������������<=����������%����>;?;;0@�����
��������������������������������������������"������ABACDAEFG�HIAJKAC�LEMNE�OH�O�PJMN�QOCCRAC�EOSRDOKRME�FAEKACTU�VIA�FMWA�WAXREAH�O�PJMN�QOCCRAC�EOSRDOKRME�FAEKACU�OH�O�P��
�����#��������������������������������	����	���������
������������������������������������	�
������	��������������������"��������������������	���������������������������������
�����&�����������	������������������������
���������������	����	������������	AJKACY�OEW�IMZHREDTU��P[MN�QOCCRACU�BAOEH����������������������
�������������������"���������
����������
�������	��
�������
����������������������������������������������������������	�
�������������������
����
�������������������&�����������	�������������=RSAE�KIA�\MZEKG]H�HKCOKADRF�XCOBANMCL�DMOJH�OEW�KIA�EAAW�XMC�MEDMRED�HKOKA�XZEWRED�KM�

29



����������	���
����������������������������		����������������������������	
���������������������������������
�������������
������
��
������������
�����
�����
��������������
	���������	
��������������������������������������������������
���
�������������������
����� �
	����!���"����������
����
�����
��
������	��
�������
����	����������
�������
���
��������	����
��������������
��������������������
����#�������
������
�������������	�	�������������������������
�����
���������������
��$�$�����%&'�������������$������
���$�$�	����
�������
��������������(�
��)��������������
���
�����
!����������������!����������������
�������
���
���������	����
������	
!������$������
���$�$������������������
���������������������������������$�	������
����
�����
����������������
������*�����+��,+,,��$��������������
���������
����
����	
���
�������������������������������������
�����
�����������������������������*����,+��,+,,�������������	�������-��
����������������������������$�$�
���$�������������
����
��������$
��-$������
�
���
����������������������������(�
������
�������������������	��������������������������������������
������
��
������������
�����
�����
��������������
	���
�������
����������������������	������$
��-$��
������������
���
����	����
������������������������������������
��
����
���������������������
�����
�����������������������������
�����
����������
��.����������
��.����������������
�����������������	����������
�������	������/01213024�567238�"���$����������
��
�$������������
��
����
�������9��+,:�;+<�
�������=
��������>�
��
�$����$���?�$������$�$�����
����!�����
�������������������
�����
������������������
��
����
�������9��,@����+��A�������������
��������������������������������������
��������
����
���
������������
���������������������
���������	��������������	������
��������
��������
	����!������������	�������	�����������
���
����
	�����������	
������������
���������������������������������������
���
����
	�������	
��
����������	
�����������������������������������������
����������
������������
�����
����������	���������	���
��������������������������������B�����������	�������������������$��������-������
��������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������
����������	
��	�
�����������������������������	������������
����	��������������
����
����C����
�� ������������������������
����
��������������	�������%&'�������������$������
���$�$��=����
�
��������#�������������������(�
������
������
���
������
�������
����
��������D8E28FG03�H421�I4F6F18�,�#�J���
�
����������K���	���������L��������
�������������		������
��������������
����B�
����
���	��������������������������	����������
�������
������������
��������DMN6088FO�NPQ�A
����%��������	
����������#�������

30



�������������	
�������������������������������������� �!""�� �� 31



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���,�" -�::���;#""�" *'�*.��-<�'*�=�-;"*'>�"?*" -�&. *#�&*'�*"#��� -��--�&.�)@%� &"�@� ;��;"�A�������B
����C� "�D>�E7EE��F�9����������9����G�H��2I�,))#.$"�� ���" -�" *�*.��;#""�" *�J470K�L%*M�,=.-"�!"#$%&"'>�*.�% &@�-"�@� ;��;"�*.��""*�N�"#;" &O�!.@�*%. '�P#� *6Q.#. ��R%#�'�:"@%"S�,&*�S� -�/N!P6QR3��#";�@�*%. '>�"?*" -�*M"�-"�-@% "�.S�*M"��;#""�" *�*M#.�;M�!")*"�="#�17>�E7EE�� -���" -�*M"�*.*�@��  ��@�=�-;"*'�S.#� "L��  ��@�*.*�@�=�-;"*'�.S�T4E2>E11�% �U%'&�@�V"�#�/UV3�E7E76E2�� -�TE>07D>220�% �U%'&�@�V"�#'�E7E26EE�� -�E7EE6E1�S.#�� �� &M� ;"-���@*%6O"�#�*.*�@�.S�T1>EE0>152>�� -���*M.#%W"�*M"�(%#"&*.#�.S����� �!"#$%&"'�*.�"?"&�*"�*M"���" -"-��;#""�" *'�� -�*�X"�#"@�*"-��&*%. 'Y�� ->�� �EI�,))#.$"�� ���" -�" *�*.��;#""�" *�J4700�L%*M��.�'% ;�Z�**"#'>�*.�% &@�-"�@� ;��;"�*.��""*�N�"#;" &O�!.@�*%. '�P#� *6Q.#. ��R%#�'�:"@%"S�,&*�S� -�/N!P6QR3�#";�@�*%. '�"?*" -�*M"�-"�-@% "�.S�*M"��;#""�" *�*M#.�;M�!")*"�="#�17>�E7EE�� -���" -�*M"��  ��@�*.*�@�=�-;"*'�S.#� "L��  ��@�*.*�@�=�-;"*'�.S�T2[2>2K5�% �U%'&�@�V"�#�/UV3�E7E76E2�� -�TE>070>5[0�% ��U%'&�@�V"�#'�E7E26EE�� -�E7EE6E1�S.#�� �� &M� ;"-���@*%6O"�#�*.*�@�.S�TE>K[K>D[1>�� -���*M.#%W"�*M"�(%#"&*.#�.S����� �!"#$%&"'�*.�"?"&�*"�*M"���" -"-��;#""�" *'�� -�*�X"�#"@�*"-��&*%. 'I���\]�9������	���
���.̂��""*��#;" *� ""-'�S.#�M.�'% ;��''%'*� &"�)#%.#�*.�*M"�&@.'�#"�.S�Q_R̀(62K�"?)� -"-�'M"@*"#�S�&%@%*%"'>�*M"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3�" *"#"-�% *.��;#""�" *'�L%*M�,=.-"�!"#$%&"'�/,=.-"3�� -��.�'% ;�Z�**"#'�S.#�"�"#;" &O�#"M.�'% ;�'"#$%&"'I��!(�#"&.��" -'�*M"�a.�#-��))#.$"���" -�" *'�*.�*M"'"���;#""�" *'�*.�" '�#"�*M"�&. *#�&*'��""*�S"-"#�@�S� -% ;�#"b�%#"�" *'�� -�"?*" -�-"�-@% "�.S�*M"��;#""�" *'�*M#.�;M�!")*"�="#�17>�E7EE�*.�#"S@"&*�*M"� "L�S� -% ;�-"�-@% "I�����
9c�������_ �Z�#&M�E1>�E7E2>�*M"�a.�#-��))#.$"-��;#""�" *'�L%*M�,=.-"�� -��.�'% ;�Z�**"#'�*.�)#.$%-"�"�"#;" &O�#�)%-�#"M.�'% ;�'"#$%&"'�� -�#"@�*"-��&*%$%*%"'�S.#�M.�'"M.@-'�'*�O% ;�% �"?)� -"-�Q_R̀(62K�'M"@*"#'�*.��.$"�% *.�'�'*�% �=@"�)"#�� " *�M.�"'I�!)"&%S%&�#"M.�'% ;�'"#$%&"'�)#.$%-"-�*M#.�;M�*M"'"��;#""�" *'�% &@�-"�M.@%'*%&>�'*#" ;*M6=�'"-�M.�'% ;� �$%;�*%. �� -�&�#"��� �;"�" *�'"#$%&"'�� -�#�)%-�#"M.�'% ;�#" *�@��''%'*� &"�S� -'I��,=.-"�� -��.�'% ;�Z�**"#'�L%@@�&. *% �"�*.�L.#X�L%*M�)�#*%&%)� *'�. ��**�% % ;�� -�#"*�% % ;�M.�'% ;��S*"#�*M"�S% �@�"?)� -"-�Q_R̀(62K�

32



�����������	���
������������������	��	����������
	��	�������	������������������	�������	������
������������������������	���	�
��������	���
����� ��	������!���"��������
��#����������	��
	���$����%�	�	���&
���'��
���(���!#�$%�&"������
����(��
�������!�("���	 
������	��������������������
�����	��������
�����������������������)
����������*��
���+,-.,/�01�23,�40562789�:;+,,<,629�/.23�=>0?,�:6?�@059.6;�A:22,+9B�23,�C=�D+0-.?,+9�
����
�
�������
�
�����������������������	�E��
��	��	�������	������#�$%�&����
�����)
�����������������
���	��E	����	������������E������	������������
�
����������	�E	�����������
������	���	�
���&	������E����	���������
�
���������������������������	����	�����������	������	������
�
������	�
����	��������������	������������
�
�����������	������
�
���������
������	�������������	�
���������
���
�����	������������
�
�����������
���������	���������F��������	��������G�H�	��
���#�$%�&����������
���������
����	���
�
����� ������������������I�H�	�������	�������	������#�$%�&��������J��K������L�������������	�
�
���������#�$%�&����
�
����������
����
��������
���������������;0-,+6<,6289�,MD,6?.25+,�?,:?N.6,B�.2�/05N?�>,�,M2,6?.6;��.29�OPQ%�&��F����
���������
�����	������L����������	�������E���L������������RSTUVWXW�P.6Y,�23,�0+.;.6:N�Z0:+?89�:DD+0-:N�01�23,9,�:;+,,<,629�06�A:+Y3�[\B�[][̂B�=>0?,B��	�
���K��������:6?�@P_89�@059.6;�10+�@,:N23�̀:-.;:2.06�2,:<�3:-,�,6+0NN,?�:��	�E
�����Ia��	���	�����	��L�G�
��
 
������
��	����
����	�������
����
������	���b����	���	������	��� ���	 ���
��	������������	�
��������������	�����������c	��������	 ��������������	�������������������	������������������	��������
�����)
���������������	���	�������������	��� �
��E���#�$%�&�������������	�	�����F��������	����������
	����	����
�����������������	�������������	����E��������
�������
�������������������	����E��������
������	�����������
����	��	��
����	����� �
��E���#�$%�&������������F
�
d�������
����	����	�������
�
�������	�����
��������
���
�������������	�
�������������	�������	��������������������
����	��
����	�E����������E��������E���	���	���	������	�	E��
�������������	�
����������
� ���	�
������E
�
�����eXSTSfXTU�ghiTfj�(���	 ���	����������������������������
����	����)
������������	���
	��	���	����$��������������k��
����	������������������
���(E	������ 
���������	�
���K��������	�����	��������������#����������	��
	���$����%�	�	���&
���'��
���(���!#�$%�&"����	��%�
���������	���	 
����	�
����� 
���
	������������������������� 
�����������
�����	�
�������������
���������������������
�������
������kl����b%�������E����������	�������m	��no�pa��(���������J���%�(E	������ 
����q�Lab����%�r�Lpb�%�n�#�$�L�%�n��bp�q�Lab����%�r�Lpb�%�n�#�$b�%�n��bp���	�������m	��no�pp��(�����������	�%��	�
���K�������q�Lab����%�r�Lpb�%�n�#�$�L�%�n��bp�

33



�����������	��
����������������
������������������������������ !�"#$$%&'%()*��+,-&'./��+0*)*--'*--1�����!�2+'$3%2$-�4&$5�#(+6*��*37&2*-�%'6��+,-&'.�8%$$*3-�$+�%--&-$�9%3$&2&9%'$-�*:9*3&*'2&'.�5+0*)*--'*--�&'�%$$%&'&'.�%'6�0%&'$%&'&'.�9*30%'*'$�5+,-&'. �#0*'6&'.�$5*�%.3**0*'$-�4&$5�#(+6*��*37&2*-�%'6�;<=>?@A�BCDDEF>�?@GFEC>E>�;HIJ>�CK?L?$M�$+�3*6,2*�5+0*)*--'*--�%'6�&'23*%-*�5+,-&'.�-$%(&)&$M ����NO�����P�OQR�S%'6M�8+33&-T��,0%'��*37&2*-�!&3*2$+3��U��V����P�P�OQR�W%3)+-�X �Y%)%2&+-T�W+,'$M�#60&'&-$3%$&7*�Z[[&2*3��\����]�����R��� #.3**0*'$���� �̂
��#(+6*�SS��#0*'60*'$���(� #.3**0*'$���� �̂

��8�SS��#0*'60*'$���2� #!8������� �̂
��#���#(+6*�6� #!8������� �̂

�#����+,-&'.�8%$$*3-�

34



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���:7::6:1�;#.).'"-�<�-="*�>.#����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�?�������@
����A� "�:2B�:7::��C�9����������9����D�E���F. '%-"#��))#.$�G�.>�*H"�:7::6:1�;#.).'"-�<�-="*�>.#�*H"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *B�% &G�-% =�� I�'�))G"�" *�G���*"#%�G'B��'�)#.$%-"-�% �*H"�#">"#" &"-�J�-="*�-.&��" *'+�� K�;#.).'"-�<�-="*B�!�))G"�" *�G�<�-="*B�� -�L% "�M*"��("*�%G�H**)'+NNOOOP'� *�&#�Q&.� *IP�'NR%'%. !� *�F#�QN<�-="*N(")�#*�" *<�-="*'N*�J%-N01S7N�.-�G"M-N:7:75N-")*M-N:5N&. *#.GG"#N(")�#*�" *N�&*%. N(")*("*�%GN(">��G*P�')T�� K�U%T"-�,''"*'�H**)'+NNOOOP'� *�&#�Q&.� *IP�'N;.#*�G'N:VNF.� *INJ�-="*N)->NU%T"-W:7,''"*W:7("*�%G'P)->�� K�F. *% �% =�,=#""�" *'�L%'*B�;�="'�XV6272B�221�H**)'+NNOOOP'� *�&#�Q&.� *IP�'N;.#*�G'N7NF.� *IN!FF<�-="*N)->NF. *% �% =W:7,=#""�" *'W:7L%'*W:7UIW:7:7:1P)->�� K�Y %>%"-�U""�!&H"-�G"B�;�="'�2S462SS�H**)'+NNOOOP'� *�&#�Q&.� *IP�'N;.#*�G'N7NF.� *IN!FF<�-="*N)->NY %>%"-W:7U""W:7!&H"-�G"W:7UZW:7:7:1P)->��[\�9������	���
���]H"�:7::6:1�;#.).'"-�<�-="*�>.#�*H"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�'�)).#*'�>%$"�-%$%'%. '+�!.&%�G�!"#$%&"'B�̂ *%*G"�" *'B��.�'% =�>.#��"�G*HB�_.#̀>.#&"�M  .$�*%. �a)).#*� %*%"'�,&*B�� -�R"*"#� b'�!"#$%&"'B�O%*H�'*�>>% =�.>�5V7P7�>� -"-�>�GG6*%�"�"c�%$�G" *�).'%*%. 'P����
9d�������]H"��%''%. �.>�*H"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�%'�*.�)#.*"&*�*H"�$�G "#�JG"B�)#.�.*"�'"G>�'�>>%&%" &IB��GG"$%�*"�).$"#*IB�� -�%�)#.$"�*H"�c��G%*I�.>�G%>"P�]H"�-")�#*�" *�G�� -�-%$%'%. �G�.)"#�*%. �G�=.�G'��#"�'H.O �% �*H"�:7::6:1�;#.).'"-�<�-="*��'�O"GG��'�% �*H"�:7:26:1�a)"#�*%. �G�;G� P�<.*H��#"��$�%G�JG"��*+�OOOP!FFR%'%. P�'P����
������<�-="*"-�>� -% =�O%GG�&. *% �"�*.�'�)).#*�. =.% =�'"#$%&"'B�% &G�-% =�,-�G*�� -�L. =�efgh�ijgf�klmeino�pjhqrs�jtu�ivqrugftwx�!"#$%&"'�/UF!3B�̂�)G.I�" *�� -�<" ">%*�

35



���������	
������������������������	�������������������������������������� ! "#$%&�' "()* &+��,�������������������-������������������������������������������������.�������������/��� 0�1234����������������	�������������������������1������������������������55�����1�������������������6���7�������������������8����������������������������������������������������������������94����������7��������������,:�����������������.��������������������������������������������������������.�����������������������������������������������������������;���0�1�6�����6�����1�<�������������:����������������������=������7�>�-����?���������!@�&ABB@"!�!C �!"#$&D "�@D�!C �EAFG)*�HA#"I)#$%&�JDD)* �D"@K�L #G!C���������������������������;�� 0�1�5M������������������6���7���555��1����6�������M�����2��������������6��������������6���7��������2�����������������6��������������6���7����������������������������������������������������������������������������7��N�����7�����������������7��������������������������������;������0�1������������������������5��1�6�����6�����2��������O�����>�������:�������������2�����������������6��������������6���7��������1�>���������6���7��������������������������������������������-�����������������������������������������������������������P����3��<�������������������������������������������������������������-���������������������������������,Q�2422O2R�.����-�������������������������������-������������������3��STUVUWTVX�YZ[VW\�M��������������������������������������-���������������]1̂R�__��R==�����8������������������-7�]1=2�1̀1�2=4�����������������]21�̀1R�14=����?�������,����������-��������������������������-������������������]1�9̀ �̀1=_����̀a����������,Q�2421O22�-�����3���b\cV\deTW�fXVU�gXdZdU\hij�M���2422O2R�>�����������������������k���������l���������������.��������������>����?����/���136�	:��������������������m������7/��������
N���7�13��	:��������������������m������7/�:�������7���������236�	6������-����������/�6������-�����������23��	6������-����������/��������������=36�	�7������
�����7/�n������������������=3��	�7������
�����7/�:�������7�o������7�936�	p�����������
8��������/�:��������
8���������93��	p�����������
8��������/�:����7�����������93��	p�����������
8��������/�:����������5�����������

36



����������	��
��������������������������������������� �!"���#	�	��
��$�%���&'�(%������$������)�������������*++������,��-!.��#�/��-� 0100203�(��4�����5��6���7� 0100203���44%�����%�5��6����� 0100203�8����9��������%��� 0100203�:�;���)�������� 0100203�$��������6�)6���������8�����(6���<=2>1>��>>3�+� 0100203�?��+����:�����@���%���(6���>AB2>AA�
37



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���:;<=�>% �?�,@�#-�<"&.��" -�*%. '�A�������B
����C� "�D0E�D7DD��F�9����������9����G�H��23�,))#.$"�>%'&�?�I"�#�/>I3�D7DD6D1�:.??"&*%$"�.J�<"'�?*'�� -�=$%-" &"6K�'"-�/:;<=3�L $"'*�" *'�<"M�"'*�J.#�N#.).'�?'�/<>N3�J% �?�#"&.��" -"-��@�#-'�% �,**�&O�" *�2E�@O%&O�% &?�-"�)#.).'"-��-P�'*�" *'�*.�*O.'"�.�*?% "-�*.�*O"�Q.�#-�. �C� "�RE�D7DD�� -�-"?"S�*"���*O.#%*T�*.�*O"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*.�"U"&�*"��S#""�" *'�.J��??�J% �?�#"&.��" -"-��@�#-'�)#%.#�*.�!")*"�K"#�17E�D7DDV�� D3�,))#.$"�*O#""��. *O'�.J�*#� '%*%. �J� -% S�J.#��??�>I�D7D26DD�:;<=�)#.S#��'�*O�*��))?%"-�J.#�� -��#"� .*�#"&.��" -"-�J.#�J� -% S�% �>I�D7DD6D1E�-"?"S�*"���*O.#%*T�*.�*O"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*.�"U"&�*"�*O"��S#""�" *'E�� -���*O.#%W"�*O"�,�-%*.#6:. *#.??"#�*.�)�T�*O"�J�??�*O#""6�. *O�*#� '%*%. �&. *#�&*��@�#-���.� *'�)#%.#�*.�*O"��S#""�" *'�K"% S�J% �?%W"-V��13�,�*O.#%W"�*O"�,�-%*.#6:. *#.??"#XY�Z[[\]̂�*.�)�T���. "6*%�"�&�'O��-$� &"�% $.%&"�.J�. "6M��#*"#�.J�*O"�J�??�&. *#�&*���.� *�. �"�&O�>I�D7DD6D1�:;<=�L $"'*�" *'��S#""�" *��'��??.@"-�% �*O"�:.� *T�N.?%&T�_�N#.&"-�#"�̀� ��?E�a%*?"�2E�!"&*%. �177b,E�)#%.#�*.�#"&.��" -"-��@�#-��S#""�" *'�K"% S�J% �?%W"-V�� -��43�(%#"&*�*O"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*.�#"*�# �. �.#�K"J.#"�("&"�K"#�21E�D7DDE�@%*O�� ��)-�*"�. �*O"�*O#""6�. *O�*#� '%*%. �J� -% SE�*O"� "@?T�"'*�K?%'O"-�&. *#�&*'�� -�)"#J.#�� &"�*#�&c% S��"&O� %'�'E�"JJ.#*'�*.�"U)?.#"�.*O"#�J� -% S�'.�#&"'�J.#�&�##" *�:;<=�J� -"-��S" &%"'� .*�K"% S�#"&.��" -"-�J.#��@�#-E�� -�)#.S#"''�. �*O"�?"''. '�?"�# "-�#"$%"@�.J�*O"�<>N�)#.&"''b��de�9������	���
���aO"�:.??"&*%$"�.J�<"'�?*'�� -�=$%-" &"6K�'"-�/:;<=3�L $"'*�" *'�%'�K.*O���J� -% S��.-"?�� -����.$"�" *�-"'%S "-�*.�%�)#.$"�*O"�O"�?*O�� -�@"??6K"% S�.J�&.� *T�#"'%-" *'b�aO"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�/�!(3E�% �)�#* "#'O%)�@%*O�*O"�:%*T�.J�!� *��:#�W�@O%&O�'O�#"'�% �*O"�J� -% S�.J�:;<=�)#.S#��'E�#"M�"'*'�*O"�Q.�#-�.J�!�)"#$%'.#'��))#.$"�*O"�"U)� -"-�?%'*�.J�#"&.��" -"-��@�#-'�J#.��*O"�:;<=�<>NE�&. '%-"#��� "@�#"&.��" -�*%. �*.�J� -���*O#""6�. *O�*#� '%*%. �J.#��??�&�##" *�:;<=��S" &%"'� .*�K"% S�#"&.��" -"-�J.#��@�#-E�-"?"S�*"���*O.#%*T�*.�*O"��!(�(%#"&*.#�*.�"U"&�*"��S#""�" *'��'�-%#"&*"-E��� -�#"*�# �*.�*O"�Q.�#-�@%*O���#").#*�.J��S#""�" *'�"U"&�*"-E�� -�KT�("&"�K"#�#"*�# �@%*O�� ��)-�*"�J.#�*O"�Q.�#-�. �*O"�'*�*�'�.J��??��&*%$%*%"'�

38



�����������	
���������������������������� ������!�"#$��%&'��'��$$��%�����$��'��(&���$$���)���������'&�&���!��*������&'���&)���	�**#�&�+�,��-��*'�!#��&�-�*������������'#��'(.�'���)����)�&%��&*$�)��*����/�0!�����1���'&%����'���)�������&��)����.����&���2&�����2&���%��&��+��!�'��3�������'�!��*�*#��&$���'�)���'������4#*���"��%&)�'�5�$���*����64"57�	�**#�&�+�,��-��*'�!#��&�-�$��)�''�2�'�����'!��*���&��������2�*�������*�������	����)�&%���!���'#��'������%&���)�(.�'���6	
��7���%�'�*���'/�8��*�����.�-&��&�-��������2�'�����)3��2���-*�������������	
�����%�'�*���'�*�����2�#����%��%���%����&*�/�9����%��#�&����!�����	
���$��-��*��&�)�#�&�-�������%���$*�����!���&'��8,����'�.����)�**#�&�+�&�!��*���� ���������	&�+�	�#�)&���$$��%��������'��!!�&*$��*�����/����9���	
���)�����)�'�2&���)���&�#�����.��.�'��������'#��'� �'���0))�#���.&�&�+�$�&�)&$��'�����2&����'3��-��)&�'����$��%&��������&������������':�4�2�;#)���4�2�<���������'�0�+���� ������
!!/�	�����)���'�2&���.���'3������)����)��������$��������&'�--��-�������*�-��$�&)������!�������$��$������+�'��%���&�)�#�&�-�=&$�)���������&)&�+��-������������-��&�!��*��&��/�4"5�2&���$��%&�������	
���)�����)���'�����*�-��$�&)'�>#�'�&����&���!��*������)���.��#'������)����)��������>#&����&�!��*��&��/��!���-��&=��&��'�������''&'���)��)����)�&�-�����&�!��*��&����4"5�)����&��2&�����%���$&�-������)����)�&���*�����'/�9���'$�)&!&)����)3&�-�2&���!�)&�&����������.&�&�+����*��&����)�����)�'��������)3�'��%&)�'�����$�$#���&��('$�)&!&)��#�)�*�'��%����&*�/����
��?#���@��������4"5�$��'���������&'���!�$��-��*'���)�**������!���	
���!#��&�-���'�2�����'�����$��)�''������2�'�!����2������&*$��*���������8,�������$$���#�&�+�����$$�������������+'&'��!�������)�**�������2���'/�9��� ������!�"#$��%&'��'�����"�����	�#=�	&�+�	�#�)&��%���������$$��%��������)�**�������2���'�!�������	
�����%�'�*���'�!#��&�-/�9��� ������!�"#$��%&'��'�%����������*�%������6�7���)�**������-������������4��*����#)�&���	���&�&����!�"�����	�#=�	�#��+�64�	7�!��*������&'���!���)�**�������2���'�������&��)����'��!!�������#������?#����A��������2&�����������&%�'�!�����$#�$�'&�-�����!#��&�-/�9��� �������'���&��)����'��!!�������#���2&���&�!��*��&�����-���&�-������1$�)�����#�)�*�'�!���������)�**������-������'����'��%������&��������)�**#�&�&�'�����#-��#������)�#��+/����B��CDEFE�9�������'���%��#�&����!�	
����'���!��*�2��3�'��&%�'�!����>#&��.��������������2���(.�&�-�!���"�����	�#=�	�#��+���'&����'��)��''������&-���	
���)���&�&��'�����#-��&�%�'�&�-�&��$��-��*'��$��)�&)�'��$��&)&�'���������'!��*��&�����'+'��*�)���-�'/�9���!��*�2��3��!������8,���'#��&�-�&��������)�**�������2���'�%��&���!��*�����'��#)�#����!������8,�!��*�����$��%&�#'�)+)����!�	
����2���'������+&���������&!!������-��#$��!���)�**������-������'�!��*�)#������-������'/�9���	�#��+�����	&�+���%����)�&%���'�%���������&����>#�'�&��'�����)�**���'��.�#������$��)�''��)�**#�&)��&�����&*��&��'�����!���.�)3��.�#���$�&��'������'��#���.��)��'&������!�������)#������	
���!#��&�-����!���!#�#����8,'/�9���&�!��*��&���.���2������''�'�'�*���!����'��&�>#&�&�'�����$��%&��'���)�**�����&��'�!���!&����	
����2���'�������1��'��$'/�����GHIIJKLMNOLHK�PLOQ�NRRSLMNKOT�������)�-�&�&����!�����&�����'��'#���#��&�-������2������)�**�����&��'������>#�'�&��'�

39



����������	
������������	���������������
������	�������	
����	������
	������	����������	��	���������������������	��������
���
����������	�����������	����	��������������	
�����������	���������������	��������������	���������������������
��� ���!"��!"!!�� �������
�
��	�	�������������	
���������	����	��	�	��������������������
�������������������	�	���#����$��!"!!�%��������&�����
��
�����&��	�����'��	��������� ��	��
����#����!��!"!!�� �������
�
��	�	������������������	
���������	����	��	�	������������	�����	����
����������
����������������	����	��	�������������������������	��
����������
��	�	�������������#����$��!"!!��	��������	���	����(�����������	�������
���
��������	����)*���+�,
�	��	����	����������	�����	�����	����
�����������������	������������#����$��!"!!�� �������
�
��	�	����������������������	���	�����	����������	����	���������������������������������������	��	����
����������������	����������	������������������	��	����)*���� )��������-��
	��
�������	��������������������
�������������
�
��	�	������������������	
����������	�������	��	����-��
	������������	������������	����
�������������	������������-��
	�	����&������
�������
���	
��������������	������������'�	���	��	���-��
	������	�����������	������������	����
��������#����.��!"!!�� &	��	���#����.���������	������
�����������	���������	
��������������	�������'�	��
�	��	���-��
	������	�����������	������������	����
�������	��	�����
	�
�	
����������	
���������	��	��
�������/���	����
,��������������	��������	����	���
������
����������� 0�	�����������	���
������
��������1&�����������������������������������-��
	
������
���������'�	��
��
,��������������	��
�������������������������
	
���		���������	
��	������������	�������
�����
����
����	�
���	�
	�����������������	�����	���	������������	�����������	���	���������	
������	�������
��������	���	
����������'����)�����������������������	���	��	��������
	�����������	����	��	�����-������	�/	����������1&���������	�������
��	����������	��������	
������������������������	�������,�����������
��	�������2334567��8��	���������'�	��
�
���		��������������9���:�������&�����
������	���	�;:&�<������������������'����������������0�
����������	��������

���������:&���������
������0		������	�!=����	���>.�������
�������	����������$?�
������	��
����������?"�������������
	�	����	
�������	�
	
��)��	�(	�����	��
���������
������������
��	���	����)*�������	��
�����@!�������������	���������	�����
��
	��	�	����9���������
�

40



���������	��
���������	
��
�����
����������	�������������
����������������
�����
���
���������������������� !"#$�����%�"�"!#&&�'#$��(�%)� ��*�$+���$+!�,#"#-!$!"���%�$+!�./0����1��������������
�	�����	�
��234��������
�������5����������6���������	�	�
����������������
�������	�
����������7��	��	
�����������������������89:��
�������
���������;��7���������������
	���	
����������<=���
�����	�	�
����������������������������
���������	����6�
���;��������	�
���
���=����6	���	�	�������
�	�	�
����
�	
����������������
	>��	�
�����������
�������������
�	
������
�	
��	
���	��?@8A�89:���������3�����8������
���	�
�@
��B����	�����������
�������	�
�	�������C	�	>����������������6�	�;��?@8A���
��������
�����	�	�
����������������������D��	����
��E�����B	�����	
���
7��������������������3���	�	����������������������
�	
����
�	
������
�C���	������E�����B	������	���	�
�����������
�C��������	������D��	���B	������	���	�
���B�	����
�;�����	�6���;�F�� ���8����������
��������������
��������������	
��������	�����������
�����������	�������	����;�������<�G������������������89:�	
������	�
��H6�����6	���������������IG�������	�
=����B�	�����	�
��	���������������J�����	�
����KL����M��������	���KI<N�N�������?��
�����
����
��KNI�INN�����?	�����
��O��
���;��P�		>����
�	
������������������
������������������28?����K<LL�LN<����������5������	����������������
�����
���B�	�������
�	
����Q�	�������	�
�;������3�
���?��>�?	���?��
�	����������������������������	�	�
����
�����
�	
����	�����
���������	����
���N���?��
�	�����	
����B��������
�������6	���KR<I���M��������
�;����������������	�	�
�����
�	����
�������������������F��� E����JB	��F�S�3�
	���T�����7�3��6	�����U
���V�1�	
��	
�?����
	���HK<IR���<=�������6	����
�J�������	��	�����6	�����������3�
���?��>�?��
�����
	���������
�	
���	6	
��	
����
��
�����D��	���B	��F�S�5	��5��������5	��3	���������3�
���?��>�?��
���HKW�����=���������
���	
������������������������
�����������	������
�	
������	�
��	����������������	
������
��������������	�����
�������
	���	
�Q�	�	����S�9��	��3��6	���1��
����������?�
����?����V�3�	�	���:��6�
�	�
�3��6	����������?�
����?�����HKL��R�R=���	������6	�������LJ�������	�	�����	�	��	
���	�������	�
�������������������������������
������	
����	�	�������
������	
���	�	���;���6	����S�3�
���?��>�?����
	���X�
������V�1���:�������HK<IL�<��=�B��������������6	�����	
�
�	�����	���
����
�������	
�����E��	
�����		������;�	�������
	�������J������	
��	�
���
���	
�
�	����;�	
���S�3�
���?��>�E��;	�
�Y����
��?����
	���?�
����V�4	6���	���?�
����2������
��

41



����������	��
��
��������������
�������������
�������
��������������������������
�����������
����� !"#��������
$��%�
�����������������
�����$��
��������
��&�������
����'��!������
������
������(�����������
���������
����
������
���)�������������������
����������������������
����
��������
�
����*�
��������������������
������%�%���%������������������
�������������������+��
���,�%���%�
��������+���
������������������������������
��
����
�����������
��%����'�!����������
������
����%�������$������
�������������+��������������
��������������������%�������
����
�����)�������%�����������
��
������'��-
����.���������
����!%�/�!�����������
��������������
�������
����������
��������
������
�����
����������������01�2�2�322�45.6����������
��
�����������������������
����������������������������01�2�22327'�!������
����%�������(����������+���
��$��8��������������
������������
�������������$�
���4���
$�����4�
$'�9

������
�7���
�����
������
�������
���������������������
������������
��
�%���������������������
���
�����
���������������%������:-;�%����%��<�������$�%�
������������
�45.6�����������������
��
������������������
����
�������
�������������
���������
��
�������������������������������
������������������'�5����
�����������
�����������
���������:-;�%������
����
��
��� ���������%�������%�
��4�
$��
����
��
���4�
$�4��������%�
����������
�����
��������������$����������
����
����3���
���+
������'��-
��������������
������
��������
��
�������������
�����������������
%�����������'��0���
������78�$������
�����������������������
���4������
$�=�������������������������
��������������������������$���'�!�������
������.0=������$���������������
���45.6�����������
�������
�������������������������������������'�-�������
���45>	;�5�������>�����
��������
���
�����������
����.0=����%����
��
�������
�%�����
�������������������
��������������������
�
������$��������
���������
�0������1���������������

���
��������������
�$�����������������
����?��
�
������
������������
��%��<�%�
�������
����������$�
������������'�!������������
�����
������������%��������%�
�������������������
����
����?��
�
����������
��������������'��@AABCBDEFG�HICIJK�HIEABEL�DMCBDEN�HDJ�OIJJKEC�PQRS�HIEAKA�FLKEOBKN�EDC�JKODTTKEAKA�HDJ�FUFJA��!���:�����-��������;����
���
�������������)���
��������
��
�%��<�����������
$����
����������
��
����������
����������������
���������%������%�$����������������'�	��
����������$�����:-;���������

���
�����
�������%�
��
���:���
��-��������9����$���
����4���
$������
���
��������
����?�������
�����
���+��������
��
�����
�����������������
���
����
��������
�
���%��<����4������
$� �����5�����)�
�������
�����������������45.6��������'����PBCVWPDIECV�PDDJABEFCBDE��!���4���
$�����
���4�
$��
������������
������
����������
�����
���������
�
��������)��
���45.6��%��������������
������������
����������������������������
����������<���������������%����
���X����Y
������������
����'�!����
����%�������
�����
����������
��
���������4���
$�����4�
$���������������������������
�������%������
�������;��������%�
�����������������������
����
����
�
������
�����
�����
�<��������%����
��������
�������������
���$'��

42



�������������	
���������������������������������������� ��� !� "�����������#$���"%�������� ��&&#�'�����#�"%#��()��"%�"#�� �"�������������%���������"�*�����#�������������"#��"!�� ������� �������� ��&&#�'�����#��������"#��" +����#�������� �#����'������"%#��()��"%�"#�� �"�����#��"!�����&&#�'���*,�"%��-��#�!�./0��������#$�"���1"������##��"���#��)��" ���#�"%#���)��"% +�����#�������� ��&&#�'�����#��������"#��" !� "����������#��"�� ��&� ������#$�&�#�)�"������#��)��"����"%��'����#����������#+�2�����&&#�'���*,�"%��-��#������"%��3�",�3������!� "�������������"��"��"%#��(,��#����"#��"���#��)��" ���"%�#���))���������#��� +��4����"%�#�5���*,�"%��-��#�!�./0�������  �����"%#��()��"%���'�����&�,)��"���#��������#��� ��%�������"#��" ��#��*�����������5������ � "��"���"%�3���",�6����,�����6#�����#� �/��"����778+9+��:;<=<>;=?�@A�=>���32BC�4�'� ")��" � �&&�#" ����(&#���"��#����5�"��� �����������&�*����������� �"%�"� �&&�#"��)&#�'���������"��� ��������(*�������#���))���",�)�)*�#��1&�#��������"%���#��"� "��%������� �����*�##��# ����"%��3���",+�D%�����#� ��#���������"%#���%�3���",�����3�",�E���#������� +�9��#��������� ���#�"%����1"����"#��"�����,���������*�����"�����"�FGHI�JKL�MHNOPQR�NGGOHSNT�HU�JKLRL�UFIPR�VI�JKL��W�X8XX(X7�*����"���#����Y� "�0�,�-����"�%��#��� �NIP�JKL�ZVJ[�HU�ZOF\�ZHFI]VTQR�NGGOHSNT�HU�JKL�UVINT�OL]Ĥ L̂IPLP�32BC����#���)���" +���D%���W�X8XX(X7�32BC�6#�&� ���-����"�����������"%��3�",����/��"��3#�5������������_̀!8a8!888�� �_b!cb7!c88!�����%��%�_de!c88�� ���##,�'�#���������"%�"�"%��-��#��&#�'��� �,��&&#�'���"��*���� "#�*�"������"%#���f7g��h�����)���" �&�#�,��#+���9&&#�1�)�"��,�_b88!888������*������  �#,�"��&#�'����"%#���)��"% ����"#�� �"��������������#��W�X8X̀(XX�32BC�&#��#�) �"%�"��&&�������#������#����"�#���))��������#�������������W�X8XX(X7+�4������  �#,!�./0������#�"�#��"��"%��-��#�������"%��"#�� �"�������������)���"�� ���"�#)����+������i=��j;>�k?=<�l?�A�<�m�n�D%��32BC����#� �����������"� �'�#����#�� ����"%��3���",o �/"#�"�����6��������������3�)&#�%�� �'��.���"%�p�/���",!�9""����*���.�� ���!�/� "����*���C�'�#��)��"�����0,��)���C����),q����rsA;���t�suv�B���,�w�##� !�.�)���/�#'��� �0�#��"�#��x�>yAA�<t�t�suv�

43



��������	�
����������������������������������������������� �!"��� #������������$�������%&�'�������'���(�����)������&�����*�'� ��#+��%%����,��������������)������&�����-��� ��#+�#�����������.���(��/�����(�)������&�����0�1�0	�� 44



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� !�"�#$%&�'�()�*&+,�-./�%&����� !�0%$%'%1*�23456�78797:::��	��;�<���(=�*>=�* � 1�-�# %&%?� %1*�()#��=�* �@% !�"�* ��A#.B����� !�C*D1#=� %1*�E#)�*%B� %1*�F�������G
����H.*��I3J�I:II��K�<����������<������LMMNOPQ�RS�RTQSUTQSV�VO�VWQ�XQRYVW�ZQNP[\Q]�L̂QS\_̀]�aRNV[\[MRV[OS�L̂NQQTQSVb�A1* #�& �c1d�II�:5:3J�@% !�"�* ��A#.B����� !�C*D1#=� %1*�E#)�*%B� %1*� 1�%*&�.>���e&!�*)��1D��>>% %1*��� +?�'�1D�?� %�* �>� �J�%*&�.>%*)�!1.'%*)�%*D1#=� %1*J��*>� 1��>>� !���.=�*�"�#$%&�'�0�?�# =�* ��'���?�# +� 1� !��-�# %&%?� %1*�()#��=�* J��*>��. !1#%B�� !��0%#�& 1#'�1D� !������ !�"�#$%&�'�()�*&+��*>��.=�*�"�#$%&�'�0�?�# =�* J�1#� !�%#�>�'%)*��'J� 1�'%)*d��fg�<������	���
���h!������ !�"�#$%&�'�()�*&+�2�"(6�#�i.�' '�j1�#>��??#1$��� 1��=�*>��*�1*)1%*)��)#��=�* � !� �@%���?�#=% � !���.=�*�"�#$%&�'�0�?�# =�* �2�"06� 1�?�# %&%?� ��%*� !��#�)%1*������� !�C*D1#=� %1*�ke&!�*)��2�Ck6J�l*1@*��'�"�* ��A#.B����� !�C*D1#=� %1*�E#)�*%B� %1*�2"A�CE6J�$%�� !���"(��)#��=�* �@% !�"A�CEd�h!���=�*>=�* �%'� 1� !��-�# %&%?� %1*�()#��=�* �/� @��*��"(��*>�"A�CEd���
<m�������n!1���-�#'1*�A�#��9�A#.B�h1����� !�2n-A9AI�6�@�'� !��"�* ��A#.B�A1.* +�n!1���-�#'1*�A�#��2n-A6�?%�1 �?#1o�& �D.*>�>�/+� !��0�?�# =�* �1D����� !�A�#��"�#$%&�'�pqXrZs�tSUQN�rRY[uONS[R̀]�vQU[9A���I:I:�@�%$�#� 1�%=?#1$��&�#��&11#>%*� %1*d�('�?�# �1D� !��n-A�?%�1 J�0�A"�#�i.%#�>�&1.* %�'� 1�'.??1# �>� ��'!�#%*)��&#1''�'�& 1#'��*>� 1�.'��*� %1*���' �*>�#>'��*>�&1==1*�>� �����=�* 'd�h1�D.# !�#� !%'�)1��J�1*�0�&�=/�#�5:J�I:5wJ��*>�(.).' �53J�I:I:J� !��j1�#>��??#1$�>��"(�&1* #�& ��=�*>=�* '�@% !�"A�CEJ�A1* #�& �c1d��:585J� 1�>�$��1?��*�%*D1#=� %1*�'!�#%*)��&1'+' �=�&����>�h1)� !�#�n��A�#��2hnA6d�n-A9AI��%* �*>�>� !��hnA��&1'+' �=� 1�%*&�.>��'1&%���'�#$%&�'�#��� �>�>� �J�'.&!��'��1.'%*)�x�*�)�=�* �C*D1#=� %1*�"+' �=�2�xC"6�>� ��D#1=��"0d���h!��n-A9AI��?%�1 ��*>�>�1*�0�&�=/�#�45J�I:I5��*>� #�*'% %1*�>�=�*+�'�#$%&�'�.*>�#� !��*�@�A��%D1#*%��(>$�*&%*)��*>�C**1$� %*)�x�>%9A���2A��(Cx6�%*% %� %$�J��'�>� �%��>���' � .'�.?>� �� 1� !��j1�#>�1*�y�/#.�#+�58J�I:I5J�'.==�#%B%*)� !��n-A9AI��I:I5��**.���#�?1# d�0�A"�%* �*>'� !��A��(Cx�*�@�k*!�*&�>�A�#��x�*�)�=�* �2kAx6��*>�A1==.*% +�".??1# '�/�*�D% '� 1�/.%�>�.?1*���''1*'����#*�>J�/�' �?#�& %&�'J�'�#$%&�'J��*>��e �*'%$��%*D#�' #.& .#��&#�� �>�/+�n-A�?%�1 '��&#1''� !��' � �d�A��(Cx�&�* �#'�1*���?1?.�� %1*�!��� !J�?�#'1*9&�* �#�>��??#1�&!� !� ��>>#�''�'�'1&%���>� �#=%*�* '�1D�!��� !�2"0E�6J�!��� !�>%'?�#% %�'J��*>�!��� !�%*�i.% %�'d�h1��&!%�$�� !��

45



���������	
��	����	��	������	��	���
�����	���������	����	�����
	�
������������	���������	�
	���	������	���� 	���	��!�����	����
���"	�����
��	�
	��
��	���#	���
�"$			�"����	 �������	���� 	��

����	����	%&&	���
�#����
��	������
	���
����	�����	����	�'���
�	����������	������
	��
����
����"�	�
�	�������
	����	��
"	��������������	���������	�
	���	���
�"�	�
�����
	������"	����	����������	��������"	!��������	������	��
�����	�����
��"	���
���	�
�	�������	����������	����
	��
�����	�����	�
�	��
���	������	�
�	������
��	���	���������$		���� 	�����	�����	����	�����
	����
������(	���	��)�	��������	�����	�
�	*
���	*�$	�����������"�	���	����"����	��	��������	��	��	�������	��	����	+���,$	�����	�	-�!����	���	.�������	+-/.,	�������	�
	0&%1�	��������	����	���	��������	��	�������	����	��
����
�	��
����
����"	�����
	���	�����
��"$	��������	����	��
�	����	�
	0&0&$	*
���	23	453	3676896:	9;	36<=6	53	9>6	8;??@AB9CD3	87;36:	7;;E	<6F6<<57	A694;<GH	4B9>	9>6	������	���������
�	.���
������	��	��
��	���#	���
�"	+��.,	�����
	���	
�����I	�������
�����
$	�����	�����	
������	�"�����	�
	���	���
�"	���(	������"�	���	��������	��
����
�	�
��������
	�"����	+����,J	)����	���	�������
��	������	������	+)�-,	���	KLMD3	87BAB83	BA	9>6	N;@A9CO	5A:	M=595<H	9>6	PKQ	F;<	9>6	N;@A9CD3	R6>5=B;<57	>6579>	���
���$	�������
���"�	�����	
�
����
�"	���
���	�
�	���������	����	�����	��
	)�-�	����	�
������	�
��	���� $		STUVWXYX	���	��	�	���� 	������	����	��������	��
�����
�	�.���0�	��
��
	��	���������	����
�
���	������	�
�	�������
�	����
���"	������	�
�	�������	��������	�
�	����������$	���	�����
	���	���	���	��	���������	�	�����
��"	�
��������
	�'���
�	+��),(	�
	����"����	���������	��	�������������
��"	
�����I	����
���	����	���	�	������	��
����	�	��������	���������	�
�	�
	�
�������	����
���"	��������	��	�������	�
��
���	�����
��"	����	���

�
$	�����	���I	��
��
���	��	�����#�	����	�����
�	�����	��	�	����������	
���	��	�������	���	���
�����
	��	�.���0�	��������	��	������	������	���	��!������	��������	��	�
�	�������#����
	��	�
���	�
��	������
��$		�����
��"�	���	���
�"	���	���	�
	�'������	.�����������
	������
�	+.�,	�
�	Z���
���	���������	������
�	+Z��,	����	���� $	����	���
����	.�	�������#��	���	�'���
�	��	���
����	����	����	���� 	�
�	���	���������
��	+��I�	���	���
�",	���	�������
��	��"��
��	�
�	��������
�	��������$	���	.�	������	�
�������	����������	������	����	����	���
�"	���
���	+����	���	)���	)�-	�"����,	�
�	��������"	��
���	������	����	+����	���	������	)�-	�"����	�
�	�	�������	����
�	������	���	���� 	���
��������
	�������,$	������
��	���	��������	����	����	���
�"	����������	������	���
���	+����	����	���	������	)�-	�"����,	��	
��	�
������$		���	���
�"	��	
��	���I�
	��	�
����	����	�����
	������.���0�	�
	�������	��	������	����	���	���	��������	��	������$	/��	��[�	�����	����	�
�����	������
	�����
	���	������	����	��
����	��	������	����	��	���	����
�	�����	���	��������	�����	����������
��	����	�'���
�	����	�����	�
�	����
���	�
��"����$	��	����	������	��!������
���	��
��	���#	���
�"	����	��������	���	�
�������
	����	����	������	���	�'���
�	��	��������	�
��������
	F<;?	9>6	N;@A9CD3	K\]LH	BA87@:BÂ	=@7A6<5RB7B9C	

46



�������������	
��������	������
	�
�����
	��������������������������������

����������������������	����������

��������	����
�����
������	������������	
������	�����������������	� ����������
����������!������������"�������# ����	�������������� ���������!��������
��	
����� �
�$��������
	����	����������������	������"�������# ����������!��	�%&&�'()*+�,-.+/01�&%2%�2-�2,3�/04-56%2/-0�7356/223&�2-�83�39:,%013&�%:5-++�2,3�����!�����	
;<������������������	��������	�	�������	������"�������	���	�����������	�����!������	����	�����	�������	�����������	
����	����	
���	����������!�����	
;������������������!�����
����	������
��������	�������
���
	�����������������	
����	�������	�������
���������	
����	�����������������
����������������������	�
���	����������	
����	���=	�
�����
	����	�������
��	������������	�������������	
��������������������� ���������������	������������
>��	������?@ABAC@BD�EFGBCH�����
��	������������	�������	����������������������IHJBHKL@C�MDBA�NDKFKAHO��������������	
��������	��	������	������
�������#����P�������Q��R� ���	��
����������������S�������Q��������P$�����R�=���	��
����������������S�������Q��	����������	
���T����!��
���	����P"��������Q��	�������
���
��
����IUVF@HHKW�VXY��	������	
��������
���	
�����������
������ �������Z������	

�����������
��������
���	
��[KC\FFKAWKW�VXY���
�	��]��#�����	����	���� �������
������!�����
��̂HHBC_FKAHOY�B�  ���������̀̀ �aRab��������
>�����������	
����	��!
����>���	����  ���̀c�̀̀ �aRab�

47



�������� �����������	
��
�������
������	�����������������
������	������
������������� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *+�,-�% %'*#�*%. �!"#$%&"'�(%$%'%. �/0123�45464217��	��8�9���,&&")*�:#.;"&*��.�"<"=�,>�#-�?� -% @�A.#�B"*"#� C'�B%DD�@"�E�������F
����G� "�H0I�H7HH��J�9����������9����K�L��2M�,�*N.#%O"�*N"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*.�'%@ �#"P�%#"-�:#.;"&*��.�"<"=�'*� -�#-��@#""�" *'�% �)�#* "#'N%)�>%*N�:#.;"&*��.�"<"=�B"*"#� '�B%DD�@"�&.6�))D%&� *'I�*N"�!� *��Q#�O�Q.� *=�B"*"#� '�R"�.#%�D�S�%D-% @�S.�#-�.A�T#�'*""'�� -�?#. *�!*#""*�,-�% %'*#�*%$"�!"#$%&"'I�UUQI�>%*N�#"$%">�� -��))#.$�D�A#.��Q.� *=�Q.� '"DV��HM�,�*N.#%O"�*N"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*.�'%@ ��). �#"$%">�� -��))#.$�D�A#.��Q.� *=�Q.� '"DI���R"�.#� -���.A�W -"#'*� -% @�X"*>"" �*N"�Q.� *=�.A�!� *��Q#�OI�*N"�!� *��Q#�O�Q.� *=�B"*"#� '�R"�.#%�D�S�%D-% @�S.�#-�.A�T#�'*""'I�� -�?#. *�!*#""*�,-�% %'*#�*%$"�!"#$%&"'I�UUQ�*N�*�.�*D% "'�*N"���*��D�#.D"'�� -�#"'). '%X%D%*%"'�.A�*N"�)�#*%"'�% $.D$"-�% �%�)D"�" *% @�*N"�:#.;"&*��.�"<"=�B"*"#� '�B%DD�@"�:#.;"&*�% ��&&.#-� &"�>%*N�Q�D%A.# %��:#.;"&*��.�"<"=�A� -% @�)#.@#���#"@�D�*%. 'V�� -��1M��(%#"&*�*N"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*.�#").#*�X�&<�. �*N"�'*�*�'�.A�*N"�B"*"#� '�B%DD�@"��.�"<"=�)#.;"&*�� -��''.&%�*"-��@#""�" *'�A.#�*N"�)#.;"&*��*�%*'�#"@�D�#�'%Y6�. *N�#").#*�. �*N"�%�)D"�" *�*%. �.A�*N"��.�'% @�A.#����"�D*N=�!� *��Q#�O�?#��">.#<�. �.#�X"A.#"�,�@�'*�ZI�H7HHM��[\�9������	���
���,*�%*'�G� ��#=�H5I�H7HH��""*% @I�*N"�S.�#-���*N.#%O"-�*N"����� �!"#$%&"'�(")�#*�" *�*.�'�X�%*���;.% *��))D%&�*%. I�%A�&"#*�% �&. -%*%. '�>"#"��"*I�>%*N�*N"�!� *��Q#�O�Q.� *=�B"*"#� '�R"�.#%�D�S�%D-% @�S.�#-�.A�T#�'*""'I�A.#�� ��>�#-��)�*.�]27��%DD%. �% �Q�D%A.# %���.�'% @�� -�Q.��� %*=�("$"D.)�" *�:#.;"&*��.�"<"=�A� -'�A.#���_̂̀_abcde�̂fggbh_�i_ajbc_c̀�bkklambng_�doiilàfp_�qlodfch�ialr_s̀�D.&�*"-��*�0t75��%@N>�=�ZI�S" �U.�. -I�Q,�Z5775M�TN"�&.6�))D%&� *�)�#* "#'��"*�*N"�)#"D%�% �#=�&. -%*%. '�.�*D% "-�% �*N"�G� ��#=�H5I�H7HH�S.�#-���*N.#%O�*%. I�'�X�%**"-���A� -% @��))D%&�*%. I�� -�#"&"%$"-���A.#��D�)�XD%&��  .� &"�" *�.A�� ��>�#-�.A��)�*.�]uI4H5I777�% ��.�"<"=�A� -'�. �,)#%D�HtI�H7HHM�S.�#-��&*%. �%'�#"P�%#"-�*.�"Y"&�*"�*N"� "&"''�#=�)�#* "#'N%)�� -�&. *#�&*��D��@#""�" *'�*.�#"&"%$"�*N"�A� -% @�� -�X"@% �"Y"&�*%. �.A�*N"�)#.).'"-��.�"<"=�)#.;"&*M�����
9v�������w �!")*"�X"#�ZI�H7H2I��Q(��  .� &"-���x.*%&"�.A�?� -% @�,$�%D�X%D%*=�.A��))#.Y%��*"D=�]2M45�X%DD%. �% ��.�"<"=�A� -% @�*.�'�'*�% �� -�#�)%-D=�"Y)� -�*N"�% $" *.#=�.A�N.�'% @�A.#�)".)D"�"Y)"#%" &% @�N.�"D"'' "''�.#��*�#%'<�.A�N.�"D"'' "''M�

48



���������	�
����������������	�
���������
���
������
����������������	������������
���
��
����������	��������	��	����
	�������	�������	����	���	��	�������
���������	�
���������
�����
�
�����	��
������	������
���
�������	��
����
���
���������	����
����������������	��������������
���������	�
�����������	�������������	����������������
��������	������������
���������
��������	����������������
���������������
�	��������� 
������
����	����
��� ���������!�����������!��
����������������������������
��"������������#�������$�%���������������������&��	�	��������
������
�����"'�()������������
�
��
�������������*
��
� �+� ������	�������������
�����
����	����������	�	��������������$�%����������������������&��	�����������"),�-�����������
��������������'))���#����
�����	������������	��������	�������� �������.���/���
�	�/���
���$�%�����	�������	��*
��
� �+� ��������%�����������������
���������
��������
�$�%������������
#
���0�����������
��
#
�	�
��	�����������������.���/���
�	�/���
�����%�����������	�����
�&��	���������
�����
������
��������	�������
��	���	�������������������
�����
����
����	������������
�����	�����������
�	�#������	
�������	�
����������	����	����������		��		��.���������	�����������	��������
���
���	�
���
�������������������
������	�������
�����������.�����������������
������	���
������������1�
�������
�����
������	������������������
����
�����������
������	��������������	�������
���	���
��������(����
��	����	������������
������	�#�������	�����	�
������������������	����2����*����3����#�������������������
�
�������
���	���������	�����	�������
��	�
�����#����	�
�����������*
��
� �+� ������/���
�	������
��4��������4�
�����56789::8;�5<:�=6>=>8?@�?@8>�ABC@7D:8�E:9:6?BF8�GDHABA896?9A>B�IEGJ�<>78ABK�87L8ADA:8�
���	���������	�����	�������
��	��.���
���������������
#
�����������%�����������	�"-���)���������
���
������	�
���"��������������
���������	����
����
��
#
�����"-�(�)�������MNOPQRSR�$�%������������������	�
����&��������������������� ���������*
��
� �+�
���&�
��������
���	����
�&����
������������������	�����	��
	����
�����	�����������T>6�<>78:<>@D8�:U=:6A:BCABK�<>H:@:88B:88;�5<:�E:9:6?B8F�EA@@?K:�=6>V:C9�WA@@�?DD�XY�����	�������
�����
����
����
���	������������	�����������
�	�
���������
�����	�#������	����	����������		��		�
������	������	�
��������.�������������������	���%����#������������� �������������	�Z�����
�����	����[���	������
�����\Z�[�]�������#�����������	�����������
�	����
�������������	������	���%��������������.�����%�����	����������
�����#�������
���	��������
������
������
����	�	�������������*
��
� �+� ������/���
�	������
��4��������4�
�����.�	���	�
�������
#
�����$�%������������������������ ������	�
����
���	��������������%�����������
����
����	����	�
��������
���������	��������������������
��������	��������%����
�����
������
�����
�������������	���������=6>V:C9�AH=@:H:B9?9A>B;�5<:8:�C>898�?6:�ABC@7D:D�AB�9<:�̂>7B9_F8�C766:B9�?BD�=@?BB:D�
���
��������	�������	�
����������	�
����
���� 
������
����	����
��� ���������!�����������	�
���#�����������
����
��+���	��������������	�
��
��+���
�������	��������������
�������%�����
���	���������������

49



���������	
�����������������������
��������
������
�����������������������������������������������������
�����
���������������
�����
��������������
�������������������������
���������������� ��!�����"�������������������������
��#���
���
��$���������������������������������������������%��������&
�����&
��������!�����������
!���
��������������������'��
������
���
������
���������������%�����������������������������
�����������������
���
���������������
�
����������������� �����
��&����
������������

���������
������&
�������
��������(������������������������)�����������������
����!��������
�������������������������
���������
!���������'��������������������
��������
����
��(������������������������
�������������
���������!�������� "���������������$��
�����
���
���������
������
���
������������
�����������������
������������������$�������
������*�����������
������+,-���
���������
���������������������������������
����������������� ��!�����"�������������������������
������
��$��������������+,-������������������
������������������������������
�����������������&
�����&
��������!�����������
!������	������
!���������$�����
��
��������
������
���������������������������+��
������
��-�����������.+,-/��������
�������������%�����&
���������������
�����������
������
��������
������������������������������������
�
�����
��������
������
�������
��������������
�����������
�����������������������������������+,-���*������
�����
���$�����������������������������������
�����	
�����������
��������$���
�������
������������ �����&��#�*�����
������������������
��'������0%�1211���345657468�9:;67<��(������������
��=>%?1@%222������
!����������&����
������
���������&
��������"�!��
������'�������A$�����
��
��������
������
���������������������������+,-�������
����������������
������
�����&
�����������������������
��������������
�������������������������
��������������������
������
������$�����
��
�������������������������
�������������������������������
!�����������������B<C6<DE47�F865�G8D:D5<HIJ��������
����������
��������������
��
����� �������������������������������
��
����������
������������������������������������
�����
��������������������
���!���
�������������������&
�������'�����������
�����%��
���'.��/K�'��
�������
������)���������
���������������������
�����
������
�������
��������
��������������������������L���'�����������
�����%�(
���"K��
�����������)�A$�������!������
��������
������������������������
�������������������BMN:4<<DO�NPQ�

50



��������		
����������	�
�����
	����	������������������ �	!���"#�$�!��
���� ������%��
�
��	��
���&''
��	��())*�+���),��*� ���-���./0
1
���
51



 

o 

    County of Santa Cruz 

  

      HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

(831) 454-4130 or 454-4088 
FAX (831) 454-4642 

1000 Emeline Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
www.santacruzhumanservices.org      www.workforcescc.com 

 
Draft 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 

DATE: March 16, 2022 
TIME: 8:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. 
PLACE: Virtual Meeting via Microsoft Teams 
 

Commissioners Present: Emily Hanson (1st District); Lisa Smith (1st District); Martina Shayn  
O’Sullivan (2nd District); Danny Keith (2nd District); Monica Martinez (3rd District); Betsy Clark 
(3rd District); Stoney Brook (4th District); Denise Hitzeman (5th District). 
 
Commissioners Excused:  None 
 
Commissioners Unexcused: Felipe Hernandez (4th District) 
 
Commission Seats Vacant: None 
 
Staff Present: Randy Morris, HSD Director; Micki Coca Buss, Administrative Services Manager, 
and Jackie West, Executive Secretary, Dr. Robert Ratner, Housing for Health Division Director. 
 
Guests: none 
 
1. Approval of Minutes (Action):  The Commission approved January 19, 2022, meeting 

minutes. (O’Sullivan / Clark) 
 AYES: Hanson, Smith, Keith, O’Sullivan, Martinez, Clark, Brook, Hitzeman 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN:  Anderson-Ochoa 
 ABSENT:  Hernandez 
 
 
 
 
 

52



2 
 

2. AB 361 Findings (Action): The Commission approved to keep meeting virtually. 
(Keith/Hanson) 

    AYES: Hanson, Smith, Keith, O’Sullivan, Martinez, Clark, Brook, Hitzeman, 
Anderson-Ochoa 

 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 

 ABSENT: Hernandez 
3. Bylaws Review (Action): The Commission approved to review the current Bylaws at the 

May 18, 2022, meeting. 
(Martinez, Anderson-Ochoa) 

 AYES: Hanson, Smith, Keith, O’Sullivan, Martinez, Clark, Brook, Anderson-Ochoa, 
Hitzeman 

 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Hernandez 

4. Review and Approve 2021 Human Services Commission Work Plan (Action) 
Item continued to the May 18, 2022, meeting.  

 
 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:34a.m. 
 

53



 

o 

    County of Santa Cruz 

  

      HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

(831) 454-4130 or 454-4088 
FAX (831) 454-4642 

1000 Emeline Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
www.santacruzhumanservices.org      www.workforcescc.com 

 
Draft 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 

DATE: May 18, 2022 
TIME: 8:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. 
PLACE: Virtual Meeting via Microsoft Teams 
 

Commissioners Present: Monica Martinez (3rd District); Felipe Hernandez (4th District); Denise 
Hitzeman (5th District) 
 
Commissioners Excused:  Emily Hanson (1st District); Lisa Smith (1st District); Martina Shayn  
O’Sullivan (2nd District); Danny Keith (2nd District) ); Betsy Clark (3rd District); Stoney Brook (4th 
District) 
 
Commissioners Unexcused: None 
 
Commission Seats Vacant: None 
 
Staff Present: Randy Morris, HSD Director; Micki Coca Buss, Administrative Services Manager, 
Jackie West, Executive Secretary, and Jamie Murray, Child Support Services Director 
 
Guests: none 
 
1. The meeting was cancelled due to lack of commission member quorum.   

 
 

54



 

 County of Santa Cruz 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

PH (831) 454-4130ꞏ FAX (831) 454-4642 
1000 Emeline Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

www.hsd.co.santa-cruz.ca.us        www.workforcescc.com 
 

 
 
 
 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION’S  
FINDINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS AS A RESULT OF 
THE CONTINUING COVID‐19 PANDEMIC STATE OF EMERGENCY AND HEALTH OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

FOR SOCIAL DISTANCING 
 

WHEREAS, THIS HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION is a legislative body under the Brown Act as defined 
under Cal. Gov. Code section 54952(b) and Santa Cruz County Code Section 2.38.110; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361 (“AB 361”), urgency 
legislation effective immediately, that amended Government Code section 54953 to permit legislative bodies 
subject to the Brown Act to continue to meet under modified teleconferencing rules provided that they 
comply with specific requirements set forth in the statute; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361 and Cal. Gov. Code section 54953(e)(1)(A), a legislative body may meet 

under the modified teleconferencing rules during a proclaimed state of emergency, and where local officials 
have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and 

 
  WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of Emergency in 
response to the COVID‐19 pandemic, and which remains in effect; and 
  

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2021, Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer Dr. Gail Newel strongly 
recommended that legislative bodies in Santa Cruz County continue to engage in physical/social distancing by 
meeting via teleconference as allowed by AB 361 and confirmed that she will regularly review and reconsider 
this recommendation and notify the public when it is no longer recommended; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to AB 361 and Cal. Gov. Code section 54953(e)(3), within 30 days of the date the 
legislative body first holding a teleconferenced meeting under the modified rules, and every 30 days 
thereafter, a legislative body can continue to hold such teleconference meetings provided it has reconsidered 
the circumstances of the state of emergency and determined either that the state of emergency continues to 
directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person or that local officials continue to 
recommend measures to promote social distancing; and 
 
  WHEREAS, on March 16, 2022, this Human Services Commission held its teleconference meeting under 
AB 361; and 

 
 

WHEREAS, this Human Services Commission has reconsidered the circumstances of the current state of 
emergency and finds that the COVID‐19 pandemic continues to directly impact the ability of members of the 
public to participate safely in person and further finds that the Santa Cruz County Public Health Officer 
continues to recommend measures to promote social distancing; and 

55



 
WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, and due to the emergency caused by the spread 

of COVID‐19, the Human Services Commission deems it necessary to utilize the modified teleconferencing 
rules set forth in AB 361;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Human Services Commission makes the following findings by a majority vote:  
 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and adopted as findings of the Human Services 

Commission.  
 
  Section 2. Effective immediately, and for the next 30 days, the Human Services Commission will meet 
via teleconference as authorized under AB 361 and Government Code section 54953(e)(3). 

 
Section 3.  No later than thirty (30) days from making today’s findings, or at the next scheduled 

meeting, the Commission will reconsider the circumstances of the COVID‐19 state of emergency and, if 
necessary, adopt subsequent findings to continue holding teleconference meetings in accordance with 
Government Code section 54953(e)(3).  
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Human Services Commission in Santa Cruz, State of California, this 16th 
day of March 2022, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   Hanson, Smith, Keith, Shayn O’Sullivan, Martinez, Clark, Brook, Anderson‐Ochoa, Hitzeman 

NOES:   None 

ABSENT:   Hernandez 

ABSTAIN:   None 

        
 
ATTEST:  Micki Coca Buss      Denise Hitzeman      
    Department Staff      Chair, Human Services Commission 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
_____________________________________ 
  Office of the County Counsel 
 

56



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 1  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

   
County of Santa Cruz 

      HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAPTER I IN GENERAL 
 
In accordance with Section 17000 of the Welfare and Institution Code, the 
County of Santa Cruz, hereinafter referred to as County, adopts these General 
Assistance regulations effective for implementation on and after October 1, 1982.  
These regulations are promulgated so as to comply with all applicable Federal, 
State and local laws, regulations, guidelines, bulletins.  These regulations shall 
be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the United States, and 
State of California, and County of Santa Cruz. 
 
The County Human Services Department hereinafter referred to as Human 
Services shall be responsible for the administration of the General Assistance 
program in accordance with the provisions set forth in these regulations. 
 
End Section 
  

57



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 2  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER II COUNTY RESPONSIBILITY 
 

A. In General  

 
Section 17000 of the Welfare and Institutions Code provides that every 
County is responsible for providing relief and support for all incompetent, 
poor, indigent persons, and those incapacitated by age, disease, or accident 
who are lawfully resident there, when such persons are not supported and 
relieved by their relatives and friends, by their own means, or by state 
hospitals or other private institutions. 
 

B. Administration of General Assistance 

 
General Assistance is administered by the Santa Cruz Human Services 
Department under authority of the County Board of Supervisors and pursuant 
to Part 5, W & I Code.  General Assistance shall be administered promptly 
and humanely, with due regard for the preservation of family life.  General 
Assistance shall be so administered as to encourage self-respect, self-
reliance, and the desire to be a productive citizen. Further, it is the 
responsibility of all who are concerned with the administration of General 
Assistance to do so with courtesy, consideration, and respect toward 
applicants and recipients and without attempting to elicit any information not 
necessary to carry out the provisions of these regulations. The provisions of 
the law relating to General Assistance are to be construed to affect the stated 
objects and purposes of the program. 

 

C. Duty to Plan for Self-Sufficiency of Applicants/Recipients 

It is the joint responsibility of Human Services and the applicant(s) or 
recipient(s) to develop a plan of rehabilitation and support to the end that the 
applicant(s)/recipient(s) shall become self-sufficient and independent of 
further assistance.  

 

D. Emergency Exception to Limitations 

 
In emergency and unusual circumstances, exceptions may be made by the 
Director or his/her designated representative to the limitations provided in 
these regulations. 

 

58



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 3  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

 

E. Form of Aid 

 
Aid may be granted in a monthly cash payment via warrant, direct deposit, 
Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT), vendor payment (a payment paid to a 
provider of an item of need) or 2 party check. Aid may also be granted via in-
kind services. Human Services may use more than one form of aid for any 
individual recipient.  
 
Benefits issued via EBT will be in accordance with the California Department 
of Social Services Manual of Policies and Procedures (MPP) Division 16.   

 

F. Confidentiality 

 
General Assistance records are confidential. Names, addresses, and all 
information concerning the circumstances of any persons from whom or about 
whom information is obtained is confidential.  Records are not open to 
examination or inspection except by the Grand Jury or by the Board of 
Supervisors of Santa Cruz County as a whole in their official capacity and not 
as individual members, or by an officer of the State or of Santa Cruz County 
charged with the supervision, direction and enforcement of General 
Assistance policies, or by the individual recipient or applicant or by his/her 
authorized representative. 

 

G. Destruction of Case Records 

 
The Board of Supervisors may authorize the destruction by Human Services 
of the case history, or any part thereof, of any recipient of General Assistance 
who has not received aid from the County of Santa Cruz for more than four 
years. 

 

H. Delegation of Authority to Administer Oaths 

 
The Human Services Director may designate persons as his/her 
representative to take such affidavits and administer such oaths as are 
required under the General Assistance Program. 

 
 
END SECTION  

59



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 4  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER III PROCEDURES FOR APPLICATION AND 
DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 
 

A. In General 

 
Any person has the right to apply for General Assistance, and Human 
Services is required to process all applications for assistance.  It is the 
responsibility of the applicant or recipient of General Assistance to apply for, 
to actively pursue, and to accept all potentially available income and 
resources.  Failure to apply for, to actively pursue, or to accept such income 
or resources after being informed by Human Services of the applicant’s or 
recipient’s apparent eligibility for such other income or resources shall render 
the applicant or recipient ineligible for General Assistance. 

 
All persons other than dependent minor children who are members of 
applicant or recipient households must file a complete application for General 
Assistance. Parents of minor children shall apply on behalf of their children. 

 

B. Determination of Eligibility 

 
Human Services will conduct a prompt, complete, and careful investigation of 
the needs and resources and will make a determination of eligibility of each 
applicant within 45 days of the date of application.  The eligibility 
determination process for all applicants shall include an in-office interview by 
Benefits Representative prior to the granting of assistance, other than 
emergency assistance. 

 

C. Eligibility Redetermination 

 
Human Services will conduct an annual redetermination of each active case 
which may include a home visit. 

D. HUMAN SERVICES Responsibility 

 
1. Human Services is responsible for assisting the applicant or recipient 

when he/she is unable to provide necessary information.  Human 
Services shall inform the applicant or recipient what information is 
required and why it is needed. If Human Services must obtain verification 
for the applicant or recipient from another source, the applicant or 
recipient must provide written consent for the release of information to 
Human Services.  The written consent document must clearly state its 

60



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 5  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

purpose, the specific information requested, and the individual or agency 
to contact for the information. 

 
2. Human Services is responsible for giving to each applicant and 

recipient a clear and thorough explanation of the General Assistance 
program and of the individual’s rights and responsibilities.  Such 
explanations will be given both verbally and in writing, at intake and at 
any other time determined to be necessary by Human Services.  The 
General Assistance Regulations will be available upon request to all 
applicants and recipients as well as other interested persons. A sign will 
be displayed in a visible place in the waiting room at the General 
Assistance offices informing people of their right to review all such 
regulations.  Further, this sign will inform all applicants and recipients of 
their rights to know any and all regulations which are the grounds for 
specific actions taken by the County relating to General Assistance. 

 

E. Applicant and Recipient Responsibility 

 
1. Reporting Responsibilities  

 
The applicant or recipient is the primary source of information.  It is his/her 
responsibility to provide, insofar as possible, within his/her capability, all 
necessary information to establish eligibility.  
 

a) Request for information/verification 
 
Information necessary to establish or continue eligibility shall be listed 
on the appropriate approved form (WEL 4048) or appropriate form 
letter and ten (10) days shall be given for the requested 
information/verification to be submitted to the agency. If the 
information/verification is not received by the agency within ten (10) 
days, a denial or discontinuance notice of action will be sent to the 
applicant/recipient.  Information provided to the Human Services 
Department may be verified exparte (e.g. vehicle registration, UIB, SDI 
and ownership of real property in Santa Cruz County). 
 

(1) On pending cases, the verification shall be accepted by the 
agency and the proposed denial action will be rescinded if 
received after ten (10) days but prior to thirty (30) days of the 
date of request.  

 
(2) On active cases, the verification received or postmarked by the 

1st working day after the end of the month of the request shall 
be accepted, and any proposed or implemented action to 
discontinue will be rescinded.   

61



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 6  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 
 

(3) Failure to provide necessary information and verification shall 
render the applicant or recipient ineligible for General 
Assistance.   

 
(a) An applicant or recipient of General Assistance is required to 

report any income or changes in circumstances to the 
General Assistance Unit within ten (10) days of receipt or of 
the change. 

(b) Each household shall file a monthly eligibility report (CW7) 
with income and changed circumstances by the fifth working 
day of the month.  

 
 

2. Noncompliance with Reporting Responsibilities 
  
When it comes to the attention of Human Services that an applicant or 
recipient has failed to report changes in income or circumstances to the 
General Assistance Unit within ten (10) calendar days of the change or 
has willfully provided misinformation to the General Assistance Unit, 
Human Services shall take appropriate action as follows. 

 
a) Failure to report changes in income and circumstances within ten 

(10) calendar days of change without good cause shall be a basis for 
denial or discontinuance of assistance. 

 
b) The willful provision of misinformation to the General Assistance 

Unit shall be a basis for denial or discontinuance of assistance.  
 

c) No new financial assistance shall be granted from the effective date 
of denial/discontinuance for the sanction period set forth in Chapter 
III, E, 3. 

 
3. Sanction Period for Noncompliance with Reporting Responsibilities 

 
For noncompliance with reporting responsibilities without good cause, a 
recipient and the General Assistance household of such a recipient shall 
be sanctioned from receiving General Assistance for the period described 
below: 

 
a) First incident of noncompliance, 1 month. 
 
b) Second incident of noncompliance, 3 months. 
 
c) Third and subsequent incidents of noncompliance, 6 months each. 
 

62



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 7  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

d) Good cause for failure to report receipt of income and changes in 
income or circumstances to the General Assistance Unit within ten 
(10) calendar days of the change exists when: 

 
(1) The individual was verifiably ill. 
(2) The individual is able to verify that due to circumstances beyond 

his/her control he/she was unable to report a change within the 
required ten (10) day period. 

 
For active cases, a sanction begins the first of the following month. 

 
4. Promptness 

 
When an applicant or recipient is more than 15 minutes late for a 
scheduled appointment, the applicant/recipient is responsible for re-
scheduling the appointment. If the applicant/recipient fails to reschedule 
the appointment within 30 days of the date of the application the case will 
be denied or discontinued.  Applicants or recipients may only reschedule 
an appointment once per occasion. 
 
 For application appointments, benefits will be issued according to General 
Assistance Regulations, Chapter IX, D, 5. 

 
 

5. Fraud Referrals  
 
A referral to the Special Investigations Unit (SIU) will be made when an 
Intentional Program Violation is suspected (IPV).  General Assistance will 
align its IPV definition with that of the CalFresh program.   
 
If an IPV occurs, the individual will be disqualified from receiving GA 
benefits as follows: 
 

a) 1 year for 1st violation 
 
b) 2 years for 2nd violation 

 
c) Permanent disqualification for 3rd violation. 

 

F. Reimbursement of General Assistance 

 
Prior to the authorization of assistance, all applicants shall sign a 
reimbursement agreement and lien. For sponsored non-citizens, the legal 
sponsor of a non-citizen shall be required to sign a General Assistance 
reimbursement agreement.  The County is entitled to reimbursement for 

63



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 8  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

General Assistance funds, from, but not limited to, earnings, Interim 
Assistance payments, worker’s compensation settlements, tax refunds, 
insurance claims or other legal settlements.  

 
Collectable accounts may be referred by Human Services to the County 
Collections Department.  (Refer to W & I Code Chapter 5, Sections 17000 to 
17409, Public Law 93-368, EAS Manual 46-337.1) 
 
 
END SECTION  

64



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 9  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER IV PERSONS ELIGIBLE FOR GENERAL ASSISTANCE 
 
Persons who are legal residents of Santa Cruz County, who are indigent in that 
they are incapacitated by age, disease, infirmity or physical impairment to the 
extent that such incapacity prevents seeking, accepting, or engaging in gainful 
employment or in that by circumstances at the time of application for aid, they are 
without the necessities of life and immediate means to provide them and who 
have income and resources below the standards established in these regulations 
may qualify for aid under the General Assistance Program of the County of Santa 
Cruz as provided below. 
 

A. Employable Persons 

 
1. An employable person is a person: 
 

a) who is able to work 
 
b) who is actively seeking work 

 
c) who is actively participating in a Family Reunification plan with 

Child Welfare Services (CWS) and complying fully with CWS 
requirements. Verified compliance with CWS requirements shall 
substitute for all GA required job searches. Compliance shall be 
verified in writing by CWS staff. 

 
d) who has not rejected an offer of work or terminated employment 

within 30 days of the date of application or while receiving General 
Assistance 

 
e) who is unemployed in that he/she is: 

 
(1) not employed, or 
(2) employed less than 100 hours per month. 

 
2. Exclusions 

 
A person is not considered employable if he/she is: 

 
a) Sixty-five (65) years of age or older. 
 
b) A caretaker whose presence in the home is required on a 

substantially continuous basis because of the illness or incapacity of 
another member of the household, as verified by a physician, and 

65



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 10  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

there is no other reasonable means of caring for the disabled 
persons; or 

 
c) Incapacitated to the extent that all possible benefit from employment 

or training is precluded, as verified by a physician; or 
 

d) An unmarried minor child of an applicant or recipient, unless that 
child is 16 to 18 years old and is attending high school full-time or is 
in an approved training program. 

 
e) A caretaker of a child under six who is presently providing full-time 

care for the child with only brief and infrequent absences. 
 

f) Restricted to light work by a physical incapacity and he/she does not 
have the mental capacity and work background to perform light work. 

 

B. Incapacitated Persons 

 
1. Applicants or recipients who claim full or partial inability to work based 

on one or more of the factors listed below will be referred for medical 
evaluation to determine their degree of employability.  A medical 
evaluation clearly exempting an applicant or recipient from employment 
for a specific length of time must be provided by the applicant or recipient 
prior to granting continuing assistance on the basis of incapacity.   

 
a) Physical Disability - Evidence of physical disability shall consist of a 

health provider’s statement as to the nature of disability and length 
of expected duration. A health provider includes a physician, a 
physician assistant, a nurse practitioner, a registered nurse, and a 
chiropractor. Temporary emergency assistance of a period not to 
exceed one month may be granted to a person with a visible 
physical impairment. If a statement of disability from a health 
provider does not include prognosis of the expected duration of 
incapacity, another statement of disability must be provided by the 
recipient within thirty (30) days in order to substantiate continued 
eligibility. 

 
b) Mental Incapacity - A person may be unemployable for reasons of 

mental incapacity if he/she is: 
 

(1) An individual with intellectual disability, as evidenced by the 
results of currently accepted psychological testing. 

(2) Mentally ill.  A person declaring incapacity due to mental illness 
shall be referred to a mental health provider for evaluation prior 
to the granting of continuing General Assistance.  A mental 

66



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 11  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

health provider includes a psychiatrist, a psychologist, a mental 
health clinician, and a licensed marriage and family therapist. 
General Assistance may be granted for no more than two (2) 
months on the basis of a brief evaluation by a mental health 
provider prior to a psychiatric evaluation. 

 
c) When multiple diagnoses are listed on the statement of disability 

form and one or more diagnosis is addiction or dependency to drugs 
and/or alcohol, the Benefits Representative shall make it a 
requirement on the GENERAL ASSISTANCE INCAPACITATED 
PERSON AGREEMENT (WEL 4043) that the applicant/recipient 
must attend three (3) AA/NA meetings each week and provide 
verification of attendance on a weekly basis. Failure to attend 
meetings and provide verification of attendance shall be the basis 
for denial or discontinuance of assistance.  

 
d) Persons with a primary diagnosis of substance abuse will first be 

classified as an employable applicant or recipient and will be subject 
to the regulations outlined in Chapter V. Employment and 
Rehabilitation, General Assistance Regulations. Failure to meet the 
regulations outlined in Chapter V. Employment and Rehabilitation, 
General Assistance Regulations shall be a basis for denial or 
discontinuance.  An individual may reapply and may be eligible for 
General Assistance as a temporarily incapacitated person based on 
an evaluation of incapacity due to substance abuse from a health 
provider at the time of reapplication or reinvestigation.  

 
(1) Recipients with an incapacity due to substance abuse will be 

limited to 6 (six) cumulative months of assistance.  
 

2. As a condition of initial and/or continuing eligibility, applicants and 
recipients must comply with the Human Services plan for self-sufficiency. 
Human Services will verbally and in writing explain the requirements of 
the plan. The plan for self-sufficiency is documented on the “General 
Assistance Incapacitated Person Agreement” and/or the “General 
Assistance Employable Person Agreement”. The plan may include, but is 
not limited to: 

 
a) Keep appointments with health and mental health providers and 

follow their instructions for recovery. 
 
b) Apply for all potential income including state disability (SDI), 

supplemental security income (SSI) and workers compensation.  
 

c) Applicants and recipients who must apply for SSI as part of their 
plan self-sufficiency must also work cooperatively with the Human 

67



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 12  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

Services SSI Advocate if referred, or, provide verification that an 
attorney is assisting with their application. 

 
d) Attend NA/AA meetings as assigned. 

 
e) Work cooperatively with the Department of Vocational 

Rehabilitation (DVR) if referred. 
 

3. For recipient noncompliance with the Human Services plan for self-
sufficiency, no new financial assistance shall be granted from the 
effective date of discontinuance for the sanction period set forth in 
Chapter IV, B, 4. 

 
4. Sanction Period for Noncompliance with Human Services Plan for Self-

Sufficiency 
 

For recipient noncompliance with Human Services plan for self-
sufficiency without good cause, a recipient and the General Assistance 
household of such recipient shall be sanctioned from receiving General 
Assistance for the period described below: 

 
a) First incident of noncompliance, 1 month. 

 
b) Second incident of noncompliance, 3 months. 

 
c) Third and subsequent incidents of noncompliance, 6 months each. 

 
d) Good cause for failure to comply with the Human Services plan for 

independence exists when: 
 
(1) The individual was verifiably ill. 
(2) The individual is able to verify that due to circumstances beyond 

his/her control he/she was unable to comply with the 
requirements of the plan. 

C. Minors 

 
Minors are defined as unmarried persons under 18 years of age. 

 
1. If a minor is living at home, he/she is not eligible for General Assistance 

except as a member of a family receiving General Assistance. 
 
2. Any minor not living at home shall only be eligible for General 

Assistance if: 
 

68



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 13  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

a) The minor’s parents live in Santa Cruz County and sign a 
reimbursement agreement. If the parents have signed a 
reimbursement agreement, then the minor must be actively seeking 
full-time permanent employment. All minors under 18 years of age 
shall be referred to the Protective Services Unit for appropriate social 
services, or 

 
b) The minor meets the following criteria: 

 
(1) He/she is emancipated in accordance with the provisions of the 

Emancipation of Minors Act, Civil Code Sections 60 to 70; and 
 
(2) He/she is 16 or older and under 18; and 

 
(a) Has graduated from high school; or 
(b) Has successfully demonstrated proficiency equal to or 

greater than standards published by the Department of 
Education, as specified in Education Code Section 48412; or 

(c) Has been disqualified from attendance at special continuation 
classes because of physical or mental condition as specified 
in Education Code Section 48410.  

 
3. Welfare and Institutions Code Section 17102 shall be strictly applied to 

every minor who is not emancipated in accordance with the 
Emancipation of Minors Act.  

 
It reads as follows: “The residence of an unmarried minor child is the 
residence of the parent or parents with whom a child maintains his or her 
place of abode or of the parent who has legal custody of the minor. The 
residence of an orphan is that of the last deceased person who had his or 
her custody. The residence of a dependent child who has been declared 
free from the custody and control of his or her parent or parents, by order 
of the juvenile court, is not changed by change of residence of the parent 
or parents.  The provisions of this section apply to the extent not in conflict 
with federal law.” 

 
D. Students 

 
A student age 16 to 18 may be eligible as a dependent child in an eligible 
General Assistance household.  Students 18 years of age or older who are 
otherwise employable are not considered to be available for full-time 
permanent employment and are not eligible for General Assistance. 
Availability for employment prior to enrollment or between terms is not 
availability for permanent full-time employment. Students should be 
counseled to inquire into available loan and grant resources through their 
schools. 

69



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 14  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

 

E. Stepparents, Related Children and Adults 

 
Stepparents, related children and adults, all members of a CalWORKs 
household or a potential CalWORKs household, shall be referred for 
CalWORKs eligibility screening prior to making an application for General 
Assistance.   

 

F. Noncitizens 

 
Noncitizens may be determined to be eligible for General Assistance either as 
non-sponsored noncitizens or as sponsored noncitizens. Regardless of their 
entry, GA shall not be authorized until citizenship and sponsorship status is 
verified. Only noncitizens lawfully admitted to the U.S. under color of law may 
be eligible for General Assistance. Noncitizens permanently residing in the 
U.S. under color of law include: 

 
1. Noncitizens lawfully present in the U.S. as a result of the application of 

the following provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act. 
 

a) Section 207(c), after March 31, 1980- Noncitizens Admitted as 
Refugees. 

 
b) Section 208- Noncitizens Granted Political Asylum by the Attorney 

General. 
 

c) Section 212(d) (5)- Noncitizens Granted Temporary Parole Status 
by the Attorney General. 

 
2. Noncitizens granted status as Conditional Entrant Refugees pursuant to 

Section 203(a) (7) of the Immigration and Nationality Act in effect prior to 
April 1, 1980. 

 
a) Noncitizens granted indefinite voluntary departure in lieu of 

deportation. 
 
b) Noncitizens granted an indefinite stay of deportation. 

Documentation of legal noncitizen status must be provided by each 
noncitizen applicant prior to granting General Assistance. 
Documentation of noncitizen status will be required as follows: 

 
(1) Noncitizens lawfully admitted for permanent residence: INS 

Form I-551, or earlier forms I-151, AR-3a, if specifically 
endorsed to show legal right to reside permanently. 

70



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 15  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

 
(2) Noncitizens granted asylum or refugee status: INS Form I-94, 

annotated with the term asylee, refugee or conditional entry or 
entrant. 

 
(3) Parolees: INS Form I-94 (Arrival-Departure Record - Parole 

Edition) endorsed to show bearer has been paroled in the U.S. 
pursuant to Section 212 (d) (5) of the Immigration and 
Nationality Act. 

 
c) Persons granted indefinite voluntary departure or an indefinite stay 

of deportation. A court order or correspondence from the U.S. 
Citizenship and Immigration Services (formerly “INS”) stating that 
the individual has been granted this status.  

 
Documentation which appears to be of doubtful authenticity must be 
substantiated by the Benefits Representative through contact with 
the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (formerly “INS”). Any 
noncitizen applicant who refuses to cooperate in the verification of 
his/her current noncitizen status is not eligible for General 
Assistance. 

 

G. Ineligible by State Law 
 

Effective January 1, 1998, the following individuals will be ineligible for 
General Assistance by state law: 

 
1. Those who are fleeing to avoid prosecution for, or imprisonment after 

being convicted of a felony crime, or who are violating a condition of 
parole or probation. (AB 1542, Chapter 270, Statutes of 1997)  

 
 
 
2. Pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code Section 17020; any person 

eligible for and/or in receipt of CalWORKs is ineligible for General 
Assistance whenever the County’s General Assistance maximum 
payment level exceeds the CalWORKs payment level. 

 
3. Those who are ineligible for CalWORKs due to time limits and whose 
youngest child is under the age of 18, whether or not currently living in the 
home with the individual.  (AB 1008, Chapter 283, Statutes of 1997; SB72 
(2011))  

 
4. Any individual who is receiving aid under Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 11200) of Part 3 on behalf of an eligible child, but who is either 

71



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 16  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

ineligible for aid or whose needs are not otherwise taken into account in 
determining the amount of aid to the family pursuant to Section 11450 due 
to the imposition of a sanction or penalty, shall not be eligible for aid or 
assistance under this part. (AB 1542, Chapter 283, Statues of 1997) 

 
H. Other Ineligibles 

 
Individuals who are currently serving a General Assistance sanction in 
Santa Cruz County or any other county. 
 

 
END SECTION  

72



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 17  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER V EMPLOYMENT AND REHABILITATION 
 

A. Employable Persons 

 
1. As a condition of initial and/or continuing eligibility, recipients must 

comply with the Human Services plan for self-sufficiency. Human 
Services will verbally and in writing explain the requirements of the plan. 
The plan for self-sufficiency is documented on the “General Assistance 
Incapacitated Person Agreement” and/or the “General Assistance 
Employable Person Agreement”. The plan may include, but is not limited 
to: 

 
a) An employable person applying for or receiving General Assistance 

is required to accept a definite offer of reasonable employment.   
 
b) Each employable recipient must enroll in CalJOBs with the 

Employment Development Department (EDD) at the time of 
application or at the time he/she becomes employable.  Every 
employable person must be actively seeking work and must be 
available to all existing employment throughout Santa Cruz County.  
Employable persons may apply for work in surrounding counties.  

 
c) It is the joint responsibility of the recipient and Human Services to 

conduct a job search aimed at locating employment and/or job 
training. Each recipient is required to report to Human Services for 
employment and job search counseling.  Human Services shall take 
an active role in locating suitable employment and/or job training 
and will coordinate efforts with other public agencies aimed at 
increasing job potentials for General Assistance recipients. 

 
(1) If referred to job training activities, attendance and appropriate 

conduct will be monitored as a condition of participation. 
 

d) County Work Program (CWP): All employable persons shall be 
required to accept and complete work assignments to the County 
Work Program (CWP).  Each eligible employable person shall be 
required to work off the total value of General Assistance received 
of a maximum of 100 hours per month, whichever is less. 

 
(1) Total value of General Assistance will be computed by dividing 

the amount of aid received by the minimum wage rate, the 
quotient being the number of hours the recipient will be required 
to work, if less than 100 hours. A recipient is required to report to 

73



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 18  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

his/her CWP assignment on the date specified on the notification 
of assignment. 

 
(2) The second employable parent of a dependent child who is 

attending elementary school may be assigned a proportionally 
reduced CWP assignment and job search based on the number 
of hours of the work day the child/ren normally attend(s) school if 
no other adequate child care is available after school. 

B. Sanction Period for Failure to Comply With Human Services Plan For 
Self-Sufficiency 

 
1. For noncompliance with Human Services plan for self-sufficiency 

without good cause, a recipient and the General Assistance household of 
such recipient shall be sanctioned from receiving General Assistance for 
the period described below. 

 
a) First incidence of noncompliance, 1 month. 
 
b) Second incidence of noncompliance, 3 months. 

 
c) Third and subsequent incidence of noncompliance, 6 months. 

 

C. Good Cause For Noncompliance With Employable Person 
Requirements 

 
1. Good cause for failure to accept employment, to conduct a job search, 

to report weekly, to report to or complete the CWP assignment, must be 
reported to the assigned Human Services worker within three (3) working 
days of the date such failure occurs. 

 
2. Good cause for refusal or termination of employment exists when: 

 
a) The employment violated applicable health and safety laws and 

regulation, and applicable unemployment and workers compensation 
laws. 

 
b) The wage offered for the employment was less than the applicable 

State or Federal minimum wage. 
 

c) The job was available due to a bonafide strike or lockout. 
 

d) The employment has been verified by a health or mental health 
provider to be in excess of the individual’s physical or mental 
capacity. 

74



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 19  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 
 

e) The individual was verifiably ill or was required to care for a 
verifiably ill member of the immediate family and no other reasonable 
means of care was available. 

 
f) The individual was laid off due to lack of work or circumstances 

beyond their control. 
 

3. Good cause for failure to accept a CWP assignment or to complete 
CWP hours exist if: 

 
a) The employment violated applicable health and safety laws and 

regulations, and applicable unemployment and workers 
compensation laws. 

 
b) The job was available due directly to a bonafide strike or lockout. 

 
c) The assignment has been verified by a physician or psychiatrist to 

be in excess of the individual’s physical or mental capacity. 
 

d) The individual was verifiably ill or required to care for a verifiably ill 
member of the immediate family and no other arrangements were 
available. 

 
e) Adequate day care for a minor child has become unavailable 

through no fault of the recipient. 
 

4. Good cause for failure to conduct a job search and/or to report to 
Human Services exists if: 

 
a) The individual was verifiably ill or required to care for a verifiably ill 

member of the immediate family and no other arrangements were 
available. 

 
b) Adequate day care for a minor child has become unavailable 

through no fault of the applicant or recipient. 
 
 
END SECTION  

75



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 20  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER VI RESIDENCE 

A. Residency Requirements 

 
An applicant or recipient shall be a lawful resident of the State of California 
and the County of Santa Cruz to be eligible for General Assistance (Welfare 
and Institutions Code 17100).  Residency is established by confirming 
physical presence at a locale within the county for at least fifteen calendar 
days prior to the date of application, and intent to remain in Santa Cruz 
County. Physical presence may be confirmed through the application of B. or 
C. of this section.  All applicants must provide a form of identification. 

 

B. Confirming Physical Presence: Applicants/Recipients with a Fixed 
Address 

 
The applicant/recipient is required to supply verification of a fixed residential 
address in Santa Cruz County.  Such verification shall be: 

 
1. A written statement from the applicant/recipient’s landlord, or any other 

person with authority to grant permission to dwell in or on private 
property; or  

 
2. Rent receipts or utility bills (e.g., PG&E, telephone, water) in the 

applicant/recipient’s name for a Santa Cruz County address for a period 
ending within the past 30 days; or 

 
3. Mortgage payment book or receipt; or 

 
4. Any primary identification document issued within the last twelve (12) 

months which shows a printed Santa Cruz County address; or 
 

5. Any other combination of documents which provide a preponderance of 
evidence verifying that the applicant/recipient has a residence in Santa 
Cruz County. 

 

C. Confirming Physical Presence: Applicants/Recipients without a 
Fixed Address 

 
Applicants/recipients without a fixed residential address shall provide 
verification of continued physical presence at some location within Santa Cruz 
County.  Applicants/recipients must submit the following verification: 

 

76



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 21  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

1. Identification on a map of Santa Cruz County of the precise location 
where the applicant/recipient resides; and 

 
2.1. Applicants/recipients must also provide at least one of the following: 

 
a) Verification that the applicant/recipient was a public assistance 

recipient in Santa Cruz County within the last three months; 
 
b) Verification from a probation or parole agent which states that the 

applicant/recipient is restricted to Santa Cruz County as a condition 
of probation or parole; 

 
c) Acceptable written verification from an established social service 

agency that the applicant/recipient is currently residing in Santa Cruz 
County and receiving services from that agency in Santa Cruz 
County; 

 
d) A statement in writing from another local or state governmental 

entity that the applicant/recipient is currently residing in Santa Cruz 
County; 

 
e) Oral or written confirmation of the applicant’s/recipients ongoing 

physical presence in Santa Cruz County by a person with authority to 
grant permission to dwell in or on private property; 

 
f) Mail addressed and delivered to the applicant/recipient at a 

residential address in Santa Cruz County within the last 30 days; 
 

g) Evidence of the establishment and maintenance of a post office box 
located in Santa Cruz County; 

 
h) A voting registration card indicating residence in Santa Cruz County; 

 
i) A driver’s license indicating residence in Santa Cruz County; 

 
j) Any combination of documents and/or statements which provide a 

preponderance of evidence verifying that the applicant/recipient has 
continued physical presence in Santa Cruz County. 

 

D. Intent to Permanently Reside 

 
An applicant for General Assistance establishes intent to permanently reside 
at the place where he/she is living if he/she has no intention of presently 
leaving. (Welfare and Institutions Code 17101). 

 

77



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 22  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

1. Factors to be considered when evaluating an applicant’s intent to 
permanently reside in Santa Cruz County may include: 

 
a) The applicant’s last out-of-county address 
 
b) Length of time the applicant lived at the last out-of-county address 

 
c) When the applicant arrived in California 

 
d) When the applicant arrived in Santa Cruz County 

 
e) Reason for the applicant’s presence in Santa Cruz County 

 
f) Length of time the applicant expects to live in Santa Cruz County 

 
g) Living arrangements in Santa Cruz County 

 
h) Whether the applicant, if employable, has sought employment 

locally 
 

i) Location of the applicant’s personal property 
 

j) Whether the applicant owns or is renting a place of residence outside 
of Santa Cruz County 

 
k) Whether the applicant is registered to vote in Santa Cruz County or 

another county 
 
2. Persons incapable of changing residence - The intent to permanently 

reside in Santa Cruz County implies the legally recognized ability to 
make a choice. A person without such ability with regard to his/her place 
of residence cannot by his/her own intent establish residence. This 
applies to the following persons: 

 
a) Persons deprived by court action of freedom of movement - A 

person on probation or parole may not by intent establish his/her 
residence in Santa Cruz County if required by law or the terms of 
his/her parole to be elsewhere.  The residence of a person deprived 
by court action of freedom of movement remains the same as at the 
time of court action, except as it may be ordered changed by court 
action. 

 
b) Persons for whom a court has appointed a guardian or conservator -

The place of residence for a person for whom there is a court-
appointed guardian or conservator of the person is the county of 
residence at the time of the court action. Such place of residence 

78



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 23  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

may only be changed by decision of the guardian or conservator 
accompanied by removal of the ward or conservatee to another 
place.     

 

E. Prior Verifiable Address 

 
If the applicant has been evicted within the last 30 days prior to date of 
application or is in the process of moving within the County, his/her prior 
verifiable address in Santa Cruz County will be used to determine place of 
residence. 

 

F. Notation in the Case Record 

 
The case record shall contain a statement of how the applicant established 
his/her place of residence and his/her intent to reside in Santa Cruz County. 

 

G. Verifiable Residence Outside Santa Cruz County 

 
If the applicant does not meet the residency requirements listed in Chapter VI 
Part A and Part B of these regulations and has a verifiable residence 
elsewhere in the United States, Human Services shall make every effort to 
complete arrangements for the applicant’s return thereto. 
 
 
END SECTION  

79



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 24  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER VII PROPERTY - REAL AND PERSONAL 
 

A. Real Property 

 
1. An applicant or recipient shall not receive assistance, if such person, 

spouse, or household owns real property, the combined full cash of 
which, as determined by the county assessor, exceeds $25,000 after 
deduction of encumbrances of record. 

 
2. Property not the client’s home 

 
If an applicant owns property other than that occupied as a home, such 
property must be utilized as a resource from the date a lien is secured. 
Utilization shall be defined as sale of the property at its fair market value 
or rental of the property at the rate sufficient to produce a net income of 
6% of the fair market value per year. 

 
3. Transfer of property 
 
A person or persons who have made an assignment or transfer of real 
property within the three previous months of the application date for the 
purpose of qualifying for assistance shall not be eligible for assistance. 
The period of ineligibility shall be the length of time in which the value of 
the property could have provided a level of support consistent with the 
maximum grant level for General Assistance for the person or household. 

 

B. Personal Property 

 
1. Maximum Limits 

 
An applicant, recipient, or household is ineligible for General Assistance if 
the total value of his/her/their personal property exceeds the following 
limitations. 

 
a) Liquid Assets: The total value of personal property consisting of 

liquid assets, readily negotiable items and cash, shall not exceed 
$300.00 per household or $200.00 per individual. 

 
b) Insurance: The total negotiable value of an insurance policy or 

policies shall not exceed $200.00 per household or $100.00 per 
individual. The cash surrender value or insurance is exclusive of the 
liquid assets maximum and is to be computed separately. 

 

80



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 25  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

c) Motor Vehicles: The total value of a single motor vehicle of an 
applicant or recipient shall not exceed $4,650 above encumbrances 
of record. The value of a motor vehicle is determined by the 
wholesale value quoted in the current Kelly Blue Book or by the 
value as estimated by one automobile dealer. No single applicant or 
recipient shall own more than one motor vehicle. A household may 
own motor vehicles equal to the number of persons who are 
employable and actively seeking employment, provided that the 
value of no vehicle exceeds $4,650 above encumbrances of record. 

 
d) Other Personal Property: The total value of other personal property 

shall not exceed $200.00 per household or $100.00 per individual. 
 

2. Property Exempt from Limitations: 
a) The value of essential household furniture and equipment, personal 

effects, wedding and engagement rings, and family heirlooms is 
exempt from the personal property limitation. 

 
b) The value of tools, supplies, equipment, vehicles and other items 

which are determined by Human Services to be an essential part of a 
program of rehabilitation or of a program to assist in the maintenance 
and self-support of an applicant or recipient may be retained and 
exempted from the personal property limitations pursuant to W & I 
Code 17111. 

 
c) One burial plot per person will be exempt from the personal property 

limitations. 
 

d) Establishment-specific gift card balances restricted to purchasing 
limited range of goods are not considered personal property. 

 
3. Ineligibility Due to Transfer of Property 

 
A person or persons who have made an assignment or transfer of 
personal property within the three previous months of the application date 
for the purpose of qualifying for assistance shall not be eligible for 
assistance. The period of ineligibility shall be the length of time in which 
the value of the property could have provided a level of support consistent 
with the maximum grant level for General Assistance for that person or 
household. 

 

C. Liens 

 
Liens are to be secured on all real property, both in and out of the State, 
belonging to persons who are applying for and receiving General Assistance 

81



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 26  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

regardless of the assessed valuation of the property.  If the applicant or 
recipient refuses to sign a lien and repayment agreement, or a collateral 
assignment of insurance policy, no aid shall be granted, however, temporary 
assistance may be granted pending the filing of the lien. 

 
In all cases in which a lien is taken on a person’s real property, Human 
Services shall explain to the person that the lien will be exercised only upon 
transfer or sale of the property or at the death of the person.  Human Services 
shall also explain that the lien can only be released upon payment of the total 
debt and that the recipient(s) must petition the County Clerk’s Office for final 
release of the lien. 
 
 
END SECTION  

82



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 27  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER VIII INCOME 
 

A. Total Budgetary Need 

 
All net monthly income, in cash or in-kind, received or anticipated by an 
applicant, recipient, or household shall be verified and deducted from the 
person’s or household’s total budgetary need to determine eligibility and grant 
amount. All net income shall be deducted from the current month’s total 
budgetary need except that, if the current month’s grant has been issued 
already, the income shall be deducted from the future month’s total budgetary 
need. 
 
Income includes all earnings, self-employment, alimony, child support, social 
security, SSI/SSP, unemployment benefits, state disability, workers 
compensation, cash gifts, prepaid credit cards (containing credit card 
companies logos including but not limited to Visa, Master Card, American 
Express), loans, student financial aid, and retirement income. Net income is 
gross income minus mandatory deductions.  

 

B. Determining Eligibility 

 
The total net income of individuals, or households, shall be utilized in 
determining eligibility for assistance.  If the total net income exceeds the 
General Assistance budgetary need, no eligibility exists. The total General 
Assistance budgetary need shall be based on the basic needs of food, shelter 
and personal needs.  

 

C. Income Reporting 

 
All gross income, in cash or in-kind, must be reported by the applicant or 
recipient to the Benefits Representative within ten (10) days of the date of the 
receipt.  In addition, each recipient shall file a report of income and changed 
circumstances monthly by the fifth working day of the month. See also 
Chapter III, Section E1. 

 

D. Excluded Income 

 
Federal Energy Assistance payments including HEAP, renter’s credit, 
prisoner release money, mileage reimbursement, establishment specific gift 
cards and the allowance for training expenses paid to recipients participating 
in the Department of Rehabilitation training programs or WIOA shall be 

83



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 28  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

exempt from consideration as income in determining eligibility for General 
Assistance payments. 

 
 

E. Lump Sum Income 

 
Lump sum income is any income that is anticipated or received by a General 
Assistance applicant or recipient which is non-recurring in regard to amount 
or source.  The number of months that the General Assistance individual or 
household is ineligible for an aid payment due to the receipt or anticipated 
receipt of the lump sum income is determined by dividing the total lump sum 
plus any other net non-exempt income received or projected in the budget 
month by the General Assistance needs standard for the individual or 
household. The resulting whole number is the number of months of ineligibility 
for General Assistance. If there is a remainder from the division, the 
remainder shall be counted as income in the month following the end of the 
period of ineligibility. 

 
If the General Assistance individual or household reapplies for General 
Assistance before the number of months of ineligibility has expired, 
documentation of how the money was spent will be required and reasonable 
and necessary expenses for food, clothing, shelter, transportation, medical 
expenses, legal fees and employment enhancement will be allowed. 
 
 
END SECTION  

84



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 29  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER IX STANDARD OF NEED AND AID PAYMENTS 
 

A. Single Person 

 
A single person means an individual, who is economically independent, living 
alone or in a shared housing arrangement.  Separate household status shall 
not be granted to parents living with their natural, adopted or step children, or 
children living with their natural, adopted, or stepparents, if the child is18 
years of age and under the age of 22.  A person residing in a licensed 
residential care facility shall be considered a single person. 
NOTE: A residential care facility or boarding home must be licensed in order 
to receive General Assistance room and board payments. Payments to such 
facilities shall be made in amounts which reflect the duration of the recipient’s 
stay and the level of the service provided. 

 

B. Household 

 
1. A household means a family unit or couple living together in one 

dwelling unit. 
 
2. A family unit is defined as two or more persons of the relationship of 

father, mother, son, daughter, grandmother, grandfather, brother, sister, 
stepfather, stepmother, stepsister, stepbrother, uncle, aunt, first cousin, 
nephew, or niece, who live together in the same dwelling and share 
resources and expenses. An unborn will not be considered as a 
household member until it is born. 

 
3. A couple is defined as two persons paired together and commingling 

moneys, resources and expenses, clearly distinguished from two single 
persons simply sharing housing, or one person being furnished room and 
board by another. If one person is receiving SSI, the other will be treated 
as a single person in a shared living situation. 

 
4. A household may also be defined as more than two people living 

together and commingling moneys and expenses clearly distinguished 
from more than two single persons simply sharing housing. 

 
5. In order to receive General Assistance all household members must 

meet the eligibility requirements in these regulations. 
 
 
 

85



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 30  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

C. General Assistance Budget 

 
1. The maximum grant level is the maximum amount of assistance which 

is available to provide a general assistance person or household with the 
following: 

 
a) Shelter including utilities and basic telephone cost (as owed up to 

the maximum) 
 
b) Food 

 
c) Personal needs including clothing and transportation 

 
2. The monthly budget will be computed using the following figures.  

 

 
Household 

Size 

Shelter, Utilities, 
and Basic 
Telephone 

(as owed, up to) 

 
Personal 
Needs 

 
 

Food 

 
Maximum 

Grant 

1 $28540 $35410 $13288 $771638 
2 $38931 $345288 $25700 $991819 
3 $419346 $441369 $39220 $1,252035 
4 $49811 $556469 $451364 $1,505244 
5 $572470 $684582 $508406 $1,764458 
6 $613496 $807690 $604487 $2,0241,673 

 
 
 

3. Persons residing in a board and care or residential care facility will have 
their budgets computed as follows: 

 
a) Residential Care Facility - Single individual: 
 
Room, board and care as owed up to   $490.00 

Personal needs     $354.00284.00 
Maximum Grant      
 $844.00774.00 

 
4. Alcoholic Recovery House - Single individual:  

 
Room, board and care as owed up to  $338.00 
Personal needs               $354.00268.00 
Maximum Grant               $692.0006.00 

 

86



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 31  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

D. Other Budget Provisions 

 
1. Taxes - Provisions may be made for payment of property taxes on the 

home of a recipient. 
 
2. Exceeding Maximum - In an emergency, such as an imminent 

foreclosure, Human Services may provide the homeowner recipient the 
total amount of the monthly property payment due. 

 
3. Special rent ceiling in emergencies - In extraordinary instances 

requiring location and negotiation of emergency housing, it will be 
department policy to follow the same principles used in emergency foster 
home placement. Benefit Representatives may negotiate for emergency 
housing at a rate not to exceed $19.00 per night for a period not to 
exceed seven (7) days. 

 
4. Shelter Costs - Budget computation will include current monthly shelter 

costs, including utilities, as owed, up to the maximum budgeted amount.  
Basic telephone cost is included as a utility expense. If the 
applicant/recipient has shelter costs (including utilities) higher than the 
maximum allowed, the food budget may be used in part or in full, 
towards the shelter expense. 

 
a) Reimbursement for temporary motel lodging for homeless recipients 

will be made under the following conditions: motel was in Santa Cruz 
County; the payment for lodging was made with the GA aid payment 
and is based on the recipient’s portion of the lodging amount.  
Reimbursement will not exceed the grant amount for housed 
individuals. 

 
5. The General Assistance grant shall be computed from the date of 

application provided that all eligibility requirements are met. 
 

6. The General Assistance case may be restored and grant shall be 
prorated from the date that all eligibility requirements are met within the 
30 days following the discontinuance. 

 
5.a) Restoration of benefits may not be applied when a discontinuance 

results in a sanction. 
 

67. Amount of Aid - If the amount of aid the applicant/recipient is 
determined to be eligible for is less than ten dollars ($10.00) no payment 
shall be made for that month. 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted

87



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 32  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

78. Transportation for Return to Residence - The cost of transportation 
necessary to return a non-resident(s) to his/her/their place of legal 
residence shall be provided on a one-time only basis. Human Services 
shall make arrangements for return to residence with a transportation 
provider. The reasonable cost of meals not to exceed $14.00 per day per 
person while traveling, lodging may be provided if needed, in addition to 
the cost of the transportation. 

 
89. Unbudgeted Special Needs - Payment for unbudgeted special needs 
may be provided in unusual or emergency circumstances with the 
approval of the Director or his/her designee if the applicant, recipient, or 
household has no other means to provide for such needs.  An example of 
such a special need would be a uniform or supplies necessary to accept 
an offer to meet this need. 

 
910. Bus Pass(es) - Transit bus pass(es) will be available to applicants or 
recipients who are in need of transportation and are unable to meet this 
need. Bus passes will be given only for activities related to the plan for 
self-sufficiency and as available. 

 
1011. Pregnancy Special Need - A special allowance of $10048.00 per 
month will be granted to a pregnant woman who is receiving General 
Assistance. 

 
1112. Advanced Personal Needs - In order to increase the employability of 
eligible applicants and to enhance the effectiveness of Job Search 
Procedures, each eligible employable applicant shall be granted for 
personal needs, an amount from $10.00 minimum up to the monthly 
maximum for Personal Needs. Advanced personal needs will be prorated 
from the date of application. If the prorated amount is less than $10.00, 
$10.00 in cash benefits will be issued. Advanced personal needs may be 
issued prior to verification of eligibility. Advance Personal Needs Grants 
shall be granted to General Assistance employable applicants who: 

 
a) Have less than $10.00 cash income in the month of application. 

 
b) Have less in liquid resources than the amount of Advance Personal 

Needs to which he/she would be entitled. 
 

c) Have not failed without good cause to complete job search 
requirements on a prior application, after having received an 
advance personal needs grant.  Advanced personal needs will be 
issued within three days of date of application. 

 
 
END SECTION  

Formatted: Font: Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Outline numbered + Level: 4 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.81" + Indent at:  0.96"

Formatted: Font: Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Outline numbered + Level: 4 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.81" + Indent at:  0.96"

Formatted: Font: Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Outline numbered + Level: 4 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.81" + Indent at:  0.96"

88



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 33  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER X RESPONSIBILITY OF RELATIVES 
 

A. Legally Responsible Relatives 

 
For the purpose of General Assistance, legally responsible relatives are:  

 
1. the spouse of an applicant, 
 
2. the recipient and the parent(s) of a minor child who is not already 

emancipated pursuant to Civil Code Section 60, et seq., and who is an 
applicant or recipient, 

 
3. the legal sponsor of a non-citizen applicant/recipient.  A legal sponsor of 

a non-citizen applicant/recipient shall only be financially responsible 
during the period of time which sponsor has agreed, in writing, to provide 
for the non-citizen. 

 

B. Investigation of Relative’s Financial Ability 

 
Human Services will investigate the financial ability of the responsible relative 
to support or contribute to the support of the applicant or recipient. 

 
A financial inquiry shall be mailed to all responsible relatives, both in and out 
of the state.  A responsible relative’s contribution shall be computed in 
accordance with guidelines established by Human Services.  

 

C. Failure to Cooperate 

 
Cases in which relatives fail to cooperate shall be referred by Human 
Services to the District Attorney for proper action. 
 
 
END SECTION  

89



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 34  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

CHAPTER XI HEARING PROCEDURE FOR APPLICANTS AND 
RECIPIENTS OF GENERAL ASSISTANCE 
 

A. Notice of Action; Right of Hearing; Time to Appeal 

 
Human Services shall give written notice to the applicant, recipient, or 
authorized representative of all actions granting, denying, discontinuing or 
decreasing General Assistance.  Notices of Action shall cite applicable 
General Assistance regulations supporting the proposed action.  The 
applicant, recipient, or authorized representative has a right to appeal and to 
have a hearing with respect to any such proposed action. The notice of action 
shall inform the applicant, recipient, or authorized representative of the 
method for filing an appeal. The applicant, recipient, or authorized 
representative may appeal the written proposed action, within thirty (30) 
calendar days of the postmarked date, or the date of hand delivery with 
signed receipt, of the notification of such proposed action. When the recipient 
files a request for a Fair Hearing prior to the effective date of the Notice of 
Action, aid shall be continued in the amount that the recipient would have 
been paid if the proposed action were not to be taken, pending the Fair 
Hearing. If the applicant or recipient has a Court Appointed Guardian, the 
appeal must be filed by the Guardian of Record. 

 

B. Prior Notice; Exception; Discontinuance Request  

 
Human Services shall notify the recipient by the notice postmarked, or hand 
delivered with signed receipt, at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the 
effective date of the proposed action to discontinue, or decrease, or prorate 
due to restoration grant assistance unless the recipient waives his/her right of 
ten (10) days prior notice in writing.  The written request for discontinuance, 
or decrease or proration of benefits shall contain the reason for the request 
and should state that the recipient knows that he/she has the right to a 
hearing and voluntarily gives up these rights and the right to applicable 
continued aid. 

 
There is to be no continuing aid paid pending the hearing and/or decision if 
the issue is one of law or of County regulations.  A continuing aid paid 
pending decision shall be rendered by the Hearing Officer or appointed 
representative at the conclusion of the General Assistance Fair Hearing. If aid 
paid pending is approved, the recipient must continue to meet their General 
Assistance plan for self-sufficiency and other program regulations. 

 
 

90



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 35  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

C. Hearing Rights 

 
The applicant or recipient shall be advised in writing of his/her right to an 
informal conference, to obtain counsel or other representation for his/her 
hearing, to review all pertinent case records, to interview workers in a 
conference in advance of the hearing, to present testimony on his/her behalf, 
and to cross-examine witnesses. 

 

D. Impartial   Hearing Officer  

 
Human Services shall provide a Hearing Officer or appointed representative 
who has not been involved in any way in the determination to deny, decrease, 
prorate based on restoration  or discontinue aid. The decision shall be in 
writing and shall be based solely on the evidence, including the case record, 
presented at the hearing; and it shall be in accordance with this title, the law 
and the regulations. The Hearing Officer or appointed representative shall not 
present the Agency’s case. 

 

E. Determination of Law and Fact; Aid Continued 

 
In the case of a decrease or discontinuance, the Hearing Officer or appointed 
representative will review the recipient’s notice of action prior to the date of 
the hearing and will determine whether the dispute involves law, a County 
regulation, or a fact. If the issue relates to a dispute of the facts, the Hearing 
Officer or appointed representative will notify the worker to continue aid 
pending the hearing decision, unless the recipient has died, entered a 
medical or penal institution, left the country, or his/her current whereabouts 
are unknown. 

 
There is no aid paid pending the decision on emergency assistance granted 
(including $10.00 special advance payment). 

 

F. Schedule for Hearings; Extension; Time for Submission of Decision 
to Director 

 
Unless the applicant or recipient, for good reason, requests an extension of 
the time and the Human Services Director approves the setting of a new time, 
the hearing shall be scheduled not later than twenty-one (21) working days 
after the request for hearing is received.  If an applicant or recipient or his/her 
representative fails to appear at a scheduled fair hearing or fails to submit 
written evidence timely for the fair hearing, the fairing hearing claim will be 
dismissed.  The Hearing Officer or appointed representative shall submit a 

91



Date: 09-09-202107-13-2022      Page 36  
Replaces:  09-0924-202119                                                                                       Santa Cruz County 
                                                                                                                       General Assistance Regulations  
 

written decision to the Director, not later than sixty (60) working days following 
the receipt of the request for a hearing. 

 

G. Written Decision; Adoption by Director 

 
The decision shall be in writing and shall be final when adopted by the 
Director. The Director shall act upon the decision within ten (10) working days 
of the date of the decision and may accept, reject, or modify the decision, or 
return the case for further hearing. 
 
END REGULATION 

92



Santa Cruz County General Assistance Regulations
 
 
 
 
  
Effective: 9/1/16 

CHAPTER I  IN GENERAL ......................................................................................................... 1 

CHAPTER II  COUNTY RESPONSIBILITY ................................................................................. 2 

A.  In General ......................................................................................................................................... 2 

B.  Administration of General Assistance ............................................................................................ 2 

C.  Duty to Plan for Self-Sufficiency of Applicants/Recipients ........................................................... 2 

D.  Emergency Exception to Limitations .............................................................................................. 2 

E.  Form of Aid ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

F.  Confidentiality .................................................................................................................................. 3 

G.  Destruction of Case Records ............................................................................................................ 3 

H.  Delegation of Authority to Administer Oaths ................................................................................ 3 

CHAPTER III  PROCEDURES FOR APPLICATION AND DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY 4 

A.  In General ......................................................................................................................................... 4 

B.  Determination of Eligibility ............................................................................................................. 4 

C.  Eligibility Redetermination ............................................................................................................. 4 

D.  HUMAN SERVICES Responsibility ............................................................................................... 4 

E.  Applicant and Recipient Responsibility .......................................................................................... 5 

F.  Reimbursement of General Assistance ........................................................................................... 7 

CHAPTER IV  PERSONS ELIGIBLE FOR GENERAL ASSISTANCE ........................................ 9 

A.  Employable Persons ......................................................................................................................... 9 

B.  Incapacitated Persons ..................................................................................................................... 10 

C.  Minors .............................................................................................................................................. 12 

D.  Students ........................................................................................................................................... 13 

E.  Stepparents, Related Children and Adults ................................................................................... 14 

F.  Noncitizens ...................................................................................................................................... 14 

93



Santa Cruz County General Assistance Regulations
 
 
 
 
  
Effective: 9/1/16 
G.  Ineligible by State Law ................................................................................................................... 15 
 
H. Other Ineligibles …………………………………………………………………………………................16  

CHAPTER V  EMPLOYMENT AND REHABILITATION............................................................ 17 

A.  Employable Persons ....................................................................................................................... 17 

B.  Failure to Comply ........................................................................................................................... 18 

C.  Good Cause For Noncompliance With Employable Person Requirements ............................... 18 

CHAPTER VI  RESIDENCE ........................................................................................................ 20 

A.  Residency Requirements ................................................................................................................ 20 

B.  Confirming Physical Presence: Applicants/Recipients with a Fixed Address ........................... 20 

C.  Confirming Physical Presence: Applicants/Recipients without a Fixed Address ..................... 20 

D.  Intent to Permanently Reside ........................................................................................................ 21 

E.  Prior Verifiable Address ................................................................................................................ 23 

F.  Notation in the Case Record .......................................................................................................... 23 

G.  Verifiable Residence Outside Santa Cruz County ....................................................................... 23 

CHAPTER VII  PROPERTY - REAL AND PERSONAL ............................................................. 24 

A.  Real Property .................................................................................................................................. 24 

B.  Personal Property ........................................................................................................................... 24 

C.  Liens ................................................................................................................................................. 25 

CHAPTER VIII  INCOME ............................................................................................................ 27 

A.  Total Budgetary Need .................................................................................................................... 27 

B.  Determining Eligibility ................................................................................................................... 27 

C.  Income Reporting ........................................................................................................................... 27 

D.  Excluded Income ............................................................................................................................ 27 

E.  Lump Sum Income ......................................................................................................................... 28 

94



Santa Cruz County General Assistance Regulations
 
 
 
 
  
Effective: 9/1/16 
CHAPTER IX  STANDARD OF NEED AND AID PAYMENTS .................................................. 29 

A.  Single Person ................................................................................................................................... 29 

B.  Household ........................................................................................................................................ 29 

C.  General Assistance Budget ............................................................................................................ 30 

D.  Other Budget Provisions ................................................................................................................ 31 

CHAPTER X  RESPONSIBILITY OF RELATIVES .................................................................... 33 

A.  Legally Responsible Relatives ........................................................................................................ 33 

B.  Investigation of Relative’s Financial Ability ................................................................................ 33 

C.  Failure to Cooperate ....................................................................................................................... 33 

CHAPTER XI  HEARING PROCEDURE FOR APPLICANTS AND RECIPIENTS OF GENERAL 
ASSISTANCE 34 

A.  Notice of Action; Right of Hearing; Time to Appeal ................................................................... 34 

B.  Prior Notice; Exception; Discontinuance Request ....................................................................... 34 

C.  Hearing Rights ................................................................................................................................ 35 

D.  Impartial Administrative Law Judge ........................................................................................... 35 

E.  Determination of Law and Fact; Aid Continued ......................................................................... 35 

F.  Schedule for Hearings; Extension; Time for Submission of Decision to Director .................... 35 

G.  Written Decision; Adoption by Director ...................................................................................... 36 

 

95



  Attachment A 

1 
 

General Assistance Proposed Changes FY 22/23 effective 10/1/2022 

  General 
Assistance 
Manual 
Section 

Current Regulation  Proposed Regulation  Program Impact  Fiscal Impact 

1  Chapter VI.C 1 

 

Residence 

 

Page 20‐21 

A. Residency Requirements 
 
An applicant or recipient shall be a 
lawful resident of the State of 
California and the County of Santa 
Cruz to be eligible for General 
Assistance (Welfare and Institutions 
Code 17100).  Residency is 
established by confirming physical 
presence at a locale within the 
county for at least fifteen calendar 
days prior to the date of application, 
and intent to remain in Santa Cruz 
County. Physical presence may be 
confirmed through the application of 
B. or C. of this section.  All applicants 
must provide a form of identification 
 
C. Confirming Physical Presence 
Applicants/Recipients without a Fixed 
Address 
 
Applicants/recipients without a fixed 
residential address shall provide 
verification of continued physical 
presence at some location within 
Santa Cruz County. 
Applicants/Recipients must submit 
the following verification: 

Remove strikethrough:   

A. Residency Requirements 
 
An applicant or recipient shall be a 
lawful resident of the State of 
California and the County of Santa 
Cruz to be eligible for General 
Assistance (Welfare and Institutions 
Code 17100).  Residency is 
established by confirming physical 
presence at a locale within the 
county for at least fifteen calendar 
days prior to the date of application, 
and intent to remain in Santa Cruz 
County. Physical presence may be 
confirmed through the application of 
B. or C. of this section.  All applicants 
must provide a form of identification 
 

C. Confirming Physical Presence 
Applicants/Recipients without a Fixed 
Address 
 
Applicants/recipients without a fixed 
residential address shall provide 
verification of continued physical 
presence at some location within 
Santa Cruz County. 

Applicants/recipients are 
required to complete the 
WEL 8056 Verification of 
Residency – Map to 
identify their precise 
location within the county. 
When applying, applicants 
must establish residency 
within the county as part of 
the eligibility requirements. 
Once the General 
Assistance case is ongoing, 
recipients must complete 
the monthly CW 7 – 
Monthly Eligibility Report 
to maintain General 
Assistance eligibility. The 
CW 7 requires General 
Assistance recipients to 
confirm and/or report any 
changes to their physical 
address within the county. 
 
Removal of the map 
requirement eliminates 
redundancy and over‐
verification of residency 
when the customer has 

No fiscal impact.   

 

96



  Attachment A 

2 
 

  General 
Assistance 
Manual 
Section 

Current Regulation  Proposed Regulation  Program Impact  Fiscal Impact 

 
1. Identification on a map of 

Santa Cruz County of the 
precise location where the 
applicant/recipient resides; 
and 

Applicants/Recipients must submit 
the following verification: 
 

1. Identification on a map of 
Santa Cruz County of the 
precise location where the 
applicant/recipient resides; 
and 

already established 
residency. 
 
 
 

2  Chapter IX. D  

Other Budget 
Provisions 

Page 31‐32 

 

 

D. Other Budget Provisions 
 
1. Taxes ‐ Provisions may be made for 
payment of property taxes on the 
home of a recipient.  
2. Exceeding Maximum ‐ In an 
emergency, such as an imminent 
foreclosure, Human Services may 
provide the homeowner recipient the 
total amount of the monthly property 
payment due.  
3. Special rent ceiling in emergencies 
‐ In extraordinary instances requiring 
location and negotiation of 
emergency housing, it will be 
department policy to follow the same 

Add new number 6 section and shift 
all down: 

6. The General Assistance case may 
be restored, and grant shall be 
prorated from the date that all 
eligibility requirements are met 
within the 30 days following the 
discontinuance. 

a) Restoration of benefits 
may not be applied when a 
discontinuance results in a 
sanction 

Customers must apply each 
time their General 
Assistance case is 
discontinued. Applying 
restoration will allow 
customers to complete the 
required verifications and 
have benefits prorated 
effective the date the case 
is once again considered 
complete. Restoration will 
support in the reduction of 
“churn” in General 
Assistance participants. 
 

No fiscal impact. 

97



  Attachment A 

3 
 

  General 
Assistance 
Manual 
Section 

Current Regulation  Proposed Regulation  Program Impact  Fiscal Impact 

principles used in emergency foster 
home placement. Benefit 
Representatives may negotiate for 
emergency housing at a rate not to 
exceed $19.00 per night for a period 
not to exceed seven (7) days.  
4. Shelter Costs ‐ Budget 
computation will include current 
monthly shelter costs, including 
utilities, as owed, up to the maximum 
budgeted amount. Basic telephone 
cost is included as a utility expense. If 
the applicant/recipient has shelter 
costs (including utilities) higher than 
the maximum allowed, the food 
budget may be used in part or in full, 
towards the shelter expense.  

a) Reimbursement for 
temporary motel lodging for 
homeless recipients will be 
made under the following 
conditions: motel was in 
Santa Cruz County; the 
payment for lodging was 
made with the GA aid 
payment and is based on the 
recipient’s portion of the 
lodging amount. 
Reimbursement will not 
exceed the grant amount for 
housed individuals.  

Restoration will not be 
considered for any 
discontinuance that 
imposes a sanction  

98



  Attachment A 

4 
 

  General 
Assistance 
Manual 
Section 

Current Regulation  Proposed Regulation  Program Impact  Fiscal Impact 

5. The General Assistance grant shall 
be computed from the date of 
application provided that all eligibility 
requirements are met.  
6. Amount of Aid ‐ If the amount of 
aid the applicant/recipient is 
determined to be eligible for is less 
than ten dollars ($10.00) no payment 
shall be made for that month.  
7. Transportation for Return to 
Residence ‐ The cost of 
transportation necessary to return a 
non‐resident(s) to his/her/their place 
of legal residence shall be provided 
on a one‐time only basis. Human 
Services shall make arrangements for 
return to residence with a 
transportation provider. The 
reasonable cost of meals not to 
exceed $14.00 per day per person 
while traveling, lodging may be 
provided if needed, in addition to the 
cost of the transportation.  
8. Unbudgeted Special Needs ‐ 
Payment for unbudgeted special 
needs may be provided in unusual or 
emergency circumstances with the 
approval of the Director or his/her 
designee if the applicant, recipient, 
or household has no other means to 
provide for such needs. An example 

99



  Attachment A 

5 
 

  General 
Assistance 
Manual 
Section 

Current Regulation  Proposed Regulation  Program Impact  Fiscal Impact 

of such a special need would be a 
uniform or supplies necessary to 
accept an offer to meet this need.  
9. Bus Pass(es) ‐ Transit bus pass(es) 
will be available to applicants or 
recipients who are in need of 
transportation and are unable to 
meet this need. Bus passes will be 
given only for activities related to the 
plan for self‐sufficiency and as 
available.  
10. Pregnancy Special Need ‐ A 
special allowance of $48.00 per 
month will be granted to a pregnant 
woman who is receiving General 
Assistance.  
11. Advanced Personal Needs ‐ In 
order to increase the employability of 
eligible applicants and to enhance 
the effectiveness of Job Search 
Procedures, each eligible employable 
applicant shall be granted for 
personal needs, an amount from 
$10.00 minimum up to the monthly 
maximum for Personal Needs. 
Advanced personal needs will be 
prorated from the date of 
application. If the prorated amount is 
less than $10.00, $10.00 in cash 
benefits will be issued. Advanced 
personal needs may be issued prior 

100



  Attachment A 

6 
 

  General 
Assistance 
Manual 
Section 

Current Regulation  Proposed Regulation  Program Impact  Fiscal Impact 

to verification of eligibility. Advance 
Personal Needs Grants shall be 
granted to General Assistance 
employable applicants who: 

a) Have less than $10.00 cash 
income in the month of 
application.  
b) Have less in liquid 
resources than the amount of 
Advance Personal Needs to 
which he/she would be 
entitled.  
c) Have not failed without 
good cause to complete job 
search requirements on a 
prior application, after having 
received an advance personal 
needs grant. Advanced 
personal needs will be issued 
within three days of date of 
application. 

101



  Attachment A 

7 
 

  General 
Assistance 
Manual 
Section 

Current Regulation  Proposed Regulation  Program Impact  Fiscal Impact 

3  Chapter XI B, D 

Pages 34‐35 

B. Prior Notice; Exception; 
Discontinuance Request Human 
Services shall notify the recipient by 
the notice postmarked, or hand 
delivered with signed receipt, at least 
ten (10) calendar days prior to the 
effective date of the proposed action 
to discontinue or decrease assistance 
unless the recipient waives his/her 
right of ten (10) days prior notice in 
writing. The written request for 
discontinuance or decrease shall 
contain the reason for the request 
and should state that the recipient 
knows that he/she has the right to a 
hearing and voluntarily gives up 
these rights and the right to 
applicable continued aid. There is to 
be no continuing aid paid pending 
the hearing and/or decision if the 
issue is one of law or of County 
regulations. A continuing aid paid 
pending decision shall be rendered 
by the Hearing Officer or appointed 
representative at the conclusion of 
the General Assistance Fair Hearing. 
If aid paid pending is approved, the 
recipient must continue to meet their 
General Assistance plan for self‐
sufficiency and other program 
regulations. 

B. Prior Notice; Exception; 
Discontinuance Request  

Human Services shall notify the 
recipient by the notice postmarked, 
or hand delivered with signed 
receipt, at least ten (10) calendar 
days prior to the effective date of the 
proposed action to discontinue, or 
decrease, or prorate due to 
restoration grant assistance unless 
the recipient waives his/her right of 
ten (10) days prior notice in writing.  
The written request for 
discontinuance, decrease or 
proration of benefits shall contain the 
reason for the request and should 
state that the recipient knows that 
he/she has the right to a hearing and 
voluntarily gives up these rights and 
the right to applicable continued aid. 

There is to be no continuing aid paid 
pending the hearing and/or decision 
if the issue is one of law or of County 
regulations.  A continuing aid paid 
pending decision shall be rendered 
by the Hearing Officer or appointed 
representative at the conclusion of 
the General Assistance Fair Hearing. 
If aid paid pending is approved, the 
recipient must continue to meet their 

Continuation to 
Restoration of aid 
proposed in item 2. 

No fiscal impact. 

102



  Attachment A 

8 
 

  General 
Assistance 
Manual 
Section 

Current Regulation  Proposed Regulation  Program Impact  Fiscal Impact 

D. Impartial Hearing Officer  
Human Services shall provide a 
Hearing Officer or appointed 
representative who has not been 
involved in any way in the 
determination to deny, decrease  
or discontinue aid. The decision shall 
be in writing and shall be based solely 
on the evidence, including the case 
record, presented at the hearing; and 
it  
shall be in accordance with this title, 
the law and the regulations. The 
Hearing Officer or appointed 
representative shall not present the 
Agency’s case. 

General Assistance plan for self‐
sufficiency and other program 
regulations. 

D. Impartial   Hearing Officer  

Human Services shall provide a 
Hearing Officer or appointed 
representative who has not been 
involved in any way in the 
determination to deny, decrease, 
prorate based on restoration or 
discontinue aid. The decision shall be 
in writing and shall be based solely 
on the evidence, including the case 
record, presented at the hearing; and 
it shall be in accordance with this 
title, the law and the regulations. The 
Hearing Officer or appointed 
representative shall not present the 
Agency’s case. 

103



  Attachment A 

9 
 

  General 
Assistance 
Manual 
Section 

Current Regulation  Proposed Regulation  Program Impact  Fiscal Impact 

  Chapter IX. C  

General 
Assistance 
Budget 

Page 30 

Current GA payment standards 
effective 10/01/2021. 

Increase to current 10/01/2021 GA 
payment standards effective 
10/1/2022. 
 
CW MAP is projected to increase 21% 
effective 10/1/2022. 

There is no impact to staff 
time allocation.  The 
increase to GA grant levels 
aligns with the increase to 
CalWORKs Maximum Aid 
Payment levels effective 
October 1st, 2022. The 
change will increase public 
assistance support to 
vulnerable members of our 
community.  
 

The increase will 
result in an increase 
to GA budget 
expenditures.  The 
potential increase 
was included in the 
HSD 22/23 budget.  

  Chapter IX. D  

Other Budget 
Provisions 

Page 32 

10. Pregnancy Special Need ‐ A 
special allowance of $48.00 per 
month will be granted to a pregnant 
woman who is receiving General 
Assistance. 

10. Pregnancy Special Need ‐ A 
special allowance of $100 per month 
will be granted to a pregnant woman 
who is receiving General Assistance. 

There is no impact to staff 
time allocation.  The 
increase to GA Pregnancy 
Special Need Payment level 
aligns with the increase to 
CalWORKs Pregnancy 
Special Need level effective 
October 1st, 2022. The 
change will increase public 
assistance support to 
vulnerable members of our 
community.  
 

The increase will 
result in an increase 
to GA budget 
expenditures.  The 
potential increase 
was included in the 
HSD 22/23 budget 

 

104



 

County of Santa Cruz 
 

HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

(408) 454-5459 
FAX (408) 454-4642 

1000 Emeline St., Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
www.hra.co.santa-cruz.ca.us        www.workforcescc.com 

 
BYLAWS 

 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

 

1. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

As set forth in the Santa Cruz County Code Section 2.60, the Commission shall exercise the 

following responsibilities in its efforts to ensure the highest quality and maximum 

effectiveness of human services provided for the benefit of the citizens of the county: 

 A. Guide long-term planning regarding meeting the socioeconomic needs of low income, 

disabled, disadvantaged, and at-risk people in Santa Cruz County; 

 B. Advise the County Board of Supervisors on policies and priorities that affect the socio-

economic needs of low income, disabled, disadvantaged, and at-risk people; 

 C. Provide advice and counsel to the administrator and senior management of the Human 

Resources Agency on best practices in the operation of the agency's programs' 

 D. Provide a forum for citizens affected by county human services programs and policies; 

 E. Advise the Board of Supervisors on funding decisions affecting the socio-economic 

needs of low income, disabled, and disadvantaged people, including county allocation of 

resources to county programs and community programs funding; 

 F. Integrate efforts and initiatives affecting the socio-economic needs of the poor which 

cross departmental, divisional, and interest group lines; 

G. Advise the Board of Supervisors on legislative matters concerning the County human 

services programs. 

2. MEETINGS 

105



A. Regular meeting of the Commission shall be held the third Wednesday of every other 

month (January, March, May, July, September, November (or the fourth Wednesday of 

the month if the third Wednesday is a County-observed holiday) convening at 8:30 a.m. 

at the United Way Conference room, 1220 41st Avenue, Capitola, California, or at 

another location designated by the Commission.  At least one meeting a year will be 

scheduled in Watsonville.   

 B. No meeting of this Commission shall be held in any facility that prohibits the admittance 

of any person, or persons, on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, 

physical handicap, medical condition (cancer related), martial status, sex, sexual 

preference, age (over 40), or veteran status.  All meetings shall be held at locations 

which are accessible to the public and which are functional for, usable, and accessible to 

physically handicapped persons. 

 C. Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson, or by a majority vote of the 

Commission during any regular or special meeting. 

 D. The public shall be notified in advance of the time and plane of regular and special 

meetings. 

E. At least forty-eight (48) hours prior to each regular meeting, an agenda for the regular 

meeting shall be mailed to each Commission member, representative of the news media, 

and each person who has submitted a written request to the Commission for notification 

of meetings. The following items should be mailed to each Commission member at least 

forty-eight (48) hours prior to each regular meeting: 

  1. Any written material to be discussed at the meeting. 

2. Minutes of the last meeting. 

F. Prior to each special meeting, an agenda for the special meeting shall be mailed to each  

Commission member, representative of the news media, and each person who has 

submitted a written request to the Commission for notification of meetings.  Notice for a 

special meeting must be received at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the time of the 

meeting. 

106



 G. A person shall not be required to register his, or her, name or fulfill any other obligation 

as a condition to attendance at any meeting of this Commission, but may volunteer such 

information for inclusion in the Commission's minutes (Government Code Section 

54953.3). 

 H. The meetings will be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order Revised 

unless otherwise specified by the authorizing legislation. 

3. VOTING 

 A. A majority of the voting members shall constitute a quorum. 

 B. All official acts of the Commission shall comply with Santa Cruz County Code Section 

2.38.150. 

4. OFFICERS 

 A. The officers of the Commission are the Chairperson and the Vice-Chairperson.  They 

shall be elected by the Commissioners for a term of one year, and many serve a 

maximum of two consecutive one-year terms. 

 B. The duties of the Chairperson are to preside over meetings, prepare agendas, represent 

the Commission, and be responsible for communication with the Human Resources 

Agency and the Board of Supervisors.  The Vice-Chairperson shall assume these same 

duties in the absence of the Chairperson. 

107



 

5. AGENDAS 

 A.    Commission members who wish to place items on the agenda shall give those items to the staff 

person of the Commission at least one week in advance of the meeting. 

 B. The agenda will terminate with community oral communications. 

  1.   Citizens shall be given approximately five minutes each to express their concerns. 

2. When further discussion is required, the Commission may vote to allot time in the 

     agenda of the following meeting. 

6. SUBCOMMITTEES 

 A.    Subcommittees may be appointed, as needed, by the Chairperson with the majority approval of 

the Commission.  The Chairperson, with the majority approval of the Commission, shall terminate 

the subcommittee when its function is no longer necessary. 

7. APPROVAL OF BYLAWS 

These Bylaws, and any subsequent amendments thereto, shall be approved by the Board of Supervisors 

pursuant to the Santa Cruz County Code Section 2.38.140. 

8. AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS 

Amendments to these Bylaws may be recommended to the Board of Supervisors by a majority vote of 

the Commission. 

 
Approved as to Form 
 
 
By:__________________ 
      County Counsel 

 

DATE ADOPTED BY COMMISSION:    August 12, 1991                   

DATE APPROVED BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:    September 10, 1991                

DATES AMENDED BY COMMISSION:    December 9, 1991,  May 20, 1992,              

   October 20, 1993, February 16, 1994,  November 16, 1994, January 15. 2003          

DATES AMENDMENTS APPROVED BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:   January 1, 1992,    

     June 16, 1992, November 9, 1993, March 8, 1994,   February 25 , 2003      

  

 n:\admin\hscBYLAW\1/15/03 

108



DRAFT 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 

YEAR 2022 WORK PLAN 

 
 

BOARD RELATED ACTIVITIES 
 

OBJECTIVE 
 

STATUTORY PURPOSE  ACTIVITIES  TIME 
FRAME 

 
1. Review the Collective of 

Results and Evidence‐
Based (CORE) 
Investments  funding 
process.  

 
§2.60.050(A) & (E): 

Guide long‐term planning 
regarding the needs of at‐risk 
populations; Advise the Board of 
Supervisors on funding decisions. 

 

 Receive reports on the new CORE funding 
model, and provide advice and assistance in 
implementing the changes 

 Receive and review reports on CORE 
Investments funding recommendations and 
model, as well as CORE Conditions 

 Receive and review reports on CalFresh outreach 
activities and application assistance for CalFresh 
and health insurance.  

 

 

 
TBDAs 
needed 

 

 
2. Respond to matters 

referred by Board of 
Supervisors 

 
§2.60.050: 

Powers and duties. (Generally) 

 Respond to matters referred to the Human 
Services Commission on an as needed basis. 

As needed 

 
3. General Commission 

Administration 

 
§2.60.040: 

Organization and procedures. 

 Approve biennial report and annual work plan, 
set meeting schedule and elect officers. 
 

 

January 
 

 
 

4. Advocate for Human 
Service/Social Services 
Legislation  

 
§2.60.050(G): 

Advise the Board of Supervisors 
on legislative matters concerning 
County human services 
programs. 

 Review Departmental legislative priorities. 
 

 Receive/review Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) 
reports as appropriate. 

March / May / 
July 

As needed 

Formatted: Space After:  12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

109



2 
 

 
COMMUNITY RELATED ACTIVITIES 

 
OBJECTIVE 

 
STATUTORY PURPOSE  ACTIVITIES  TIME 

FRAME 
 

5. Share Information with 
other County health 
Health and human 
Human service Service 
commissionsCommissio
ns and other Boards 

 
§2.60.050(A), (B) & (F):  

Guide long‐term planning; Advise 
the Board of Supervisors on 
policies and priorities that affect 
the needs of low incomelow‐
income people; integrate efforts 
and initiatives. 

 As appropriate: Share minutes and agendas with 
other County Commissions; participate in joint 
subcommittees; and/or include chair or designee 
of other Commissions in forums promoting 
information sharing and planning on relevant 
community issues. 

 Invite other commissions to present at meetings.

 Invite the Workforce Development Board Chair 
and Director to provide reports on WIOA 
activities and participate in WIOA committees as 
appropriate.   

TBDAs 
needed 

  
 
 
As needed 

TBD 

TBDAs 
needed 

 
 

    
6. Child Support Services 

 
§2.60.050(A) & (C): Guide long‐
term planning regarding the 
needs of at riskat‐risk clients; 
advise Human Services 
Department Director. 

 

 Receive periodic reports from the Department 
of Child Support. 

 Review and comment on Department of Child 
Support initiatives.  

Ongoing 

 

As needed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri

110



3 
 

 
 

 
HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT PROGRAM RELATED ACTIVITIES 

 
OBJECTIVE 

 
STATUTORY PURPOSE  ACTIVITIES  TIME 

FRAME 
 

7. Increase community 
access to public 
assistance programs 

 

 

 

 

 

 
§2.60.050(A) & (C): Guide long‐
term planning regarding the 
needs of at riskat‐risk clients; 
advise Human Services 
Department Director. 

 Review and consider reports on program 
progress, outreach efforts and outcomes in 
the following areas: CalWORKs/TANF 
Welfare‐to‐Work and Work Participation 
Requirements, Medi‐Cal, CalFresh, and the 
Earned Income Tax Credit.  

 Review and consider reports on the progress 
of federal health insurance benefits. 

 Receive and review reports on CalFresh 
outreach activities and application assistance 
for CalFresh and health insurance.  

  

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 
8. Child Welfare Services 

(CWS) System 
Improvement Plan (SIP) 

 
§2.60.050(A) & (C): Guide long‐
term planning regarding the 
needs of at risk clients; advise 
Human Services Department 
Director. 

 Review periodic reports from HSD’s Families 
and Children Division Director re: system 
improvement goals, indicators, and progress.  

 Continue to have a Commissioner designated as 
a liaison to the CWS System Improvement Plan 
Committee and receive periodic reports from 
the liaison.   

 Receive reports on the new Child Welfare 
Continuum of Care (CCR) and provide advice and 
assistance in implementing the changes 

Ongoing 
 
 
Ongoing 

 
9. Monitor General 

Assistance Program and 

 
§2.60.050 (C): Provide advice and 
counsel to the HSD Director and 

 Consider changes to County General Assistance 
Regulations. 

As needed 

Formatted: Font: Calibri

Formatted: Body Text

111



4 
 

review needed changes 
to regulations 

senior management on best 
practices. 

 
10. Veterans Services 

 

 
§2.60.050(A) & (C): Guide long‐
term planning regarding the 
needs of at risk people; advise 
Human Services Department 
Director. 

 Receive periodic reports on services and 
resources for veterans and their families. 

 Continue to have a Commissioner designated as 
a liaison to Veterans Services Office and receive 
periodic reports from the liaison.  

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 
11. Participate in Child Care 

Development Fee Loans 
Process 

 

 
§2.60.050(E): Advise the Board of 
Supervisors on funding decisions. 

 Designate subcommittee to review and consider 
new funding priorities and develop a funding 
process for the allocation of Child Care 
Development fee funds.   

 Make recommendations to the Board on 
funding. 

As needed 

 

12. Housing Authority 
Family Self‐Sufficiency 
Program 

§2.60.050(A), (B) & (F):  

Guide long‐term planning; Advise 
the Board of Supervisors on 
policies and priorities that affect 
the needs of low income people; 
integrate efforts and initiatives. 

 Act as the Program Coordinating Committee for 
the Santa Cruz Housing Authority Family Self‐
Sufficiency Program including:  

o Receive periodic reports from the 
County of Santa Cruz Housing 
Authority on the Family Self‐
Sufficiency Program. 

o Review and comment on Family Self‐
Sufficiency Program initiatives. 

Ongoing 

 

As needed 
 
 
 
 
 

 

112




